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VISION STATEMENT 
 
 

“To attain excellence in life-changing 

education by providing equitable 

learning opportunities.” 
 

 

MISSION STATEMENT 
 

“To provide lifelong learning 

opportunities through Open, 

Distance and Flexible Education 

with a commitment to excellence in 

teaching and research.” 
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CORPORATE GOALS 

 

1. Achieve excellence in quality of teaching and learning which 

support life-changing education 

 

2. Achieve excellence in research, along with global visibility and 

recognition  

 

3. Improve human capital and infrastructure facilities  

 

4. Widen access to education and enhance opportunities for Life-

Changing Education  

 

5. Ensure high quality educational support services  

 

6. Ensure social and environmental responsiveness  
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1.0. General 
  

1.1 Overview 

The Open University of Sri Lanka was established as an Open Distance Learning (ODL) 
University on 19th June 1980 under Section 23 (1) and Section 18 of the Universities Act No.16 
of 1978 and the Open University of Sri Lanka (OUSL) Ordinance No.3 of 1980 which was 
subsequently amended as the Open University of Sri Lanka Ordinances No.1 of 1983 and No. 12 
of 1996.  Among the ultimate objectives of this initiative was ‘to ensure life-long education and 
the right of every citizen to improve life-chances through access to higher education’. 
 

The Open University is one of the sixteen national Universities enjoying the same legal, 
institutional, and academic status as any other national University in Sri Lanka.  However, it 
differs from the other national Universities because of its dependence on Open Distance 
Learning (ODL) philosophy to expand opportunities for higher education regardless of age, 
previous qualifications, income, geographic and employment barriers.  
 

Vision Statement: 
“To attain excellence in life-changing education by providing equitable learning opportunities.” 
 

Mission Statement: 
“To provide lifelong learning opportunities through Open, Distance and Flexible Education with 
a commitment to excellence in teaching and research.” 
 

The year 2021 has been by far one of the most challenging years for the world, country, the 
University, and individuals in our recent living memories due to the global Covid-19 pandemic 
that has been ravaging the world almost for two years now.  
 

The challenge for us as individuals, society, and as the University community is to adjust 
ourselves to the new normal. The answer to our challenges lies on the way we adjust ourselves 
and make certain changes to our approaches and processes to reach the destination we have 
planned for ourselves, the University, and the nation. 
Change, be it individual change or organizational change, is always difficult to implement as 
people are reluctant to give up attachment to familiar habits, practices, places, and people. 
Change scares people. Individuals tend to find security in traditional approaches to life and 
situations. One of the major reasons for resistance to change is uncertainty about the impact of 
change. The fear of the unknown always has a major impact on the decisions of the individuals. 
On the other hand, there are people who resist change as it disrupts the status-quo.  
 

As a university, we finalized the Strategic Management Plan for the next five years. This plan 
envisages where we want to be in 2025 as a university.  
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In the last year the university developed a concept paper on the possible alternative evaluations 
that could be done online using the MOODLE platform used by the University.  
 

The proposal includes steps to develop the system, logistics, training, and procedures, 
identifying the personnel responsible for the various tasks involved in administering the online 
evaluation process.  
 

In line with the Covid-19 guidelines the University has taken steps to automate many of the 
administrative processes so that wherever possible contactless communications and delivery 
mechanisms could be adopted.  
 

The year 2021 was a significant year for the OUSL as it has completed forty-one years of service 
to the nation. Despite the pandemic situation in the year 2021 undertook various projects. 
Initial steps were taken to convert the Main Campus and the Colombo Regional Centre into a 
Green campus. For this purpose, a Green Policy for the University was developed and approved.  
 

Even though the OUSL has a comprehensive MIS to support all academic and management 
functions and the ICT infrastructure that support the teaching-learning functions, the OMIS 
required upgrading. Therefore, the University embarked on a process of developing a new MIS 
with the leadership of the internal staff of the IT Division with the Deputy Information System 
Manager in charge of the project. The first sub-module of the OMIS, namely the Application 
module was released in October 2020. The first module of the new OMIS the Registration 
Module is released in February 2021. 
The University also too steps to expand the WIFI facilities in the Main Campus and the Regional 
Centres.  
 

The annual research confrence of the University OUIRS-2021 was successfully conducted as a 
fully-online conference. The library continued to be involved in the national e-Library project 
and has automated many public libraries across the country. The University signed agreement 
with the Hambantota Municipal Council to open the second Library Corner in a Public Library 
under the project to enhance library services to OUSL students in the towns where Study 
Centres of the OUSL are situated. University opened well equipped for students and staff as a 
measure to enhance the physical infrastructure for developing sports activities within the 
University. 
 

Construction work on the proposed four-storied building of the Jaffna Regional Center is 
continuing and expected the handover the building in the latter part of the year 2021. 
 

An important area that needs to be emphasized in any educational institution is ensuring the 
quality of the study programmes.  Centre of Quality Assurance together with the staff 
development centre conducted several workshops to enhance the quality and relevance of 
degree programmes offered by the OUSL.  
 

The Industry Liaison Centre of the University undertook various initiatives and is the process of 
enter into partnerships with the industry on collaborative projects, especially in the agriculture 
and food industry.  
 

There is no doubt that the Open University of Sri Lanka, has made significant inroads into the 
higher education sector in Sri Lanka by providing alternative pathways for education to 
working adults and young adults who had chosen the opportunity that has been provided by the 
University.  
 

It is noted that the Government of Sri Lanka is keen on expanding the higher education sector to 
cater for all those who are qualified to enter a higher educational institute and considers the 
Open University of Sri Lanka as an important partner to provide for the growing demand for 
quality higher education in this country. The university believes the country will be able to fulfil 
this cherished goal with the active contribution of the Open University of Sri Lanka. 
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1.2 The Governing Authority 
 

Chancellor of the University:   Prof. Dammika A Thantrigoda                                                                        
 

Council of the University: 

Ex-Officio members 

Vice-Chancellor:   Prof. SA Ariadurai (Up to 23.06.2021) 

    Prof. PMC Thilakerathna  

Deputy Vice-Chancellor: Dr. AP Madurapperuma 

Deans of the Faculties 

Education:    Prof. (Mrs.) SP Karunanayaka (Up to 04.03.2021) 

     Prof. S Kugamoorthy     

Engineering Technology:   Prof. DAR Dolage  (Up to 07.07.2021) 

    Prof. HGPA Rathnaweera 

Health Sciences:   Prof. GR Ranawaka (Up to 07.07.2021) 

     Dr. BSS de Silva  

Humanities & Social Sciences: Dr. SN Morais  

Natural Sciences:   Prof. JCN Rajendra (Up to 17.10.2021) 

Management Studies   Prof. V Sivalogathasan 

Members nominated by the Senate 

Prof. KS Weerasekera (Up to 16.10.2021) 

Prof. SR Weerakoon  

Prof. CS de Silva 
 

Member nominated by the Ministry of Higher Education  

Ms. MM Krishanthi 
 

Member nominated by Ministry of State for Information  

Ms. DPU Welaratne 
 

Member nominated by the Committee of Vice-Chancellors and Directors  

Snr. Prof. Chandrika N Wijeyaratne 
 

Members appointed by the University Grants Commission  

Prof. Ranjith Jayasekera  

Dr. Anura Ekanayake 

Dr. Chanaka Talpahewa 

Dr. N C Kumarasinghe 

Mr. P Ranepura 

Mr. Ranjith G Rubasinghe 

Mr. Ruban Wickramaarachchi 

Mr. Tissa Nandasena 

Mr. Ashane Jayasekera 

Mr. Thusantha Wijemanna 

Mr. G Tissakuttiarachchi 

Ms. Gayani De Alwis 
 

Secretary 

 Registrar:    Ms.WL Vindya Jayasena 

 



5 
 

Senate of the University: 

Ex-Officio members 

Vice-Chancellor:   Prof. PMC Thilakarathne  

Deputy Vice-Chancellor:   Dr. AP Madurapperuma 

 

Deans of the Faculties 

Education:    Prof. Sasikala Kugamoorthy 

Engineering Technology:  Dr HGPA Ratnaweera 

Health Sciences:   Dr. B Sunil S. De Silva  

Humanities & Social Sciences:  Dr. SN Morais 

Management Studies:   Prof. V Sivalogathasan 

Natural Sciences:   Prof.GWA Rohan Fernando 

Directors 

 Director/ Post Graduate Institute of English:  Prof. HK Rambukwella 

 Actg. Director / Centre for Educational  Prof. BG Jayathilleke 
Technology and Media:   

 Actg. Director / Regional Educational Services: Dr NS Abeysinghe 

 

Head of the Departments  

 Head /Early Child. & Primary Education:  Dr. T Mukunthan 

 Head/Secondary & Tertiary Education:   Prof. WMS Wanasinghe 

 Head /Special Needs Education:   Dr. (Ms) KDRLJ Perera 

 Head /Educational Leadership & Management: Ms. C Hewapathirana 

Head/Agricultural & Plantation Engineering:  Dr. (Ms.) AGB Aruggoda 

Head/Textile & Apparel Technology:   Dr. DS Wijeratne 

Head /Civil Engineering:    Prof. TM Pallewatta 

Head of Electrical & Computer Engineering:   Dr. (Ms) DDM Ranasinghe 

Head/Mathematics and Philosophy Engineering: Mr. G Nandasena  
 

Head /Mechanical Engineering:    Dr. (Ms) IU Aththanayaka 

Head /Language Studies:    Dr. (Ms.) NK Abeysekera 

Head /Social Studies:     Prof. Anton Piyaratne 

Head/ Legal Studies:     Mr. ENR De Silva  

Head /English Language Teaching:    Dr.SAAK Satharasinghe  

Head/ Marketing Management:    Prof. N. Abeysekara 

Head/ Accounting and Finance:   Dr. LPS Gamini 

Head/ Organizational Studies:    Mr. SAD Senanayake 
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Head/ Human Resource Management:   Mr. KP Nishantha 

Head /Mathematics:      Ms. KDVF Siriwardena 

Head /Computer Science:     Ms.IDID Ariyasinghe  

Head /Physics:      Dr. JVP Fernando    

Head /Chemistry:     Prof. R Senthilnithy 

Head /Botany:      Dr. (Ms)KOLC Karunanayake 

Head /Zoology:      Dr.KH Jayawardena 

Head/Medical Laboratory Sciences:   Dr. (Ms) DT Wijeratne 

Head /Pharmacy:     Ms.RBJ Buddhika 

 Head /Nursing:     Dr. (Ms)KA Sriyani 

Head /Basic Sciences:     Dr. (Ms.) K Vivehananthan 

Head/Psychology and Counselling:    Dr. (Ms)HMCJ Herath   

 

Senior Professors 

   Snr. Prof. in Chemistry:    Prof.KSD Perera 

 Snr. Prof. in Agricultural &                        Prof. (Ms.) CS de Silva 
 Plantation Engineering: 
 Snr. Prof. in Textile and Apparel Technology:  Prof. SA Ariadurai   

 Snr. Prof. in Civil Engineering:    Prof. KS Weerasekara 

 Snr. Prof. in Physics:     Prof. JCN Rajendra  

 Snr. Prof. in Legal Studies:    Prof. CE Guneratne 

 Snr. Prof. in Zoology:     Prof. GRR Ranawaka  

 Snr. Prof. of Botany:     Prof. (Ms.) SR Weerakoon  

 Snr. Prof. in Educational Technology:   Prof. SP Karunanayake  

Professors  

Prof. in Physics:     Prof.VPS Perera  

Prof. in Civil Engineering:    Prof. DAR Dolage 

Prof. in Textile & Apparel Technology:   Prof. CN Herath 

Prof. in Mechanical Engineering:   Prof. SAMANS Senanayake 

Prof. in Environmental Engineering    Prof. BCL Athapattu 
& Director /CESSD:   
Prof. in Physics:     Prof. GKR Senadeera 

Prof. in Chemistry:     Prof. SR Hettiarachchi  

Prof. in Botany:     Prof.HLD Weerahewa 

Prof. in Social Studies:          Prof. AS Chandrabose 

Prof. in Electrical & Computer Engineering:   Prof. HUW Rathnayake 

Prof. in Secondary & Tertiary Education:  Prof. FM Nawastheen 
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Librarian  

Actg. Librarian:      Mr.AHK Balasooriya  

Faculty Representatives 

Rep/ Faculty of Education:     Dr. AI Irugalbandara 

 Rep/ Faculty of Education:    Dr. (Ms.) DVM de Silva 

 Rep/ Faculty of Education:    Mr. DI Fernando  

 Rep/ Faculty of Humanities & Social Sciences:  Mr. SA Schurbert 

Rep/ Faculty of Humanities & Social Sciences:  Ms. HND Gamalath 

Rep/ Faculty of Natural Sciences:   Dr. MAU Mampitiya  

Rep/ Faculty of Natural Sciences:   Dr. M Punchimudiyanse 

Rep/ Faculty of Health Sciences:   Ms. PWGDP Samarasekara  

Rep/ Faculty of Health Sciences:    Dr. MP Dissanayake 

Rep./Faculty of Management Studies:   Dr. SSK Edirisinghe  

Rep./Faculty of Management Studies:   Dr. (Ms.) HDDC Liyanagamage 

Secretary 

Deputy Registrar /Academic    Mr.PK Seneviratne 

Administration:  
 

Officers of the University: 

Vice-Chancellor:     Prof. PMC Thilakarathne 

Deputy Vice-Chancellor:                Dr. AP Madurapperuma  

Registrar       Ms. WLV Jayasena  

Education:      Prof. Sasikala Kugamoorthy 

Engineering Technology:    Dr. HGPA Ratnaweera 

Health Sciences:     Dr. B Sunil S. De Silva  

Humanities & Social Sciences:    Dr. SN Morais 

Management Studies:     Prof. V Sivalogathasan 

Natural Sciences:     Prof.GWA Rohan Fernando 

Actg. Librarian:      Mr.A.H.K. Balasooriya 

Bursar:       Dr. WMKGA Wickramasinghe  

              Actg. Director / Centre for Educational   Prof. BG Jayathilleke 
Technology and Media:  
  

 Actg. Director / Regional Educational Services: Dr NS Abeysinghe 
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2.0.  Staff 
 

2.1 Organizational Chart 
 

The Organizational Structure of the Open University (Figure 2) is very similar to that of 

conventional Universities except for the additional positions such as Directors/ 

Regional Educational Services, Centre for Educational Technology & Media and 

Operations that are exclusive to ODL Universities.  The post of the Chancellor is 

honorary while the Vice-Chancellor is the Chief Executive Officer and the Accounting 

officer of the university. The Registrar is responsible for its general administration, 

custodian of the records and the property of the University. The Registrar shall be the 

Assistant Accounting officer of the university. The other Officers of the University are 

the the Deputy vice chancellor Deans of Faculties, the Director/Centre for Educational 

Technology & Media, Director/Regional Educational Services, the Librarian and the 

Bursar. 

In additionally the university has established several units headed by Senior Academic 

Staff members as partime Directors of those units in order to expand and monitor the 

university activities. For instance, 

➢ Regional Educational Services (RES) 

➢ Career Guidance unit (CGU) 

➢ Staff Development Centre (SDC) 

➢ Press and Central Dispatch Unit 

➢ National online Distance Education Service (NODES) 

➢ International Relations Units (IRU) 

➢ Industry Liasion Centre (ILC) 

➢ Centre for Educational Technology and Media (CETMe) 

➢ Consultancy & External Resources Centre -CERC 

➢ Research Unit 

➢ Centre for Environmental Studies and Sustainable Development (CESSD) 
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Figure 2 - Organizational Structure of the Open University of Sri Lanka
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2.2  Staff Details 

The staff strength by the year 2020 stood at 348 Academic staff (permanent) and 79 non-

academic administrative (permanent), 693 non-academic non-administrative  

 

Service Category  
Salary 
Code 

Existing Staff  
Permanent 

Male Female Total 

Primary Level         

Primary Grade —Unskilled  PL-1 139 20 159 

Primary Grade — Semiskilled  PL-2 38 0 38 

Primary Grade- Skilled PL-3 51 0 51 

Secondary Level      

Management Assistant — non— Technical U-MN I 104 219 323 

Management Assistant —Technical U-MT I 79 6 85 

Associate Officers — Segment 2 U-MN2 3 0 3 

Associate Officers — Segment 1 U-MN3 9 2 11 

Staff Assistant / Supra & Senior Staff Assistant U-MN4 1 0 1 

Tertiary Level      

Academic support — Segment 2  U -AS1 1 0 1 

Junior Executive / Managers U -EX1 29 23 52 

Academic support — Segment 1 U -AS2 16 5 21 

Senior Level      

Medical officer U-MO 1 - - - 

Chief Medical officer U-MO 2 - - - 

Middle.Level Executives  U-EX2 14 09 23 

Middle Level Executives U-EX 2(a) - - - 

Senior Executives U-EX3 3 1 4 

Lecturer U-AC 3  121 193 314 

Associate Professors U-AC 4 0 2 2 

Professors / Senior Professors U-AC 5 21 11 32 

Total    629 491 1120 

Table 1: Permanent Staff 
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3.0. Student Performances 
 

3.1   Enrolments 
 

3.1.1  Local Students 

The Total number of student enrolment in the year 2021 stands at 45274 

Table 2 - Student Enrolment in 2021 – Local 

 

3.1.2 Overseas Students: 

Table 3- Student Enrolment in 2021 – Overseas 
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Certificate 71 1007 940 547 912  -  - 3477 

Diploma 26 217 0 101 102 -  -  446 

Degree 6269 7665 5415 2279 3486 3710 -  28824 

Postgraduate 
Diploma 

0 0 0 5030 0 -   - 5030 

Masters 149 158 198 1086 140 2   1733 

StART@OUSL*  -  - -   -  - -  5723 5723 

Others  -  - -  -   - -  -  0 

M.Phil, PhD 16 01 03 02 16 03 - 41 

Total 6531 9048 6556 9045 4656 3715 5723 45274 

Faculty Programme Number 

Humanities & Social Sciences Bachelor of Youth and Community 
Development 

02 
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3.2    Completions 
 

3.2.1  Convocation 

The 34th (i), 1st half of the convocation was held at the New Conference Hall of Central 

Campus of OUSL on 02nd November 2021. Convocation addresses were given by Prof. M. 

A. T. Dissanayake.  The 34th (ii), 2nd half of the convocation was held on 26th July 2022 and 

no convocation addresses were given. A Total of 5789 students graduated at the 

convocation obtaining undergraduate, postgraduate and doctoral degrees. They 

represented all the faculties of the university.  

Faculty Ph. D M.Phil Masters 
Postgraduate 

Diploma 
Degree Total 

Education 1 1 42 2879 94 3017 

Engineering 
Technology  

1                 1 57 -  344 403 

Health Science 1 -  -  -  532 533 

Humanities & 
Social Sciences 

-  -  11 10 1055 1076 

Management 
Studies 

       1  -  49 38 249 338 

Natural Science -  2 - - 420 422 

Total 4 4 160 2927 2694 5788 

Table 4 - Awards at Convocation by Faculty 

3.2.2  Award Ceremonies 

The Award Ceremonies to award certificates and diplomas were not held in this year. 
Total of 2942 students received various certificates and diplomas.  The statistics is given 
in Table 10. 

Table 5:  Awards at Award Ceremonies by Faculty 

Type of Award 
Higher 

Diploma 
Diploma 

Advance 

Certificate Total 
Faculty Certificate 

Education - 292 63 0 355 

Engineering 
Technology 

12 322 11 2 347 

Humanities & Social 
Sciences 

64 55 644 198 961 

Health Science - - - - 0 

Management Studies 1214 - - - 1214 

Natural Science 1 7 57 0 65 

Total 1291 676 775 200 2942 
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3.3 Student Achievements 
 

FACULTY OF ENGINEERING TECHNOLOGY  

O.P KULSHRESHTHA GOLD MEDAL FOR THE BEST STUDENT IN BACHELOR OF 

TECHNOLOGY HONOURS IN ENGINEERING – 2020 

Donated by : Dr. O.P. Kulshreshtha 
Awarded to : Miss. Maddhage Dona Ruwanthi Nayomi 
 
VIRTUSA ACADEMIC EXCELLENCE GOLD MEDAL FOR THE BEST STUDENT IN BACHELOR OF 

SOFTWARE ENGINEERING HONOURS – 2020 

Donated by : Virtusa Pvt Ltd 
Awarded to : Mr. Udagedara Kasun Madushanka Senarathne 
 
THURAIRAJAH GOLD MEDAL FOR THE BEST PROJECT IN BACHELOR OF TECHNOLOGY 

HONOURS IN ENGINEERING – 2020 

Donated by : Engineering Research Unit 
Awarded to : Miss. Maddhage Dona Ruwanthi Nayomi 
 
LIYANAGURUGE ASSIE ANNETTE DE SILVA GOLD MEDAL FOR THE BEST STUDENT IN 
AGRICULTURE IN BACHELOR OF INDUSTRIAL STUDIES HONOURS – 2020 
Donated By : Dr. P. Roshan De Silva 
Awarded to : Ms. Ukwattage Sachini Weerasinghe Ukwatta 
 
GOLD MEDAL FOR THE BEST STUDENT IN CIVIL ENGINEERING IN BACHELOR OF 

TECHNOLOGY HONOURS IN ENGINEERING – 2020 

Donated by : Prof. Kolita Weerasekera 
Awarded to : Mr. Rathnayake Mudiyanselage Ishan Eranda Rathnayake 
 
GOLD MEDAL FOR THE BEST PROJECT IN CIVIL ENGINEERING IN BACHELOR OF 

TECHNOLOGY HONOURS IN ENGINEERING - 2020 

Donated by : Prof. Kolita Weerasekera 
Awarded to : Miss. Imiya Mudiyanselage Umanda Indeewari Wijayarathna 
 
ENGINEERING RESEARCH UNIT GOLD MEDAL FOR THE BEST TECHNICAL PAPER BASED ON 

THE PROJECT IN BACHELOR OF TECHNOLOGY HONOURS IN ENGINEERING – 2020 

Donated by : Engineering research unit 
Awarded to : Miss. Maddhage Dona Ruwanthi Nayomi 
 
S M ABEYGUNESEKERA DE SILVA GOLD MEDAL FOR THE BEST STUDENT IN 

MECHATRONICS ENGINEERING IN BACHELOR OF TECHNOLOGY HONOURS IN 

ENGINEERING - 2020 

Donated by : Prof. Clarence W. De Silva 
Awarded to : Mr. Kamalldeen Musthaq Ahamed 
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FACULTY OF HEALTH SCIENCES  

a) Course Prize Winners List 

Following Students are won the Cash award of Rs. 2000.00 and a Certificate for the 

following programmes. 

• Department of Nursing 

1. NGU5300(Theoretical Orientation in Nursing)- Ms. W.K.H.Perera 

2. NGU5303 (Research Methods in Nursing)-Ms.U.G.D. Malkumari 

3. NGU5405(Paediatric Nursing)- Ms. H.G.M.M. Bandara 

4. NGU5406 (Psychiatry & Mental Health Nursing)-Ms. W.K.H. Perera 

5. NGU6304 (Gerontological Nursing)-Ms.A.M.I.D. Abesingha 

6. NGU6305(Palliative Care Nursing)- Ms. H.A.A.D. Perera 

7. NGU6311 (Research in Nursing)- Ms.W.T.N. Perera 

8. BSU5335(Health Statistics)- Ms. W.K.H. Perera 

• Department of Pharmacy  

1. FMU3206 (Essential Mathematics for Pharmacy) - W.R.C.D. Bandara  

2. FMU3302 (Physical Pharmacy) - W.R.C.D. Bandara  

3. FMU4300 (Pathophysiology) - M.N.M. Nasvin 

4. FMU4303 (Pharmacology I) - K.C.I.M. Karunathilaka  

5. FMU4501 (Pharmaceutics II) - H.D.D. Shammika  

6. FMU5202 (Laws & Ethics for Pharmacy) - M.N.M. Nasvin  

7. FMU5207 (Introduction to Pharmaceutical Research) - R.M.T. Sampath 

8. FMU5400 (Pharmacology II) - H.D.G. Silva  

9. FMU5403 (Pharmaceutical Technology I) - R.F. Sifana 

10. FMU6300 (Pharmaceutical Biotechnology & Genetic engineering) - M.N.A. Vithanage 

11. FMU6302 (Therapeutics) - W.S. Sandamalie  

• Department of Medical Laboratory Sciences  

1. MDU4209 (General Pathology) - Ms. A.N. Fathima Rifna 

2. MDU4307 (Virology and Mycology) - Ms. A.N. Fathima Rifna 

3. MDU4406 (Histopathology) - Ms. M.D.A.M. Manchanayake 

4. MDU4501 (Haematology II) - Ms. N.D. Baduge 

5. MDU5206 (Cytology) - Ms. S. shiffana 

6. MDU5303 (Immunology and Serology) - Ms. A.N. Fathima Rifna 

7. MDU5308 (Research Methodology) -Ms. C.D. Pathiranage 

8. MDU6301 (Cytogenetics and Molecular Genetics) - Ms. Shiffana 

9. MDU6302 (Public Health Microbiology) - Mr. M.M. Hunais 

10. MDU6355 (Immunohistochemistry) - Ms. M.M. Anuradha 

11. MDU6404 (Medical Laboratory Quality Management & Accreditation) -Mr. M.M. Hunais 

12. MDU6451 (Transfusion and Transplantation Science) - Ms. Shiffana 

13. MDU6503 (Clinical Biochemistry III) -Ms. S.L. De Silva 

 

• Department of Basic Sciences 

1. BSU3230 (Human Anatomy) - W.Y.C. Fernando  

2. BSU3340 (Pharmaceutical Chemistry I) - W.R.C.D. Bandara 

3. BSU3340 (Pharmaceutical Chemistry I) - W.Y.C. Fernando  

4. BSU3431 (Human Physiology) - W.Y.C. Fernando 

5. BSU4230 (Basic Statistics) - N.G.H. Disna 

6. BSU4340 (Pharmaceutical Chemistry III) - O.C.G. Perera 
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• Department of Psychology and Counselling 

Semester I Courses 

1. PLU3301 (Introduction to Psychology)  - M.A.R.Saumika 
2. PLU3303 (Motivation & Emotion) - M.S. Chathurya 
3. PLU3205 (Academic Writing in Psychology) - M.S. Chathurya 
4. PLU3307 (Lifespan Development) - P.L. De Soysa 
5. PLU4301 (Child Psychology) - U.M. Mahinnagoda 
6. PLU4302 (Abnormal Psychology) - M.A.S. Farwin 
7. PLU4304(Brain & Behavior)  -  S.A.H.D. Jayathilake 
8. PLU4306 (Schools of Thought in Psychology) - M.W.D. Wickramarathne 
9. PLU4310 (Educational Psychology)  - E.A.D.S. Gunapala 

Semester II Courses 

1. PLU3204 (Ethics in Psychology)  -N.S. Ramanayake  
2. PLU3308 (Social Psychology)  - K.M.S. Silva & U.M.Mahinnagoda 
3. PLU3309 (Introduction to Counselling Psychology)  - P.L. De Soysa  
4. PLU3310 (Biological Psychology) -  M. S. Chathurya  
5. PLU3311 (Cognitive Psychology) - K.M.S. Silva  
6. PLU4303 (Introduction to Statistics in Psychology) - S.A.H.D. Jayathilake  
7. PLU4305 (Language & Cognition)  - M.W.D. Wickramaratne  
8. PLU4308 (Industrial Organizational Psychology)  - M.W.D. Wickramaratne 

b) Dean’s List of Distinguished Students 

A total of 27 students from the BSc Hons Degree in Nursing (04), Bachelor of Medical 
Laboratory Sciences Honours Degree (12), Bachelor of Pharmacy Honours Degree (03) and 
BSc Hons Degree in Psychology (08) were placed in the Dean’s List 01 from the Nursing, 02 
from the BMLS, 01 from the BPharm and 02 from the BSc Psychology Hons Degrees were 
awarded scholarships to the value of 21 credits tuition fees, based on high academic 
achievements. 
 

C) Astron Scholarship for Pharmacy- Academic Year 2019/20 
 
Ms. N.G.H. Disna (Reg. No.  518183822 an Undergraduate of the Bachelor of Pharmacy Honours 
programme won the Astraon Annual Scholarship for Pharmacy (A Scholarship awarded by the 
Astron Limited ) for the Academic year 2019/2020 
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4.0. Reports of Faculties 
 

4.1   Faculty of Education 
 

4.1.1 Overview 
The Faculty of Education offers a wide range 

of programmes from Certificate to Post 

Graduate levels in line with its vision to be a 

leader of the advancement of knowledge and 

professional practice in education as a 

fundamental endeavour through Open and 

Distance Learning in Sri Lanka and in the 

Region. It is one of the largest providers of 

initial and continuous professional 

development programmes for teachers in the fields of pre-school, primary and secondary and 

special needs education through the distance mode in Sri Lanka. The Student enrolment in the 

programmes offered by the Faculty is over 7000 in each academic year and the pass rate is above 

80%. Research is an integral component of the activities within the Faculty and the staff members 

are actively involved in a number of research projects. 

The Faculty of Education presently consists of the following three Departments of Study: 

1. Department of Secondary and Tertiary Education 

2. Department of Early Childhood and Primary Education 

3. Department of Special Needs Education 

4. Department of Educational Leadership and Management 

The fourth department of the Faculty - The Department of Educational Leadership and 

Management is established in January 2020.  

Each Department is under a Head and all Departments are collectively responsible for the 

academic activities of the Faculty. 
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4.1.2 Student Enrolment and Completion in individual Programmes 

 

S- Sinhala T – Tamil E- English 
Table 6: Student Enrolment and Completion in individual programmes – Education 

 

Programme Name Level Medium 
New 

Enrolment 
Completed 

Department of Special Needs Education 

Bachelor of Education in Special 
Needs Education B.Ed. (SNE) 

Bachelor S, E - - 

Bachelor of Education honours in 
Special Needs Education  

Bachelor S, E 110 67 

Postgraduate Diploma in Special 
Needs Education (PGDSNE) 

Postgraduate S, T, E 44 33 

Master of Education in Special 
Needs Education 

Master S, T, E 97 - 

Department of Early Childhood and Primary Education 

Certificate in Pre-school 
Education Programme 

Certificate S, E 402 - 

Advanced Certificate in Pre-
school Education Programme 

Certificate S, E 30 63 

Diploma in Early Childhood & 
Primary Education  

Diploma S, T, E - 292 

Bachelor of Education Honours in 
Primary Education 

Bachelor S,E 1140 - 

Department of Secondary and Tertiary Education 

Short course on Research 
Methodology Sinhala 

Certificate S 65 40 

Short course on Research 
Methodology English 

Certificate E 58 36 

Short course on Research 
Methodology Tamil 

Certificate T 38 20 

Short Course on Early Childhood  
Development 

Certificate S, T, E 38 20 

Bachelor of Education (Natural 
Sciences) Programme 

Bachelor S, T, E 9 - 

Bachelor of Education Honours in 
Drama and Theatre 

Bachelor S 35 21 

Postgraduate Diploma in 
Education Programme 

Postgraduate S, T, E 1924 2840 

Master of Education Programme 
(Course work) 

Master S, T, E 349 - 

Master of Arts in Teacher 
Education (Internatinal) 
Programme 

Master E 108 - 

Master of Education  Master S, T, E - 375 

MPhil/PhD MPhil/PhD E - - 
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4.1.3 Student Enrolment and Staff in individual Programmes 

 

 

Table 7: Student Enrolment and staff in individual programmes – Education 

4.1.4 New Courses / Programmes 

S- Sinhala T – Tamil E- English 

Table 8: New Courses / Programmes– Education 

 

Programme 
Total 

Students 

Total Academic 
and Academic 
support Staff  

Total Non-
Academic 

Staff 

Certificate in Pre-School Education 517 38        29 

Advanced Certificate in Pre School Education 30 

Diploma in Early Childhood & Primary 
Education 

101 

Bachelor of Education Honours in Primary 
Education 

1895 

Bachelor of Education Honours in Drama and 
Theatre  

108 

Bachelor of Education Honours In Special 
Needs Education (B.Ed(Sne)) 

267 

Bachelor’s in education (Natural Sciences) 
9 

Post Graduate Dip. In Special Needs Education 52 

Postgraduate Diploma in Education 4978 

MA in Teacher Education (International 
Programme) 

7 

Master of Education 
177 

Master of Education (Coursework) 697 

Master of Education in Special Needs 
Education 

97 

Master of Teacher Education 
108 

MPhil/PhD  

Course / Programme 
 

Medium Level 

Master of Arts in Education S, T, E 10 

Post Graduate Diploma in Educational Leadership and 
Management Programme  

S, T, E  8 

Short Corse on School Management  S, T, E NA 

Short Course in Capacity Development for the Officers 
of the Sri Lanka Education Administrative Service 
(SLEAS  

S, T, E NA 

Short course on Early Childhood Development  S, T, E NA 
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4.1.5 Courses Offered Online 

 Course   Course Title   Level  Medium  
Department of Special Need Education 

SNPA601 Psychological Foundations of Special Needs Education 10 S/T/E 
SNPA602 Sociological and Philosophical Foundations of Special Needs 

Education 
10 S/T/E 

SNPA903 Curriculum, Instruction and Assessment in Special Needs 
Education 

10 S/T/E 

SNPA904 Managing Special Needs Education within the Existing 
Education System 

10 S/T/E 

SNPA605 Transitions for Students with Special Education Needs 10 S/T/E 
SNPA606 Assistive and Adaptive Technologies in Special Needs 

Education 
10 S/T/E 

SNPA608 Quantitative Research in Special Education 10 S/T/E 
SNPA609 Qualitative Research in Special Needs Education 10 S/T/E 

SNU5535 Psychology for Special Needs Education 5 S/T/E 

SNU5336 Philosophical Foundation of Special Needs Education 5 S/T/E 

SNU5237 Sociological Foundation of Special Needs Education 5 S/T/E 

SNU5338 Introduction to Exceptionalities & Learning Needs  5 S/T/E 

SNU5239 Emerging Trends in Special Needs Education  5 S/T/E 

SNU5540 Comparative Education and Educational Problems  5 S/T/E 

SNU5341 Educational Guidance and Counselling  5 S/T/E 

SNU5242 Inclusive Education  5 S/T/E 

SNU5343 Measurement & Evaluation in Special Needs Education 5 S/T/E 

SNU5244 Curriculum, Theory & practice  5 S/T/E 

SNE5546 Creating Best Educational Environment for Children in 
Inclusive Classroom   

5 S/T/E 

SNE5247 Dealing with Problems of Children in Inclusive Classroom  5 S/T/E 

SNU6620 Educational Technology for Special Needs Education 6 S/T/E 

SNU6221 Primary Education  6 S/T/E 

SNU6822 Project 6 S/T/E 

SNU6223 Child Rights 6 S/T/E 

SNU6224 Educational Management  6 S/T/E  

SNU6225 Rehabilitation & Community Based Rehabilitation  6 S/T/E 

SNU6826 Teaching Practice  6 S/T/E 

SNE6546 Curriculum Development & Adaptation for Children in 
Inclusive Classroom  

6 S/T/E 

SNP8530 Psychology for Special Needs Education 8 S/T/E 

SNP8531 Philosophical Foundation of Special Needs Education  8 S/T/E 

SNP8532 Educational Technology for Special Needs Education  8 S/T/E 
SNP8333 Measurement and Evaluation in Special Needs Education 8 S/T/E 

SNP8334 Introduction to Exceptionalities and Learning Needs  8 S/T/E 

SNP8335 Sociological Foundation of Special Needs Education  8 S/T/E 

SNP8336 Emerging Trends in Education  8 S/T/E 

SNP8237 Rehabilitation and Community Based Rehabilitation  8 S/T/E 

SNP8338 Educational Guidance and Counselling 8 S/T/E 

SNE8839 Teaching Practice  8 S/T/E 

Department of Secondary and Tertiary Education 

STP9811 Psychological Foundations of Education 09 E 

STP9812 Social and Philosophical Foundations of Education 09 E 
STP9813 Research Methods of Education 09 E 

STP9617 Teacher Education 09 E 

STP9618 Management in Education 09 E 

STP9619 Guidance and Counselling in Education 09 E 

STP9632 Computer Technology in Education 09 E 
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S- Sinhala T – Tamil E- English 
Table 9: Courses Offered Online– Education 

STP 9540 The Teacher Educator as a Teaching-Learning Specialist 09 E 

STP 9541 The Teacher Educator as a Curriculum Developer 09 E 

STP 9542 The Teacher Educator as an Educational Technologist 09 E 

STP 9543 The Teacher Educator as a Professional 09 E 

STP 9544 The Teacher Educators as an Educational Manager and Leader 09 E 

STP 9545 The Teacher Educators as a Researcher 09 E 

STP 9846 Learning Portfolio 09 E 

STU5511 Educational Psychology 05 & 06 S 

STU5512 Foundations of Education 05 & 06 S 
STU5513 Comparative Education and Educational Problems 05 & 06 S 

STU5314 Guidance and Counseling in Education 05 & 06 S 

STU5415 Educational Management 05 & 06 S 

STU5816 
Educational Technology for Teaching Science and Mathematics 
(NS only) 

05 & 06 S 

STU5817 Educational Technology for Drama and Theatre (D&T only) 05 & 06 S 

Department of Early Childhood and Primary Education  
EPU3530 Child Development  3 E 
EPU3331 Perspectives in Early Childhood and Primary Education 3 E 
EPU3532 Curriculum Studies and Practicum – Language Studies 

(Sinhala/Tamil/English) 
3 E 

EPU3533 Curriculum Studies and Practicum –  
Mathematics 

3 E 

EPU3234 Curriculum Studies and Practicum – Aesthetic  
& Creative Studies  

3 E 

EPU3235 Curriculum Studies and Practicum –  
Environmental Studies 

3 E 

EPU3236 Curriculum Studies and Practicum – Health Nutrition and 
Safety Measures 

3 E 

EPU3337 Integrated Approach in Pre-Primary & Primary Teaching 3 E 
EPU3338 Design and Planning of Early Childhood  

Institutions and Primary Schools 
3 E 

EPU4531 Perspectives in Teaching and Learning 4 E 
EPU4232 Home- School - Community Relationship 4 E 
EPU4533 Field Practicum in Eary Childhood &   

Primary Education 
4 E 

EPU4534 Adjustment Problems in Early Childhood  
& Primary Years 

4 E 

EPU4335 Reflective Learning  4 E 
EPU4236 Professional Role of Early Childhood &  

Primary Education Teachers 
4 E 

EPU5550 Educational Psychology for Primary Education  5 E 
EPU5551 Foundations of Education  for Primary Education  5 E 
EPU5552 Educational Technology for Primary Education  5 E 
EPU5353 Mathematics  for Primary Teaching  5 E 
EPU5354 Aesthetic for Primary Teaching  5 E 
EPU5255 Science and Environment  for Primary Teaching  5 E 
EPU5256 Child Rights  for Primary Education  5 E 
EPU5557 First Language – Sinhala  for Primary School Teachers     5 S 
EPU6230 Inclusive Education in Primary School Setting 6 E 
EPU6231 Guidance & Counseling in Primary School Setting 6 E 
EPU6332 Contemporary Issues in Primary Education 6 E 
EPU6533 Assessment in Primary Education  6 E 
EPU6234 Managing Primary Classroom 6 E 
EPU6835 Teaching Practice at Primary Level 6 E 
EPU6836 Project in Primary Education 6 E 
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4.2   Faculty of Engineering Technology 
 

4.2.1 Overview 

The Faculty of Engineering Technology is 

one of the six academic faculties of the OUSL. 

The administrative and academic head of the 

Faculty is the Dean, and presently Dr. HGPA 

Ratnaweera serves as the Dean with effect 

from 07th July 2021. Previously Prof. DAR 

Dolage served as the Dean unitl 06th July 

2021. Mr.K.Wijikumar assumed duties as the 

Assistant Registrar of the Faculty  with effect 

from 23rd April 2021. Mr. S.M Janaka 

Ranjana Senanayake served as in the same 

position until 22nd April 2021.  

The faculty consists of the following six Academic Departments:  

Departments of Study and Heads    

1. Agricultural and Plantation Engineering: 

Dr H.K.L.K. Gunasekara until 14/10/2021 

Dr. AGB Arugoda has been appointed from 15/10/2021 

2. Civil Engineering: 

Dr. P. A. K. Karunananda until 31/06/2021 

Prof. T M Pallewatta has been appointed from 01/07/2021 

3. Electrical and Computer Engineering:  

Dr. D.D.M Ranasingha 

4. Mathematics and Philosophy of Engineering: 

Mr. G. Nandasena 

5. Mechanical Engineering: 

Dr.  I.U. Atthanayake 

6. Textile and Apparel Technology:  

Dr. MER Perera until 28/02/2021 

Dr. (Mrs.) D.S. Wijerathne has been appointed from 01/03/2021 

 

The Faculty Board of the Faculty of Engineering Technology regulates all academic activities in 

the faculty under the direction of the Senate of the OUSL.  

Academic programmes 

The Bachelor of Technology (BTech Hons) degree programme is offered in the specialisations of 

Agricultural and Plantation, Civil, Mechanical, Mechatronics, Electrical, Computer, Electronics and 

Telecommunication, and Textile and Clothing Engineering. The Bachelor of Industrial Studies (BIS 

Hons) study programme is offered in Agriculture, Apparel production and management, Fashion 

design, and product development and Textile manufacture. The Bachelor of Software Engineering 

(BSE Hons.) Programme is conducted by the Centre for Information Technology Education 

Services (CITES). 
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Learners enrolled in the BTech, and BIS programmes can exit with a Higher Diploma, having 

fulfilled the requirements for the award. The faculty offers an Advanced Certificate programme in 

Apparel Technology. Learners are allowed to take a maximum of 18 course credits as Stand Alone, 

without fulfilling their pre-requisites, without having to enroll in a programme of study. 

The programmes offered by the faculty are recognised by the University Grants Commission and 

are designed to meet the requirements stipulated in the Sri Lanka Qualification Framework 

(SLQF). Our graduates are successful in the public and the private sectors, in Sri Lanka and 

abroad. Some have pursued post-graduate studies in local universities and abroad. At present, 

our BTech programme is being re-evaluated by the Institution of Engineers Sri Lanka (IESL), for 

its recognition. The Institution of Engineers Sri Lanka provides a career path to become a 

Chartered Engineer, and to apply for the Associate Membership, one requires a minimum 2Cs and 

a S pass at the GCE Advanced Level Examination, in the Mathematics Stream, obtained during one 

and the same sitting. 

The faculty offers a one-year master’s degree programme in Energy Management (offered by the 

Department of Mechanical Engineering) and a two-year Master of Science programmes in 

Industrial Engineering and Structural Engineering (offered by the Department of Civil 

Engineering). The Open University also enrolls learners to Master of Philosophy (MPhil) and 

Doctor of Philosophy (PhD) degrees. 

The faculty offers its programmes of study in the Open Distance Learning (ODL) mode and the 

academic coordination is done by competent permanent academics and visiting academics from 

the industry. All departments took a great interest in revising the course material as part of the 

effort to implementing the revised curriculums. Moreover, the staff took keen interest in offering 

courses online. 

The faculty uses the Learning Management System (LMS) MOODLE to facilitate online access to 

all courses. Practicing Self Learning, learning in study groups (i.e. Collaborative Learning) and 

timely completion of learning activities are important to ensure your success. The main mode of 

course delivery is through Self Instructional Course Material. The teachers provide you with 

feedback and necessary guidance to move forward. Learners are required to attend the Day 

Schools that are a few face-to-face interactive sessions held during the academic year, conducted 

via a video conferencing system. The Open University is moving towards online examinations and 

the faculty may follow the same as per UGC guidelines. 
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4.2.2 Student Enrolment and Completion in individual Programmes 

S- Sinhala T – Tamil E- English 
Table 10: Student Enrolment and Completion in individual programmes – Engineering Technology 

 

4.2.3 Student Enrolment and Staff in individual Programmes 
 

Programme 
Total 

Students 

Total Academic 
and Academic 
support Staff 

Total non-
Academic 

Staff 

Advanced Certificate in Apparel Technology 71 87 85 

Stand Alone Course in Engineering  0 

Diploma In Information Systems and Technology 26 

Bachelor of Indust. Studies 997 

Bachelor of Software Engineering 2373 

Bachelor of Technology (Engineering) 2899 

Master of Energy Management  113 

Msc in Structural Engineering 36 

MPhil/PhD  

Table 11: Student Enrolment and staff in individual programmes – Engineering Technology 

Programme Name Level Medium 
New 

Enrolment 
Completed 

Short course on effective use of 
AutoCAD for Engineering drawings 

Certificate E 78 78 

Certificate in Professional web design Certificate 
E 
 

17 - 

Short Course in Graphic design Certificate 
E 
 

9 9 

Short course in Revit Architecture Certificate E 13 13 
Stand Alone courses in Engineering Certificate E - - 
Certificate in Dynamic Graphic 
Designing 

Certificate E - - 

Advanced Certificate in Apparel 
Technology 

Certificate E, S, T 51 11 

Advanced Certificate in Industrial 
Studies 

Certificate E - 02 

Diploma in Information Systems and 
Technology 

Diploma E 14 19 

Higher Diploma in Industrial Studies Diploma E - 102 
Higher Diploma in Software 
Engineering   

Diploma 
E - 13 

Higher Diploma in Technology Diploma E - 204 
Bachelor of Technology Honours in 
Engineering 

Bachelor E 705 244 

Bachelor of Industrial Studies 
(Honours) 

Bachelor 
E 300 83 

Bachelor of Software Engineering Bachelor E 2373 17 
Master of Energy Management  Master E 113 57 
Master of Technology in Apparel 
Production & Management 

Master 
E - - 

Master of Science in Structural 
Engineering 

Master 
E 36 - 

MPhil/PhD MPhil/PhD E 04                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        - 
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4.2.4 New Courses / Programmes 
Course / Programme Medium Level 

AGI5470 Food Microbiology English 5 

AGI6486 - Field and Laboratory of Plant protection English 6 

AGI5166 Research Methodology English 5 

AGI5373 Agroforestry English 5 

AGM3203 Communication skills English 3 
AGM4307 Economics and marketing for engineers English 4 
DMX6403 English 6 

EEW5403 Industrial Training II [Electronic and Communication] English 5 

EEW5501 Industrial Training (Computer) English 5 

EEX5150 Electronic Circuit Design English 5 

EEX5270 Information Security English 5 

EEX5280 Creative Design English 5 

EEX5333 Communication Theory & Systems English 5 

EEX5335 Operating Systems English 5 

EEX5338 High voltage engineering English 5 

EEX5346 Embedded Systems English 5 

EEX5348 Electrical machines and drives English 5 

EEX5351 Digital Electronic Systems English 5 

EEX5352 Power Systems II English 5 

EEX5360 Signals and Systems English 5 

EEX5434 Data Communications & Networking English 5 

EEX5453 Power electronics English 5 

EEX5466 Advanced Database Systems English 5 

EEX5467 Software Testing and Quality Assurance English 5 

EEX5536 Computer Architecture English 5 

EEX5564 Computer Architecture and Operating Systems English 5 

EEM6201 Professional Practice English 6 

EEW6502 Industrial training II (Electrical power -undergraduate) English 6 

EEX6181 Research Methodology and Project Identification (Computer 
Engineering) 

English 6 

EEX6182 Research methodology and project identification (Electrical 
engineering) 

English 6 

EEX6183 Research methodology and project identification (Electronics 
and Communication) 

English 6 

EEX6236 Advanced Computer Architecture English 6 

EEX6253 Physical & Opto Electronics English 6 

EEX6335 Compiler Design English 6 

EEX6339 Wireless Communications English 6 

EEX6354 Comprehensive Electrical Engineering Design English 6 

EEX6441 Electromagnetism & Wave Propagation English 6 

EEX6450 Analog Electronic Systems & Instrumentation English 6 

EEX7171 Emerging Technologies English 7 

EEX7231 Advanced circuit design and analysis English 7 
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EEX7241 Neural Networks & Fuzzy Logic Applications English 7 

EEX7244 Data Mining English 7 

EEX7333 Microwave Devices and Antennas  English 7 

EEX7337 System Design in Groups English 7 

EEX7339 Information Theory and Coding  English 7 

EEX7340 AI Techniques & Agent Technology English 7 

EEX7355 Comprehensive Electronics Design  English 7 

EEX7432 Power systems planning operations and control English 7 

EEX7434 Digital Signal Processing English 7 

EEX7436 Processor Design English 7 

Table 12: – New Courses / Programmes -Engineering Technology 

4.2.5 Courses Offered Online 

Course Code & Title Level Medium 

Department of Textile and Apparel Technology 

TAX6367 Advanced Colouration  6 E 
TAY7880 Engineering Research Project (Textile and Clothing Eng) 7 E 

TAX5648 Fabric Structure and Analysis 5 E 
TAM6457 Fashion Marketing 6 E 
TAZ2587 Mathematics and Science for Textile Technology 2 E & S 
TAX3458 Fibre Science and Technology 3 E & S 
TAY2690 Advanced Certificate Project 2 E & S 
TAY6883 Research Project (Textile Manufacture) 6 E 
TAY6882 Research Project (Apparel Production) 6 E 
TAX4462 Pattern Development 4 E 
TAY2886 Apparel Technology 2 E & S 
TAX4361 Knitting Technology 4 E 
TAX3370 Textile Preparation 3 E 
TAY4181 Group Project (Textile & Clothing Engineering) 4 E 
TAX4571 Textile Colouration & Finishing 4 E 
TAI6580 Fashion Show Production 6 E 
TAI4371 Concept of Fashion 4 E 
TAI4472 Concept of Fashion design 4 E 
TAI3332 Garment Accessories 3 E 
TAI5277 Computer Aided Fashion Illustration 5 E 
TAI5375 Design Through Draping  5 E 

TAI5579 Theoretical Aspects of Visual Presentation and Exhibition Design 5 E 

TAI5376 Computer Aided Pattern Drafting 5 E 
TAI5478 Fashion Design Development 5 E 
TAI2289 Introducing Fashion 2 E & S 
TAX7369 Engineering Aspects of Weaving 7 E 
TAX7368 Speciality Fabrics 7 E 
TAX6366 Yarn Manufacture II 6 E 
TAI4373 Fashion Illustration II 4 E 
TAY5384 Inspiration of Fashion Design 5 E 
TAI3270 Fashion Illustration I 3 E 
TAY6885 Creating and exhibiting fashion products 6 E 
TAX7464 Yarn & Fabric Mechanics 7 E 
TAX5547 Plant Utilities 5 E 
TAX3459 Yarn Manufacture I 3 E 
TAX4540 Garment Manufacture  4 E 
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TAX6454 Technical Textiles 6 E 
TAX6556 Ergonomics 6 E 
TAX5648 Fabric structure and analysis   5 E 
TAX5349 Nonwoven Textiles 5 E 
TAX6455 Fabric Technology 6 E 
TAX6263 Textile Product Engineering 6  E 
TAZ3536 Statistics for Industrial Studies 3 E 
TAZ5550 Quantitative Techniques 5 E 
TAI2886 Apparel Technology 2 E & S 
TAI3533 Pattern Construction  3 E 
TAI4442 Advanced Pattern Construction  4 E 
TAJ5353 History and Traditions of Clothing 5 E 
TAI5552 Principles of Fashion design 5 E 
TAX4441 Knitted Garment Technology 4 E 
TAX4539 Quality Assurance for Textile & Clothing 4 E 
TAX4571 Textile Coloration & Finishing 4 E 
TAI2488 Laboratory practice and industrial exposure  2 E & S 
TAM3535 Management Studies 3 E 
TAM5861 Textile Management & Merchandising 5 E 
TAK3237 Introduction to Computer Applications 3 E 
TAX4560 Woven Fabric Technology 4 E 
TAX3331 Garment Analysis and Sewing Machinery 3 E 
TAI4344 Industrial Garment Washing and Finishing 4 E 
TAX4438 Production Planning and Organization  4 E 
TAX2585 Introducing Textiles 2 E & S 
TAX3530 Fibre to Fabric 3 E 
TAX6265 Advanced Weaving Preparation and Machinery 6 E 
TAI4243 Foundation garments 4 E 
TAM3234 Basics of Human Resource Management 3 E 
TAM4445 Apparel Merchandising 4 E 
TAI5246 Current Topics in Textile and Clothing 5 E 
TAX5551 Textile Colouration 5 E 
TAY4181 Group Project (Textile & Clothing Eng.) 4 E 
TAI4474 Process of fashion design 4 E 

Department of Agricultural and Plantation Engineering 

AGI3551 Agricultural Biology 3 E 

AGI3450 Land & Soil Tillage Management 3 E 

AGI3552 Crop Production & Technology 3 E 

AGI3553 Plant Protection 3 E 

AGM3354 Principles of Economics 3 E 

AGI4561 Postharvest Biology & Technology 4 E 

AGM4363 Agricultural Marketing 4 E 

AGI4559 Food & Nutrition 4 E 

AGI4555 Irrigation & Drainage Engineering 4 E 

AGI4356 Soil Science 4 E 

AGI5364 Farm power and Machinery 5 E 

AGX5565 Soil Plant and water relationship 5 E 

AGZ5367 Experimental Design 5 E 

AGJ5368 Indigenous knowledge of herbal products 5 E 

AGI5569 Molecular biology and biotechnology 5 E 

AGI5572 Fisheries and aquaculture 5 E 

AGX5415 Horticulture and Landscape Technology  5 E 

AGX5376 Crop Processing  5 E 

AGI5274 Fruit Crops and Cut Flower Production 5 E 



30 
 

AGX5277 Food Safety and Quality Management Systems  5 E 

AGM5475 Economics and Management  5 E 

AGX6478 Hydrology and Water Resources 6 E 

AGM6379 Agricultural Extension 6 E 

AGJ6381 Rural Sociology 6 E 

AGI6582 Food Processing 6 E 

AGI6585 Applications in Biotechnology 6 E 

AGX6283 Ground Water and Resource Management 6 E 

AGX6284 Impacts of Climate Change on Water Resources 6 E 

AGX6387 Plantation Crop Technology 6 E 

AGX6490 Soil and Water Conservation 6 E 

AGI5544 Post-harvest biology and Technology II 5 E 

AGM4307 Economics and marketing for engineers 4 E 

AGI4460 Animal Husbandry and Production 4 E 

Department of Electrical and Computer Engineering 

EEI3372 Programming in Python 3 E 

EEX3262 Introduction to Object Oriented Programming 3 E 

EEX3266 Information Systems and Data Management 3 E 

EEX3269 Mobile Application Development for Android 3 E 

EEX3331 Electrical measurements and instrumentation 3 E 

EEX3336 Communications and Computer Technology 3 E 

EEX3351 Electronics I 3 E 

EEX3410 Introduction to Electrical Engineering 3 E 

EEX3417 Software Development for Engineers 3 E 

EEW4301 Industrial training I (Electronics) 4 E 

EEW4403 Industrial Training I [Electronic and Communication] 4 E 

EEW4502 Industrial training II (Electrical power) 4 E 

EEX4330 Communications 4 E 

EEX4331 Circuit Theory and Design 4 E 

EEX4332 Electrical Power 4 E 

EEX4347 Software Engineering 4 E 

EEX4351 Electronics II 4 E 

EEX4362 Object Oriented Design and Programming 4 E 

EEX4366 Data Modelling and Database Systems 4 E 

EEX4434 Electrical Installations 4 E 

EEX4435 Data Structures and Algorithms 4 E 

EEX4436 Microprocessors and Interfacing 4 E 

EEX4448 Electrical machines 4 E 

EEX4542 Power systems I 4 E 

EEY4181 Group Project (Computer Engineering) 4 E 

EEY4182 Group project (Electrical engineering) 4 E 

EEY4183 Group Project (Electronics and Communication) 4 E 

EEW5403 Industrial Training II [Electronic and Communication] 5 E 

EEW5501 Industrial Training (Computer) 5 E 

EEX5150 Electronic Circuit Design 5 E 

EEX5270 Information Security 5 E 

EEX5280 Creative Design 5 E 

EEX5333 Communication Theory & Systems 5 E 

EEX5335 Operating Systems 5 E 

EEX5338 High voltage engineering 5 E 

EEX5346 Embedded Systems 5 E 
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EEX5348 Electrical machines and drives 5 E 

EEX5351 Digital Electronic Systems 5 E 

EEX5352 Power Systems II 5 E 

EEX5360 Signals and Systems 5 E 

EEX5434 Data Communications & Networking 5 E 

EEX5453 Power electronics 5 E 

EEX5466 Advanced Database Systems 5 E 

EEX5467 Software Testing and Quality Assurance 5 E 

EEX5536 Computer Architecture 5 E 

EEX5564 Computer Architecture and Operating Systems 5 E 

EEM6201 Professional Practice 6 E 

EEW6502 Industrial training II (Electrical power -undergraduate) 6 E 

EEX6181 Research Methodology and Project Identification (Computer Eng) 6 E 

EEX6182 Research methodology and project identification (Electrical Eng) 6 E 

EEX6183 Research methodology and project identification (Electronics and 
Communication) 

6 E 

EEX6236 Advanced Computer Architecture 6 E 

EEX6253 Physical & Opto Electronics 6 E 

EEX6335 Compiler Design 6 E 

EEX6339 Wireless Communications 6 E 

EEX6354 Comprehensive Electrical Engineering Design 6 E 

EEX6441 Electromagnetism& Wave Propagation 6 E 

EEX6450 Analog Electronic Systems & Instrumentation 6 E 

EEX7171 Emerging Technologies 7 E 

EEX7231 Advanced circuit design and analysis 7 E 

EEX7241 Neural Networks & Fuzzy Logic Applications 7 E 

EEX7244 Data Mining 7 E 

EEX7333 Microwave Devices and Antennas  7 E 

EEX7337 System Design in Groups 7 E 

EEX7339 Information Theory and Coding  7 E 

EEX7340 AI Techniques & Agent Technology 7 E 

EEX7355 Comprehensive Electronics Design  7 E 

EEX7432 Power systems planning operations and control 7 E 

EEX7434 Digital Signal Processing 7 E 

EEX7436 Processor Design 7 E 

Department of Mechanical Engineering 

DMX3401 Fluid Mechanics and Thermodynamics 3 E 

DMX3302 Engineering Mechanics 3 E 

DMX3203 Introduction to Engineering Materials 3 E 

DMX3304 Applied Electronics 3 E 

DMX3305 Introduction to Engineering Design Graphics 3 E 

DMX3206 Introduction to Manufacturing Process 3 E 

DMX3107 Workshop Practice 3 E 

DMY4101 Group Project (Mechanical Engineering) 4 E 

DMY4102 Group Project (Mechatronics Engineering) 4 E 

DMX4201 Advanced Engineering Design Graphics 4 E 

DMX4202 Applied Thermodynamics I 4 E 

DMX4203 Applied Fluid Dynamics I 4 E 

DMX4204 Machine Dynamics 4 E 

DMX4205 Strength of Materials I 4 E 

DMX4306 Design of Machine Elements 4 E 
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DMX4307 Electrical Machines and Drives 4 E 

DMX4208 Automobile Technology 4 E 

DMX4409 Sensors 4 E 

DMX4410 Electrical & Pneumatic Machines 4 E 

DMX4411 Signal processing 4 E 

DMX4212 Manufacturing Engineering 4 E 

DMX3573 Modelling of Mechatronics Systems 3 E 

DMX3374 Principles of Design 3 E 

DMX4335 Production Management 4 E 

DMX5201 Advanced Engineering Mechanics  5 E 

DMX5302 Strength of Materials II  5 E 

DMX5403 Control System Engineering  5 E 

DMX5204 Materials Engineering  5 E 

DMX5205 Applied Thermodynamics II  5 E 

DMX5206 Applied Fluid dynamics II  5 E 

DMX5307 Mechanical Engineering Design Project  5 E 

DMX5208 Automobile Engineering  5 E 

DMX5209 Automotive Electronics  5 E 

DMX5210 Vehicle Dynamics and Design of Automotive Components  5 E 

DMX5211 Plant Maintenance  5 E 

DMX5212 Computer Aided Design and Manufacturing  5 E 

DMX5313 Power Electronics and Motor Drives  5 E 

DMX5314 Machine Vision  5 E 

DMX5315 Artificial Intelligence  5 E 

DMX5316 Mechatronics Product Design  5 E 

DMM5836 Management for Engineers  5 E 

DMX6180 Research Methodology and Project Identification 6 E 

DMX6301 Industrial Engineering 6 E 

DMX6302 Energy, Environment and Sustainability 6 E 

 DMX6304 Computational Fluid Dynamics 6 E 

DMX6305 Modern Control Systems 6 E 

DMX6306 Micro and Nano Electromechanical Systems 6 E 

DMX6573 Advanced control system 6 E 

DMX7301 Thermal Power Generation 7 E 

DMX7303 Control of Robotics Manipulators 7 E 

DMX7304 Factory Automation 7 E 

DMX7305 Renewable Sources of Energy 7 E 

DMX7306 Intelligent Control Systems 7 E 

DMX7402 Analysis of Manufacturing Systems & Processes 7 E 

DMY7880 Engineering Research Project (Mechanical) 7 E 

DMY7881 Engineering Research Project (Mechatronics) 7 E 

DMW4002 Industrial Training I (Mechanical)  4 E 

DMW4003 Industrial Training I (Mechatronics) 4 E 

DMW5002 Industrial Training II (Mechanical 5 E 

DMW5003 Industrial Training II (Mechatronics) 5 E 

DMW4801 Industrial Training (Mechanical – Diploma) 4 E 

DMW6801 Industrial Training (Mechanical – Undergraduate) 6 E 

DMW4802 Industrial Training (Mechatronics – Diploma) 4 E 

DMW6802 Industrial Training (Mechatronics – Undergraduate) 6 E 

S- Sinhala T – Tamil E- English 
Table 13: Courses Offered Online-Engineering Technology 
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4.3 Faculty of Health Sciences 
 

4.3.1 Overview 
                                                                                                   

Health and health care remain a top priority for 
the country and health and allied health 
professionals’ place in the global community 
will always be important. The demand for 
highly qualified personnel in this sector will 
continue to grow as no aspect of health care can 
be optimally addressed without the presence of 
trained health and allied health professionals 
from multiple disciplines serving in key roles. 

As one of the largest educators of healthcare professionals in Sri Lanka, since its establishment in 
the year 2015, the Faculty of Health Sciences (FHS) at the Open University of Sri Lanka is 
dedicated to excellence in education and training through the Honours Degree programmes in 
Nursing, Medical Laboratory Sciences, Pharmacy and Psychology to prepare professionals for 
advanced practice, leadership, academic and research roles. 
 
The mission of the Faculty of Health Sciences 

To promote lifelong learning by facilitating learner-centred open and distance education 
opportunities in health and allied health sciences, with quality teaching and innovative research 
leading to excellence in collaborative professional practice. 

Objectives 

● To offer ODL programmes and courses that exemplify a commitment to equitable 
opportunities, meeting the current and future needs of healthcare professionals and society 

● To prepare healthcare professionals to improve the health and wellbeing of people, in 
collaboration with the interprofessional team 

● To encourage and support research in health and allied health sciences 
● To facilitate continuous innovations in teaching-learning processes 
● To promote collaborative practice among healthcare professionals and institutions for 

better health outcomes of the society 
● To establish local and international partnerships for academic, research and community 

service initiatives 
● To serve all stakeholders with efficiency, respect, and integrity 

Principal officers of the faculty in 2021: 

The administrative and academic head of the Faculty is the Dean, and Prof. (Ms.) G.R. Ranawaka 
served as the Dean until 06th July 2021. Dr. B. Sunil S. De Silva is the present Dean from 07th July 
2021. The other principal officers are Dr. (Ms.) K. Vivehanathan (Head, Basic Sciences), Dr. (Ms.) 
D.T. Wijeratne, (Head, Medical Laboratory Sciences), Dr. (Ms.) K.A. Sriyani, (Head, Nursing), Ms. 
R.B.J. Buddhika, (Head/Pharmacy) and Dr. (Ms.) H.M.C.J. Herath (Head/Psychology & Counselling) 
with the Assistant Registrar, Ms. S.A.D.D.N. Samarasinghe. 

Staff:  

Approximately 85 academic and non-academic staff (both permanent and temporary) served the 
Faculty in 2021. Seventeen (17) permanent academic staff members are currently reading for 
postgraduate qualifications (11 PhD, 2 MPhil, 4 MSc) in local and foreign institutions and one staff 
member completed her MPhil degree in Pharmacy. Members had published 19 research articles 
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in peer-reviewed journals of which 13 were in indexed journals; 58 abstracts/extended 
abstracts/posters were published in conference proceedings. 
 
Academic programmes:  

BSc Nursing, Bachelor of Medical Laboratory Sciences and Bachelor of Pharmacy Hons degrees 
were offered for those employed as Nurses, MLTs or Pharmacists. BSc Hons Degree in Psychology 
provided opportunities for fresh A/Level qualified school leavers as well as working 

professionals.  
    The Proposals for Master of Nursing 

and Master of Science in Nursing, 
Department of Nursing are 
approved by the University Grants 
Commission at the 1051st Meeting 
held on 25th March 2021. 
Accordingly, that new Master of 
Science in Nursing Programme of 
the faculty has also launched in 
December 2021, which would be 
providing opportunities for Holders 
of a Bachelor’s Degree of SLQF 
Level 5 in Nursing, or, a 
qualification of SLQF Level 6 or 

above in Nursing, or, an equivalent or 
higher qualification acceptable to the Senate, 

The OUSL has signed a Letter of Intent with the JSS Academy of Higher Education & Research, 
India for course development and delivery of the OUSL’s BPharm Hons Programme in October 
2021. 

Other activities: The Counselling Unit administered by the Department of Psychology and 
Counselling continued to serve the staff and students of the University. 

 The new 5-storey building for the FHS, for 
which the foundation stone was laid in 
2019, progressed slowly in 2021; though 
completion may not be achieved as 
expected, we are optimistic for its 
completion without prolonged delay. 
 
Over the past 06 years since its   

establishment, the FHS passed through 
an exciting time with major improvements 

in human resources and infrastructure development. In the coming years, the Faculty will 
continue to be committed to the mission of the OUSL, endeavouring to further improve and 
expand its academic programmes, research and community services. 
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4.3.2 Student Enrolment and Completion in individual Programmes 

Table 14: Student Enrolment and Completion in individual programmes – Health Sciences 

 

4.3.3 Student Enrolment and Staff in individual Programmes 
 

Programme 
Total 

Students 

Total Academic 
and Academic 
support Staff  

Total Non -
Academic Staff 

Bachelor of Medical Laboratory Sciences 
Honours 

402 
36 22 

Bachelor of Pharmacy Honours 258 

Bachelor of Science Honours in Nursing  2872 

Bachelor of Science Honours in Psychology 178 

Master of Science in Nursing 2 

MPhil/PhD  

 Table 15: Student Enrolment and staff in individual programmes – Health Sciences 

 

4.3.4 New Courses / Programmes 

Table 16: New Courses /Programmes– Health Sciences 

Programme Name Level Medium New 
Enrolment 

Completed 

Diploma in Laboratory Technology Diploma English -      6 

Bachelor of Science Honours in Nursing Bachelor English 541 464 

Bachelor Medical Laboratory Sciences 
Honours 

Bachelor English 121   45 

Bachelor of Pharmacy Honours Bachelor English 80 23 

Bachelor of Science Honours in 
Psychology 

Bachelor English 89 - 

MPhil/PhD MPhil/PhD English - - 

Course / Programme Medium Level 

PLU5301 - Psychology of Adolescence  English  5 
PLU5303 -Learning Theory and Behaviour Modification English 5 
PLU5305 - Advanced Research Methods & Statistics in 
Psychology 

English 5 

PLU5306 -Clinical Psychology English 5 

PLU5309 -Consumer and Media Psychology (Optional) English 5 
PLU5310 - Neuropsychology (Optional) English 5 

PLU5302 -Mental Health and Psychosocial Wellbeing English 5 
PLU5304 - Research Project Management English 5 
PLU5307 - Psychology of Ageing and Death English 5 
PLU5308 - Cross-Cultural Psychology English 5 
PLU5311 - Psychology and Law (Optional) English 5 
PLU5312 - Occupational Health Psychology (Optional English 5 
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4.3.5 Courses Offered Online 

Course Code & Title Level Medium 
Department of Nursing 

NGU5405 - Paediatric Nursing 5 English 
NGU5406 -Psychiatry & Mental Health Nursing 5 English 
NGU6311/NSU4101 -Research in Nursing 5 English 
NGU5300- Theoretical Orientation in Nursing 5 English 
NGU6803/NSU4206 -Research Project 6 English 
NGU5910- Primary Health Care I 5 English 
NGU6602- Public Health Nursing 6 English 
NGU6601 -Management & Leadership in Nursing 6 English 
NGU5303/NSU3107 -Research Methods in Nursing 5 English 
NGU6305 -Palliative Care Nursing  6 English 
NGU6304- Gerontological Nursing       6 English 

Department of Medical Laboratory Sciences 

MDE3208 – Refresher Course for Medical Laboratory Technologists 3 English 

MDU4209- General Pathology 4 English 
MDU4307 -Virology and Mycology 4 English 
MDU4406- Histopathology 4 English 
MDU4501- Haematology II 5 English 
MDU5206- Cytology 5 English 
MDU5303- Immunology and Serology 5 English 
MDU5308 -Research Methodology 5 English 
MDU5407 -Laboratory Automation and Instrumentation 5 English 
MDU6301/MLU4245- Cytogenetics and Molecular Genetics 6 English 
MDU6302 -Public Health Microbiology 6 English 
MDU6404 -Medical Laboratory Quality Management & Accreditation 6 English 
MDU6503 -Clinical Biochemistry III 6 English 
MDU3207 Health Communication  3 English 
MDU4302 Diagnostic Bacteriology  4 English 
MDU4303 Clinical Biochemistry II  4 English 
MDU4405 Work Based Training II  4 English 
MDU4208 Ethics and Professional Development   4 English 
MDU5401 Advanced Hematology  5 English 
MDU5202 Vector Borne Diseases  5 English 
MDU5304 Laboratory Management 5 English 
MDU5305 Work Based Training III 5 English 
MDU5209 Advanced Techniques in Medical Laboratory Sciences 5 English 
MDU5210 Special Topics in MLS   5 English 
MDU5211 Healthcare Informatics 5 English 
MDU5212 Literature Review 5 English 
MDU6705 Work Based Training IV 6 English 

Department of Pharmacy 
FMU3203 - Pharmaceutics I 3 English 
FMU3206 - Essential Mathematics for Pharmacy 3 English 
FMU3302 - Physical Pharmacy 3 English 
FMU3300 – Biochemistry 3 English 
FMU3401 - Pharmacognosy I 3 English 
FMU3204 - Pharmaceutical Microbiology I 3 English 
FMU3205 - Health Communication 3 English 
FMU4205 - Community Pharmacy 4 English 
FMU4300 – Pathophysiology 4 English 
FMU4302 - Pharmacognosy II 4 English 
FMU4303 - Pharmacology I 4 English 

https://learnousl.ou.ac.lk/course/view.php?id=1215
https://learnousl.ou.ac.lk/course/view.php?id=1214
https://learnousl.ou.ac.lk/course/view.php?id=1213
https://learnousl.ou.ac.lk/course/view.php?id=1212
https://learnousl.ou.ac.lk/course/view.php?id=1210
https://learnousl.ou.ac.lk/course/view.php?id=1208
https://learnousl.ou.ac.lk/course/view.php?id=1204
https://learnousl.ou.ac.lk/course/view.php?id=1203
https://learnousl.ou.ac.lk/course/view.php?id=1043
https://learnousl.ou.ac.lk/course/view.php?id=960
https://learnousl.ou.ac.lk/course/view.php?id=729
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Table 17: Courses Offered Online- Health Sciences 

FMU4304 - Hospital Pharmacy 4 English 

FMU4306 - Pharmaceutical Microbiology II 4 English 

FMU4307 - Pharmaceutical Analysis I 4 English 

FMU4501 - Pharmaceutics II 4 English 

FMU5202 - Laws and Ethics for Pharmacy 5 English 

FMU5400 - Pharmacology II 5 English 

FMU5403 - Pharmaceutical Technology I 5 English 

FMU5205 - Pharmaceutical Analysis II 5 English 

FMU5210 – Research Methodology 5 English 

FMU5406 - Pharmaceutical Marketing, Management and Pharmacoeconomics 5 English 

FMU5501 - Pharmacology III 5 English 

FMU5504 - Pharmaceutical Technology II 5 English 

FMU6300 - Pharmaceutical Biotechnology & Genetic    Engineering 6 English 

FMU6301 – Biopharmaceutics 6 English 

FMU6302 – Therapeutics 6 English 

FMU6303 - Clinical Pharmacy I 6 English 

FMU6304 - Clinical Pharmacy II 6 English 

FMU6505 - Medicinal Chemistry 6 English 

FMU6207 - Drug Development 6 English 

FMU6806 - Research Project 6 English 

Department of Psychology and Counselling 

PLU3301-Introduction to Psychology  3 English  

PLU3302 - Personality & Individual Differences  3  English  

PLU3303 - Motivation & Emotion  3 English  

PLU3204 - Ethics in Psychology  3  English  

PLU3205 - Academic writing in Psychology  3 English  

PLU3206 - Communication and Study Skills for Psychology  3  English  

PLU3307 - Lifespan Development  3 English  

PLU3308 - Social Psychology  3  English  

PLU3309 - Introduction to Counselling Psychology  3 English  

PLU3310 - Biological Psychology  3  English  

PLU3311 - Cognitive Psychology  3 English  
PLU4301 - Child Psychology  4 English  
PLU4302 - Abnormal Psychology  4 English  
PLU4303 - Introduction to Statistics in Psychology  4 English  
PLU4304 - Brain & Behaviour  4 English  
PLU4305 - Language & Cognition  4 English  
PLU4306 - Schools of Thought in Psychology  4 English  
PLU4307 - Health Psychology  4 English  
PLU4308 - Industrial - Organizational Psychology  4 English  
PLU4309 - Research Methods in Psychology  4 English  
PLU4310 - Educational Psychology  4 English  
PLU5301 - Psychology & Adolescence  5 English  
PLU5303 - Learning Theory and Behaviour Modification 5 English  
PLU5305 - Advanced Research Methods and Statistics in Psychology  5 English  
PLU5306 - Clinical Psychology  5 English  
PLU5309 - Consumer & Media Psychology  5 English  
PLU5310 – Neuropsychology 5 English  
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4.4 Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences 
  

4.4.1 Overview 

                                                                                                      

The Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences 

(FHSS) is one of the largest faculties in The 

Open University of Sri Lanka (OUSL), providing 

quality educational opportunities for 

professional advancement, excellence in 

scholarship and research in contemporary 

disciplines in Humanities and Social Sciences. 
 

The faculty consists of four academic 

departments representing major fields within 

Humanities and Social Sciences such as Social 

Studies, Legal Studies, Language Studies and 

English Language Teaching. The faculty of HSS has paved numerous ways to provide multiple 

opportunities to pursue higher education from certificate level to postgraduate level study 

programmes. Most of our undergraduate programmes are offered in all major regional centers of 

OUSL, enabling access to higher education to a considerable number of students in the regions.  
 

The total enrolment in the faculty of HSS is over 10,000. Moreover, the faculty provides English 

language courses to all undergraduates at OUSL through the Department of English Language 

Teaching. In line with the mission of OUSL to increase access to education for all, the faculty has 

introduced Certificate programmes in Social Sciences and Languages as alternative qualifications 

to enter the degree programmes offered by the faculty. This is a significant feature of openness, a 

key philosophy of OUSL. The flexibility and openness practiced by the faculty has helped in 

attracting diverse student populations including a large number of employed students. This 

diversity makes learning extremely productive for both the students and the faculty. The faculty 

has also introduced courses for Continuing Professional Development (CPD) in the areas of 

tourism operations, labour migration and language learning. 
 

The faculty continued its operations throughout 2021 by introducing more online teaching and 

assessments to overcome the adverse impact of Covid-19. HSS was able to sustain the operations 

because of the commitment of its staff and the cooperation of the students. The faculty also 

conducted awarding of the degrees through a virtual forum. Thus, the Faculty was discovered its 

great potential in reaching out to a large number of students, even during the pandemic, by 

adopting more flexible policies and practices in administering our study programmes. HSS 

believes in its ability to garner the support of the new learning technologies in taking educational 

services to even greater student population in the future. 
 

The faculty members bring with them extensive training and expertise in a variety of fields, 

making it a robust and a diverse center of learning. We attracted highly qualified individuals 

representing greatly sought-after areas of study and specialisations. This will certainly help 

broaden the scope of learning for HSS students. The Faculty of HSS is committed to creating an 

environment where all students can reach their full potential through dynamic participation in 

the related learning processes. 
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4.4.2 Student Enrolment and Completion in Individual Programmes 

Table18: Student Enrolment and Completion in individual programmes – Humanities and 

Social Sciences 

Programme Name Level Medium 
New 

Enrolment 
Completed 

Short Course in Listening and Speech Certificate E 2043  371 

Short Course in Irregular Migration, 

Human Smuggling, and Human 

Trafficking Certificate E 60 60 

Advanced Certificate in Social 

Sciences 
Certificate S, T, E 171 - 

Beginners course in Sinhala Certificate S, T -  

Certificate in Social Science Certificate S, T, E - 01 

Certificate in Basic Sinhala Certificate S/T - 123 

Beginners course in Tamil Certificate S, E -  

Certificate in Basic Tamil Certificate S, E - 72 

Advanced Certificate in Social 

Sciences 
Certificate S, T, E - 111 

Advanced Certificate in English for 

Business & Professional 

Communications (1&2) 

Certificate E 292 26 

Diploma in English Diploma E - 03 

Diploma in English Language & 

Literature 
Diploma E 71 16 

Diploma in Tourism operation Diploma E 24 - 

Higher Diploma in Youth 

Development 
Diploma S, T, E - 42 

Diploma in Youth Development Diploma S, T, E 5 - 

Bachelor of Laws Bachelor S, T, E  646 

BA in Social Sciences Bachelor E 1502 388 

BA in English & English Language 

Teaching  

Bachelor 
E 75 - 

BA in Library Information Studies Bachelor E 27 15 

Bachelor of Arts in Youth and 

Communitiy Development 

Bachelor 
E 54 - 

PGD in Development Studies & Public 

Policy 
Postgraduate E - - 

MA in Development Studies & Public 

Policy 
Postgraduate E 14 20 

Mater of Law in Criminal Justice 

Administration 
Postgraduate E 41 23 

MPhil/PhD Postgraduate E - - 
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4.4.3 Student Enrolment and Staff in individual Programmes 
 

 

 

Programme Total 
Students 

Total Academic 
and academic 
support Staff  

Total Non-
Academic 

Staff 

Certificate in   Course in Social Sciences 6 55 19 

Basic Course in Sinhala 177 

Basic Course in Tamil 36 

Beginners Course in Sinhala 5 

Beginners Course in Tamil 5 

Advanved Certificate in English for Business & 

Professional Communication - Stage 2 
289 

Advanved Certificate in English for Business & 

Professional Communication - Stage 1 
153 

Advanced Certificate in Social Sciences 336 

Diploma In English 4 

Diploma In English Language and Literature 124 

Diploma In Tourism Operations 24 

Diploma In Youth in Development Work (New) 24 

Higher Diploma in Youth Development 41 

Bachelor of Arts  3555 

Bachelor of Arts in Honours English & Eng. 
Language Teaching 

88 

Bachelor of Arts in Youth and Communitiy 
Development 

91 

Bachelor of Laws 3884 

Bachelor of Arts in Library Information Studies 47 

Master of Art in Development Studies and Public 
Policy  

48 

Master Of Laws in Criminal Justice Administration 110 

MPhil/PhD  
 

Table 19: Student Enrolment and staff in individual programmes – Humanities and Social 

Sciences 
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4.4.4 Courses Offered Online 

Table 20: Courses Offered Online– Humanities and Social Sciences 

 

Course Code & Title Level Medium 

Department of Language Studies 

LED3507 -  Advanced Reading Skills Level 3 English 

LED3508 -  Advanced Writing Skills Level 3 English 

LED3509 - Advanced Grammar & Communication Skills Level 3 English 

LED3510 -  Introduction to Poetry Level 3 English 

LED3511 -  Introduction to Fiction Level 3 English 

LED3512 -  Introduction to Drama Level 3 English 

Department of English Language Teaching 

LEU3506-  Drama and Poetry Level 3 English 

LEU3505 - The Novel and the Short story Level 3 English 

LEU3503 - Textual Analysis Level 3 English 

LEU3502-  Academic Writing Level 3 English 

LEU3501 -  Academic Reading Level 3 English 

LEU4501 -          History and Development of the English 
Language 

Level 4 English 

LEU4502 -  Teaching Language and Literature Level 4 English 

LEU4503 -  Criticism and Analysis Level 4 English 

LEU4504 -  Forms of Fiction Level 4 English 

LEU4505 -  Drama Level 4 English 

LEU4506 -  Poetry Level 4 English 

LEU5501 - Literature and Society Level 5 English 

LEU5502 - Basic Concepts in English Language Teaching Level 5 English 

LEU5503 -  Discourse Analysis and ELT Level 5 English 

LEU6601- Psycholinguistics and Sociolinguistics Level 6 English 

STU6501 - Psychology of Learning Level 6 English 

STU6301 -  Principles of Education Level 6 English 

LEU6702 -  Methodology of Teaching English as a   
                Second Language 

Level 6 English 

LEU6704 -  Research Project Level 6 English 

LEU6203 -  Literature in the Second Language Classroom Level 6 English 
Department of Legal Studies 

Short Course in Irregular Migration, Human Smuggling and 
Human Trafficking  

 English 

Department of Social Studies 

BA in Social Sciences   English 

Advanced Certificate in Social Sciences  English,Sinhala, 

Tamil 

MA in Development Studies   English 

Diploma in Tourism Operations   English 

Higher Diploma in Youth Development   English 

BA in Youth and Community Development   English 
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4.5 Faculty of Management Studies 
 

4.5.1 Overview 
 

The Faculty of Management 

Studies has been the 

gateway to success for 

academics and 

professionals. The Faculty 

of Management Studies, 

which is the youngest and 

sixth Faculty of the Open 

University of Sri Lanka, 

with the vision of “to be the 

premier Management 

Education provider through 

Open and Distance 

Learning in Asia and ensure 

excellence, efficiency and 

equality in lifelong 

learning”. It has a long 

history when it comes to 

management education in 

Sri Lanka through Open 

Distance Learning (ODL). 

The Open University of Sri Lanka (OUSL) which was established in 1980 as the premier Open and 

Distance Learning Institution in Sri Lanka and also in Asia where students and adults can pursue 

their studies through Open and Distance Learning (ODL) methodologies, has commenced 

providing management education since 1980.  

The Faculty of Management Studies was established by the Gazette notification in 08th May 2019 

and the academic activities of the Faculty of Management Studies commenced on 14th May 2019 

with the appointment of Dean and Heads for four Departments, namely Organizational Studies, 

Marketing Management, Human Resources Management. And Accounting and Finance. The 

faculty is the 17th management faculty in the university system in Sri Lanka.  

FMS is a dynamic, forward looking, and modern faculty. Irrespective of whether one intends to 

study at undergraduate level or postgraduate level, at the FMS you will find intellectual challenge 

and stimulation in a highly competitive environment. The FMS is committed to realise the vision 

and mission of the University whilst furthering the management education of the country.     

It presently offers a variety of high-quality programmes leading to Certificate, Diploma, and 

Degree, Postgraduate Diploma, Postgraduate Degree and PHD qualifications. Such as Bachelor of 

Management Studies (BMS), Diploma in Management, Advanced Certificate in Entrepreneurship 

and Small Business Management (ESBM) and the Postgraduate programs were commenced under 

the Department in 2001 such as Commonwealth Executive Master of Business Administration 

(CEMBA), Commonwealth Executive Master of Public Administration (CEMPA), Master of 

Business Administration in Human Resources Management, Postgraduate Diploma in 

Management. Postgraduate Diploma in Human Resource Management, MPhil and Ph.D. and 
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several short courses. The FMS is consistently ranked high and reputable across the world 

collaboration with Commonwealth of Learning (COL) and Charted Institute of Personal 

Management (CIPM), also has the capacity for a higher outreach, through the University’s 

Regional and Study centre network spread throughout the country with established 

infrastructure. Currently, over 4,000 students are enrolling at the faculty. Further, the Faculty 

offers various management courses as by – subjects for the benefit of the students who follow 

Bachelor of Science, Engineering, Health Science and Education a New four programmes have 

been developed by the faculty, viz., BMS Honours in HRM, BMS Honours in Marketing, BMS 

Honours in Accounting & Finance and BMS Honours.  We are highly conscious about the 

excellence of the academic programmes. Therefore, all our programmes are aligned with Sri 

Lanka Qualification Framework (SLQF) and the subject benchmarks. Further, the Faculty has 

taken every necessary step to maintain the standard and the quality through the Quality 

Assurance Cell (QAC) which is aligned with the quality practices of the Internal Quality Assurance 

Unit (IQAU) of the university and the Quality Assurance Council (QAC) of the University Grant 

Commission (UGC).  

Faculty of Management Studies (FMS) of the Open University of Sri Lanka will host the first 

International Conference on Management and Entrepreneurship (ICOME) on March 31 and April 

1, 2022, on the virtual platform. The theme of the conference is ‘Business Management: 

Innovation, Challenges and Resilience’ and the following objectives are going to be achieved at 

this conference  

• To bring local and foreign researchers and practitioners to one forum to share and disseminate 

current developments and insights in Business Management and Entrepreneurship  

• To strengthen the scholarly and professional network among researchers and  

• To underpin the need for collaboration and cooperation of individuals from a wide range of 

professional backgrounds in Business Management and Entrepreneurship to contribute to a 

sustainable future  

Conference organizers expected to have the participation of local and foreign Scholars, 

Academics, Professionals, Practitioners and Policymakers in Business Management and 

Entrepreneurship. It is indeed a great pleasure to declare that Prof. Philip Kolter (father of 

modern marketing) will be the chief guest of this conference and will be delivering his speech on 

‘Defining the Consumer in the Post Covid Period’.  

Prof. Xiaobo WU (Dean, Faculty of Social Sciences and Former Dean, School of Management, 

Zhejiang University, the Director of National Institute for Innovation Management) will make the 

keynote speech and Prof. Sampath Amaratunge, Chairman of the University Grants Commission, 

Sri Lanka will deliver the guest speech.  

This Conference is organized under the leadership of the Vice-chancellor of the Open University 

of Sri Lanka Prof. P.M.C Thilakarathna and Dean, Faculty of Management Studies, Prof. V. 

Sivalogathasan and chaired by Prof. Nalin Abeysekera.  
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4.5.2 Student Enrolment and Completion in individual Programmes 
   

Programme Name Level Medium New 
Enrolment 

Completed 

Short course in Human Resource Mgt. Certificate S, T, E 848 262 

Short Course in Marketing management Certificate S, T, E - - 
Short course in Human Resource Training 
&amp; Development 

Certificate E - - 

Short course in Computerized Accounting Certificate E 66 24 
Short course in Financial Accounting Certificate E 30 27 
Advanced Cert. in Entrepreneurship & Small 
Business Mgt. 

Certificate S, T, E 603 176 

Higher Diploma in Management Diploma S, T, E  25 

Bachelor of Management Studies Undergraduate S, T, E 2071 214 

Commonwealth executive MBA/MPA Postgraduate E 34 25 
MBA in Human Resource Management Postgraduate E   
MPhil/PhD Postgraduate E 02  

Table 21: Student Enrolment and Completion in individual programmes – Management Studies 
 

4.5.3 Student Enrolment and Staff in Individual Programmes 

Table 22: Student Enrolment and staff in individual programmes – Management Studies 

4.5.4 New Courses / Programmes 

Table 23: New courses/Programmes– Management Studies 

4.5.5 Courses Offered Online  

Programme 
Total 

Students 
 

Total Academic 
and Academic 
Support Staff 

Total non-
Academic 

Staff 

Advanced Cert. in Entrepreneurship & Small Business Mgt. 940 20 06 

Bachelor of Management Studies 5415 

Commonwealth executive MBA/MPA 127 
MBA in Human Resource Management 71 
MPhil/PhD  

Course / Programme Medium Level 

Bachelor of Management Studies Honours in Human Resource Management 
Programme 

English 06 

Bachelor of Management Studies Honours in Accounting & Finance English 06 
Degree of BMS Honours in Marketing Management  English 06 
Bachelor of Management Studies Honours  English 06 
M. Sc. In Public Procurement & Supply Chain Management English 06 

Course Code Title Level Medium 

 Department of Organizational Studies 

OSU3501 Management Theory and Practice 03 E 

OSU3504 Social Psychology in Organizations 03 E 

OSU3507 Quantitative Techniques for Management I 03 E 

MSU3208 Managing Your Work and People 03 E 

MSU4505 Operations Management  04 E 

OSU4504 Legal Environment in Business  04 E 

MSU4509 Computer and Information Systems in Business 04 E 

OSU5506 Organizational Behaviour 05 E 

MSU5509 Quantitative Techniques for Management II 05 E 
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S- Sinhala T – Tamil E- English 

Table 24: Courses Offered Online– Management Studies 

 

MSU6501 Strategic Management 06 E 

MSU6502 Operations Research 06 E 

MSU6503 New Dimensions in Management 06 E 

MSP9402/OSP9402 Management and Organisation 09 E 

MSP9407/OSP9407 Quantitative Techniques  09 E 

MSP9304/OSP9304 Operations Management  09 E 

OSC2401 Entrepreneurship 02 E 

OSC2402 Small Business Management 02 E 

OSC2303 Basic Mathematics and Statistics 02 E 

MMC2404 Marketing for Entrepreneurs 02 E 

OSC2405 Operations Management for Entrepreneurs 02 E 

AFC2406 Accounts and Finance for Entrepreneurs 02 E 

OSC2407 Business Planning 02 E 

AFC2308 Introduction to Economics 02 E 
Department of Accounting and Finance 

MSU3505 Micro Economics 03 E 
MSU3506 Financial and Cost Accounting 03 E 

MSU4507  Macro Economics 04 E 

MSU4508 Money and Capital Markets 04 E 

MSU5508  Financial Management and Managerial Accounting 05 E 

MSU5504 Project Appraisal 05 E 

MSU5507 Managerial Economics 05 E 

MSU6421 Advanced Financial Accounting 06 E 

MSU6422 Investment Analysis and Portfolio Management 06 E 

MSP9405/AFP9405 Economic Environment of Business 09 E 

MSP9409/AFP9409 Accounting & Finance 09 E 

MSP9305/AFP9305 Managerial Economics  09 E 

MSPA498/AFPA498 Research Methods 09 E 

MSPA302/AFPA302 Project Management 09 E 

MSPA310/AFPA310 Corporate Finance 09 E 
Department of Human Resources Management 

MSU4506 Human Resource Management 04 E 
MSU6411 Motivation and Performance Appraisal in Organizations 06 E 
MSU6412 Human Resource Training and Development 06 E 

MSP9403/HRP9403 Managing Human Resources 09 E 

MMP9331 Marketing Management 09 E 
AFP9332 Managerial Finance 09 E 
OSP9333 Operations Management 09 E 
OSP9334 Organizational Behavior 09 E 
OSP9336 Strategic Management 09 E 
HRP9337 Human Resource Development 09 E 
HRP9338 Performance Management 09 E 
HRP9339 Industrial Laws  and Relations 09 E 
HRP9340 Human Resource Information System 09 E 
HRPA441 Contemporary HRM 09 E 
HRPA443 International HRM 09 E 
HRPA445 Strategic Human Resource Management 09 E 
AFPA347 Project Management 09 E 
HRP9335 Managing Change in Organization 09 E 

Department of Marketing Management 

MMU3503 Marketing  03 E 
MMU5505 Research Methodology  05 E 
MMU6405 Advertising  06 E 

MSU6406/MCU4206 International Marketing  06 E 
MSU6704 Research Project 06 E 

MSP9408/MMP9408 Marketing Management  09 E 
MSPA313/MMPA313 International Marketing 09 E 
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4.6 Faculty of Natural Sciences 
 

4.6.1 Overview 
 

Mission  

To be innovative in teaching-learning 
and research demonstrating 
leadership in Open Distance Learning 
(ODL) in science with a commitment 
to achieve national goals. 

 

 

 

 

       

 

 

Objectives 

• To develop motivated personnel successful in their academic, career and lifelong learning 
goals 

• To offer quality programmes informed by current needs and demands  
• To support the community and the nation through partnerships and public service 
• To promote research, scholarship and enterprise activities 
• To increase the outreach of the sciences via open access via distance education 

 

The Faculty of Natural Sciences at OUSL has over thirty-five (35) years of experience delivering 
Science degree programmes through Open and Distance Learning (ODL) methodologies. It 
consists of six (06) Departments; Botany, Chemistry, Computer Science, Mathematics, Physics and 
Zoology. The Faculty has a task to accomplish the university's Vision, reflecting itscommitment to 
attaining excellence in Open and Distance Learning (ODL). Theprogramme curriculums are 
carefully structured to suit ODL whileincorporating core and elective courses for imparting 
knowledge, developing a widerange of skills, and enriching attitudes among the learners.  

In compliance with the approved guidelines of the UGCand the University Standard Operational 
Practices (SOPs), the Faculty has an efficient administrative structure to deliver the academic 
programmes of study effectively.In keeping with the mission and the Faculty's objectives, Faculty 
currently offers seventeen (17) academic programmes of study in various subject areas ranging 
from short courses, stand-alone courses andCertificate to Postgraduate level.  

The Faculty implements the good practices recognise by the OUSL for ODL, andthe Faculty Quality 
Assurance Cell (FQAC) monitor their implementation andprogress by obtaining feedback from 
stakeholders. FQAC has an annual action plan. Its progress is monitored bi-monthly by the 
IQAU/CQA at its BOM andreported to the Faculty Board under a separate agenda item for 
necessary action.The FQAC shares the output of the data analysed from the learner feedback 
soughton the course material, course delivery, availability of library resources andaccessibility of 
staff with the respective academic departments. 

Currently, the Faculty has permanent ninety-three (93) academics and forty-eight (48) non-
academic staff in the Central campus and other Regional Centres. Besides, there are 
temporary/contract staff and visiting staff who contribute to the teaching-learning process.  
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4.5.1 Programmes of Study offered by the faculty 
1. Master of Science in Environmental Sciences 
2. Master of Science in Medical Entomology and Applied Parasitology 

3. Bachelor of Science Honours Degree 

4. Bachelor of Education (Honours in Natural Sciences) (Levels 3 and 4) 

5. Bachelor of Science Degree 

6. Higher Diploma in Science 

7. Diploma in Laboratory Technology 

8. Diploma in Microbiology (Blended online programme) 

9. Diploma in Natural Resources and Ecotourism 

10. Diploma in Environmental Science 

11. Diploma in Food Science 

12. Advanced Certificate in Science 

13. Advanced Certificate in Wildlife Conservation and Management 

14. Advanced Certificate in Laboratory Technology 

15. Short Course in Computer Networks & Security 

16. Short Course in Professional Computer Applications 

17. Stand-Alone Courses in Science 

 

The staff of the faculty 

 Academic  Staff Profile and Qualifications 

Faculty of Natural Sciences 

T
o

ta
l 

Department Highest Qualification Gender 

Designation PhD Masters BSc M F 

Chair Professor 1    1 1 

Senior Professor 4   3 1 4 
Professor 4 1  3 2 5 
Associate Professor 2 1   2 2 
Senior Lecturer 38 20  21 37 58 
Lecturer 2 12  5 9 14 
Lecturer (Prob.)  2 3  5 5 
Vacant      12 
Demonstrators   62 10 52 62 
 Total  53 36 4 42 119 163 

 

Administrative & Non-Academic Staff Profile of the Faculty  

Designation Gender Vacant Total 
F M  

SAR/AR 01 - - 01 
SAB/AB - - - 00 
Network Manager - 01 - 01 
Technical Officer 04 06 - 10 
Draughtsman - - 01 01 
Management Assistant 14 04 - 18 
Lab Attendant - 09 - 09 
Work Aid - 08 - 08 
Office Machine Operator - 01 - 01 
Total 19 29  48 
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Registration Statistics 
 
A total of 1171 new students were registered to the Bachelor of Science Degree Programme in 
2020/2021. We contribute in the contribution of levels 3 and 4 of BEd (Natural Sciences) degree 
programme and biology and chemistry of Advance certificate in Science. 
 
Annual Awards and the Convocation 
Due to the present COVID-19 pandemic situation, we had Annual Convocation virtually and 
convocation Ceremony will be held on 25th January 2022. The Annual Awards Ceremony of the 
Faculty will be held for February 2022. Students will be awarded Dean’s List Award, Kandiah 
Memorial Scholarship Award, Nalini Ratnasiri Scholarship award, Bucky ball Society Awards, 
ZooNet Awards, BotSoc and Spectrum Awards at the Awards Ceremony. Following are the data of 
the graduates at the convocation of the years 2020 (ii) and 2021(i).  
 

MPhil Degree       02 
MSc in Environmental Science     16 
Postgraduate Diploma in Environmental Science  03 
BSc (Honours) Degree      03 
BSc Degree                  417 
 

Faculty Research 
 

The faculty staffs are highly involved in research activities over the years. Several undergraduate 
and postgraduate research is being supervised by academics during the year 2021 while engaging 
in many other research studies. Thirty-seven (37) full papers in indexed international journals 
were published by academics of the Faculty of Natural Sciences according to the following Table. 

 

Publication Category 

Number 

Published  
Local 

Published  
Foreign 

No. of publications in refereed indexed Journals including e-journals 0 37 

No. of publications in refereed non-indexed Journals including e-journals 12 7 

Conference Proceedings 

No. of papers published as 
full papers 

2 7 

No. of abstract publications 27 34 

No. of Book Chapters published 1 2 

No. of Books/Textbooks published in the 
area of expertise  

By a publisher 0 1 

By an author 0 0 

Further several Faculty staffs received research grants, including Faculty Research Grants, 

Competitive Research Grants and Grants through AHEAD projects.   
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4.6.2 Student Enrolment and Completion in individual Programmes 
   

Programme Name Level Medium New 
Enrolment 

Completed 

Short Course in professional Web 
Development using Joomla and WordPress 

Certificate E - - 

Short Course in ICT for Beginners Certificate E - - 
Short Course in Computer Networks & 
Security 

Certificate E - - 

Short Course in Professional Computer 
Applications 

Certificate E - - 

Short Course in Plant Breeding Techniques Certificate E - - 

Short Course in Enhancing Teacher 
Capacities in Teaching ICT  

Certificate E 
- - 

Short Course in Advanced Web Development Certificate E - - 
Certificate in Laboratory Technology Certificate E - - 
Advanced Certificate in Wildlife 
Conservation & Managment 

Certificate E 87 43 

Advanced Certificate in Science Certificate E 571 14 
Diploma in Natural Resources & Eco-
Tourism 

Diploma E 67 - 

Diploma in Laboratory Technology Diploma E 24 - 
Diploma in Environment Science Diploma E - - 

Higher Diploma in Science Diploma E - 01 

Bachelor of Science Undergraduate E 1083 420 
Bachelor of Science/Special Undergraduate E - - 
Postgraduate Diploma in Environmental 
Studies 

Postgraduate E - - 

Master of Environmental Studies Postgraduate E 48 16 
Master’s in medical Entomology & Applied 
Parasitology 

Postgraduate E - - 

MPhil/PhD Postgraduate E 03 - 

Table 25: Student Enrolment and Completion in individual programmes – Natural Sciences 

4.6.3 Student Enrolment and Staff in individual Programmes 
 

Programme 
Total 

Students 

 

Total Academic 

and Academic 

Support Staff 

Total non-

Academic 

Staff 

Advanced Certificate in Science 825 89 49 

Advanced Certificate in Wildlife Conservation & Mgt. 87 

Diploma In Environmental Science 0 

Diploma In Laboratory Technology 35 

Diploma In Natural Resources and Eco Tourism 67 

Bachelor Of Science 3473 

Bachelor Of Science Special (Natural Sciences) 8 

Bachelor Of Science Honours in Mathematics 2 

Bachelor Of Science Honours in Physics 2 

Bachelor Of Science Honours in Zoology 1 

M.Sc Environmental Science 126 

M.Sc in Medical Entomology and Applied Parasitology 14 

MPhil/PhD  

Table 26: Student Enrolment and staff in individual programmes – Natural Sciences 
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4.6.4 New Courses / Programmes 

Table 27: New courses/Programmes– Natural Sciences 

 

4.6.5 Courses Offered Online 
 

Course / Programme Medium Level 

Environment Toxicology E 5 

Evolutionary Biology E 6 

Course Course Title Level Medium 

Department of Botany 

BYU6301 Bioinformatics 6 English 
BYU6302 Biotechnology 6 English 

Department of Chemistry 

CYE3200 Mathematics for Chemistry and Biology 3 Sinhala, Tamil & 
English 

CYU3300 Basic Principles of Chemistry I 3 Sinhala, Tamil & 
English 

CYU3302 Basic Principles of Chemistry II 3 Sinhala, Tamil & 
English 

LLU3261 Understanding law 3 Sinhala, Tamil & 
English 

CYU4300 Inorganic Chemistry 4 English 

CYU4301 Concepts in Chemistry II 4 English 
CYU4302 Practical Chemistry II 4 English 

CYU5300  Organometallic Chemistry  5 English 
CYU5301 Concepts in Spectroscopy 5 English 

CYU5302 Analytical Chemistry 5 English 

CYU5303 Organic Chemistry II 5 English 
CYU5304 Chemistry of Biomolecules 5 English 

CYU5310 Literature Projects in Chemistry 5 English 

CYU5312 Industrial Chemistry I 5 English 

CYU5611 Research Project in Chemistry 5 English 

CYU6608  Research Project in Chemistry  6 English 

CYU6600 Advanced Concepts in Chemistry 6 English 

CYU6301  Selected topics in Inorganic Chemistry  6 English 

CYU6304  Inorganic Spectroscopy & Structural 
Chemistry  

6 English 

CYU6305  Concepts in Industrial Chemistry 6 English 

CYU6606  Advanced Experimental Chemistry 6 English 

CYU6307  Industrial Training and Literature Seminar 6 English 
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Department of Mathematics 

ADU3300 Vector Algebra  3 English 

ADU3201 Basic Statistics  3 English 

ADU3302 Differential Equations  3 English 

ADU4301 Newtonian Mechanics I 4 English 

ADU4302 Vector Calculus  4 English 

ADU4303 
Applied Linear Algebra and Differential 
Equations  

4 English 

ADU4319 Statistics for Agriculture 4 English 

ADU5300 Linear Programming  5 English 

ADU5301 Regression Analysis I  5 English 

Department of Zoology 

ZYP8301 Blended Online 8 English 

ZYP9304  Blended online (new 2019) 9 English 

ZYP9605 Supplementary online (new 2019) 9 English 

ZYP8603  Supplementary online (new 2019) 8 English 

ZYP8302 Blended Online 8 English 

ZYU3500 Animal Life & Diversity (Supplementary 
Online) 

3 English 

ZYU3301  Biogeography (Supplementary Online) 3 English 

ZYU4301  Ecology (Supplementary Online) 4 English 

ZYU4302  Animal Development (Supplementary 
online) 

4 English 

ZYU5300  Aquatic Biology (Supplementary Online) 5 English 

ZYU5301  Fish Biology & Fishery Management 
(Supplementary Online) 

5 English 

ZYU5302  Conservation & Mgt. of Biodiversity 
(Supplementary Online) 

5 English 

ZYU5304  Parasitology (Supplementary Online) 5 English 

ZYU5305  Human Biology (Supplementary Online) 5 English 

ZYU5306 Entomology (Supplementary Online) 5 English 

ZYU5307 Mammalian Biology (Supplementary 
Online) 

5 English 

ZYU5309  Paleobiology (Supplementary online) 5 English 

ZYU4301  Animal Form & Function (Supplementary 
online) 

4 English 

ZYU5303  Environmental Toxicology 
(Supplementary online)  

5 English 

ZYEA314  Research Methodology and 
Communication skills (Blended online) 

10 English 

ZYPA410  Defense Mechanisms in Vectors and 
Parasites (Blended online) 

10 English 

ZYPA411   Molecular Biology of Vectors and 
Parasites (Blended online)  

10 English 

ZYPA412-  Control of Arthropods of Vectors of 
Diseases (Blended online) 

10 English 

ZYU5313-  Research Methodology (Supplementary 
online) 

5 English 
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ADU5302 Mathematical Methods  5 English 

ADU5305 Statistical Inference  5 English 

ADU5307 Numerical Methods  5 English 

ADU5308 Graph Theory  5 English 

ADU5318 Bio Statistics  5 English 

ADU5319 Design and Analysis of Experiments  5 English 

ADU5320 Introduction to MATLAB Software  5 English 

PEU3300 Mathematical Logic and Mathematical 
Proofs 

3 English 

PEU3202 Vector Spaces 3 English 

PEU4300 Real Analysis I  4 English 

PEU4302 Linear Algebra  4 English 

PEU4316  Differentiable Functions  4 English 

PEU5302 Combinatorics 5 English 

PEU5305 Complex Analysis I 5 English 

Department of Physics 

FNU3201 Communication Skills  3 English 

PHU3300 General and Thermal Physics 3 English 

PHU3301 Basic Electormagnetism 3 English 

PHU3202 Waves in Physics 3 English 

PHU4300 Modern Physics 4 English 

PHU4301 Electronics 4 English 

PHU4302 Optics 4 English 

PHU4303 Mathematical Methods for Physics 4 English 

PHU5300 Nuclear and Particle Physics 5 English 

PHU5301 Practical Physics 5 English 

PHU5302 Atmospheric Physics 5 English 

PHU5303 Data Acquistion and Signal Processing 5 English 

PHU5304 BioPhysics 5 English 

PHU5305 Essentials of Geology 5 English 

PHU5306 Applied Geology 5 English 

PHU5307 Medical Physics 5 English 

PHU5308 Fundamentals of Geophysics 5 English 

PHU5311 Astronomy 5 English 

PHU5312 Solid State Physics 5 English 

PHU5313 Advanced Electromagnetism 5 English 

PHU5314 Thermodynamics 5 English 

PHU5318 Electronics for Biology students 5 English 

S- Sinhala T – Tamil E- English 

Table 28: Courses Offered Online– Natural Science 
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5.0. Research and Publications 
 

5.1  Research Projects / Papers 
 

Faculty / 
Centre 

Department 
Research 
Projects 

Papers 
Published 

Papers 
Presented 

Education Special Need Education  03 02 

Early Childhood & Primary 
Education 

 12  

Secondary & Tertiary Education  16  
Educational Leadership and 
Management 

- - 01 

Engineering 
Technology 

Agricultural & Plantation 
Engineering 

0 5 15 

Civil Engineering 0 1 0 
Electrical & Computer Engineering 0 0 0 
Mathematics & Philosophy of 
Engineering 

0 2 2 

Mechanical Engineering 1 9 4 
Textile & Apparel Technology 57 02 02 

Health Sciences Basic Sciences 01 03 02 
Medical Laboratory Sciences - 04 07 
Nursing - 02 21 
Pharmacy - - - 
Psychology & Counselling 01 04 03 

Humanities & 
Social Sciences 

Language Studies 01 08 16 
Legal Studies  21  
English Language Teaching (DELT)    
Social Studies  13 9 

Faculty of 
Management 
Studies 

Department of Human Resource 
Mgt. 

 5 3 

Department of Marketing 
Management 

 9 14 

Department of Organizational 
Studies 

 1 13 

Department of Accounting and 
Finance 

 6 11 

Natural 
Sciences 

Botany 11 18 7 
Chemistry 28   
Computer Science    
Mathematics     
Physics    
Zoology - 14 32 

Centre for Educational Technology & Media 0 11 1 
Regional Educational Services    
Library   07 
CESSD    

Table 29: Research Projects / Papers 

 
Details of publications are given in Annexure. 
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5.2 Books / Patents  
 

Faculty / Centre 
Chapters in 

Books 
Complete Books 

Education   

Engineering Technology 02  

Health Sciences   

Humanities & Social Sciences 03 06 

Faculty of Management Studies   

Natural Sciences B-1 c1  

Library 01  

Table 30: Books / Patents 

5.3 Awards  
 

Faculty / Centre 
University 

Awards 

National 

Awards 
International 

Education    

Engineering Technology    

Health Sciences  1 2 

Humanities & Social Sciences 02   

Faculty of Management Studies 04  01 

Natural Sciences 3 Botany5 zoo 1 cs  

Centre for Educational Technology & 
Media 

   

Regional Educational Services    

Table 31: Awards 
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Part 6 – Centres and Units 
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Figure 1:  Regional and Study Centres of the OUSL 

 

6.0. Centres and Units 
 

6.1 Regional Educational Services (RES) 

Regional Educational Services 
(RES) is considered as one of the 
key pillars of the OUSL 

While most of the other state 
universities are centrally 
operated, the OUSL as a 
pioneering Open Distance 
Learning (ODL) institute, operates 
with island wide network to offer 
higher education opportunities for 
all citizens.  

RES provides extensive support 
required by the six faculties of the 
university to conduct their 
academic programmes and 
reaching the unreached who 
aspire life-long education.  

The Colombo Regional centre is 
located at Nawala at the central 
campus and the other eight 
centres are situated in 
Anuradhapura, Badulla, 
Batticaloa, Jaffna, Kandy, 
Kurunegala, Matara and 
Ratnapura. Apart from these, the 
university also has 19 study 
centres around the country.   This 
network of centres ranges to almost 
all districts in Sri Lanka. There are 
nine Regional Centres (RC) 
established at each province (see Figure 1). Colombo RC has highest student populations and Kandy 
RC has the second highest student population.  

Functions of the RES 

In order to deliver the academic programs, Regional Educational Services (RES) division provides 

many support services. Some of such services are providing information, collection and 

submission of applications, registration, and re-registration of students, providing student 

counselling, distribution of course material, coordinating day classes / practical classes and 

conduct both continuous assessments and final examinations. Further to these routine functions, 

In the present of current pandemic RES has extended its services to external entities such as 

other state universities to conduct their academic activities. 

Highlights of year 2021 

The situation in the country with respect to the rise in the number of COVID 19 patients, leading 

to travel restrictions and disruptions in supply chain management largely affected the routine 
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activities of the OUSL. However, there were several highlights of the year 2021 amidst all 

calamities.  

• A long-lasting issue of ownership of land used by 19 centres were settled after obtaining 

the Cabinet approval 

• Completion of the construction of a new five story building for the Jaffna Regional Centre. 

• Expansion of Kilinochchi study centre is ongoing in the new land acquired with buildings 

provided by the state. 

• Capacity of computer labs were upgraded with five hundred new computers with the 

assistance provided by the AHEAD project 

• Actions were taken to provide wi-fi facilities to all regional and study centres.   

• Considering the current COVID 19 pandemic, printed course material are now delivered 

through a courier service to the doorstep of students by the OUSL 

• Mobile connections to all the Regional and Study Canters to effectively manage their 

activities.  

• Expanded the available human and capital services of the RES to selected other state 

universities such as University of Moratuwa, University of Kelaniya, University of 

Rajarata, University of Sri Jayewardenepura and University of Sabaragamuwa to conduct 

evaluations of students residing in each district. 

• Establish the Quality Assurance Cell to enhance the efficiency and productivity of the 

Regional Educational Services.   

 

6.2 Library 

 

Parallel to the global situation of 

COVID, the situation in Sri Lanka did 

not much improve, other than the few 

ups and downs that were reported 

during the past year. OUSL, just like 

any other Sri Lankan university, had to 

actively engage in the online delivery 

of programs. Most of the day schools 

and the exams were conducted 

through the online mode. OUSL library 

also as a precautionary measure, had 

to restrict the staff and students by 

allowing only borrowing and returning without allowing reference in the library.  Later in 

October, as the situation eased in the country the users were allowed to do reference in the 

library. 

Most of the important meetings that were chaired by the Vice Chancellor were made possible to 

attend through zoom, and so were the Library & Information Committee and the SSCQA, as a 

precautionary measure.  

During the year 2021, the library also encountered difficulties in clearing the foreign book 

parcels, with the restrictions imposed by the government on the foreign payments. 
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As a further step forward 

in the RES, the 2nd OUSL 

Unit was set up in the 

Hambantota Public 

Library and was 

ceremonially opened on 

21st of April 2021 with the 

participation of the VC, 

Registrar, Librarian and 

Bursar. Initial 

preparations were being 

processed for few other 

Public Libraries, such as 

Hatton and Ampara, to 

establish OUSL library 

units for the convenience of the OUSL students registered in the far away corners of the country. 

Towards the year end, the employees who were working from home, were made to come to the 

university and attend to their normal duties. 

As a result of this move, the university sort of 

came back to life although the students did 

not visit the university frequently, as it had 

been the practice during past years. 

OUSL library website played an important 

role during the COVID pandemic period, and 

most of the library services were delivered 

through the website. A hotline service for 

handling the inquiries of the students and the 

staff was initiated. The library has provided 

VPN connections to the OUSL Staff to access e-

journals from their homes.  

 

 

6.3 Staff Development Centre (SDC) 
 

The Staff Development Center (SDC) of The Open University of Sri Lanka (OUSL) was established 

to promote and support the quality of academic and administrative work by enhancing the 

capabilities of the staff of the University.  Towards this end, the SDC conducts and facilitates 

various training programmes and workshops to develop skills and competencies required to 

function as an effective employee of the University. Activities for professional development are 

conducted for all categories of academic and non-academic staff including administrative and 

support staff. The range of programmes and workshops offered covers not only work-related 

capabilities but spans to encompass personal development as well.   

The flagship programme of the SDC is the Certificate of Teaching in Higher Education (CTHE) 

programme conducted for newly recruited Lecturers (probationary) at OUSL. All Lecturers 

(probationary) need to successfully complete the CTHE programme, which is a UGC recognized 
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programme for their confirmation. The SDC has completed 5 rounds of CTHE programme. The 

Senior Induction programme for newly recruited Senior Lecturers is another key programme 

conducted by the SDC which is recognized even among other universities in Sri Lanka. The SDC 

also conducts Induction programmes for Management Assistants, Works Aides, Technical Officers 

and others as and when required. In addition, many Continuing Professional Development 

workshops and refresher courses are also carried to enhance career development of all staff of 

the university. 

The SDC annually conducts many programmes for improving the language skills of the employees. 

Toastmaster Speech Craft programme, academic writing programmes, communication 

programmes in Sinhala, Tamil and English for all staff of the university are some such 

programmes. Activities to promote mental wellbeing, motivational programmes and counseling 

workshops are also conducted annually. With all these workshops and programmes the SDC looks 

forward to enhancing knowledge, skills and attitudes of all the stakeholders. 

Despite the disruptions caused by the Covid-19 pandemic, the SDC was able to conduct 27 

workshops and programmes for all categories of staff during 2021. A large portion of employees 

have participated in these activities some of which were delivered via Zoom as well as a 

combination of hybrid and in-person sessions in keeping with the health guidelines.  

 

 

     

 

 

 

  

 

6.4 Career Guidance Unit (CGU) 

The Main Objective of the Career Guidance Unit is to facilitate, shaping and inspiring   

undergraduates of the Open University of Sri Lanka to be socially responsive efficient member of 

the future workforce. 

The Career Guidance Unit (CGU) of the OUSL plays a pivotal role in preparing students to undergo 

training as undergraduates to be employable and to ensure career progression as employed 

undergraduates.  

Career Guidance Unit organize workshops & Seminars in guiding students for gainful 

employment opportunities. This Unit is in the New CRC Building of OUSL at Nawala. In 

Collaboration with the faculties Career Guidance Unit organize workshops & seminars to help 

undergraduates to develop their skills & abilities required for coping with the needs of world of 

work.  
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This Unit Further Conducts Career Skill Development Programs and coordinates with potential 

employers In View of Bridging the Skill Gap Among the OUSL Students. StART@OUSL programme 

Is Also Coordinated by The Career Guidance Unit.  

 

The Career Guidance Unit conducted many attractive  workshops on how to be adopted  for a 

successful career journey, Beyond a job an entrepreneurial mind, Personality Development, 

Preparing Undergraduates for industry and 3Es, Educate, Empower Employ etc. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6.5 Press and Central Dispatch Unit 

Printing Press 

 

The Open University of Sri Lanka was established to deliver and disseminate knowledge through 

distance education methodology. A large volume of course material as well as other academic 

literature were required to facilitate this objective and the University Press was set up in the year 

1982 with UNDP assistance to print and deliver course material to the students. Having started 

with minimum and basic equipment it has now developed into a fully-fledged Printing Press 

equipped with modern machinery. At present there are fifty (50) staff members attached to the 

University Press who work round the clock to serve the OUSL Community. 

The Open University has over 40,000 students who are following various courses conducted by 

six faculties. The Primary function of the Press is to publish course materials for these courses 

and also facilitate the printing of leaflets, Annual Reports Academic Journals etc. In addition, the 
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University Press is entrusted with printing of  various official  documents required by the 

Administrative Divisions.  

Further, the University Press under the Consultancy of External Resource Centre undertake 

printing of materials requested by the Ministry of Higher Education, other Universities and a 

number of State Institutions. 

 

 

Printing of Material by the Press of the OUSL-2021 

  
No. of Copies of 

Course Materials 
No. of Copies of 

Course Brochures 
No of Copies of Other 

Materials 

January                            1,685                           -                              40  
February                           9,750                           -                               -    
March                         33,800                     5,420                   208,847  
April                           5,838                           -                  2,221,875  
May 

 The University was closed due to the covid-19 Pandemic.   
June 
July                           3,517                           -                               -    
August                           2,900                           -                         5,753  
September                         49,553                           -                               -    
October                         50,875                           -                               -    
November                         53,637                           -                         7,930  
December                         46,763                           -                       37,208  

Total                     258,318                    5,420              2,481,653 
 

The Central Dispatch Unit (CDU) 
 

The Central Dispatch plays a key role in the Open University of Sri Lanka (OUSL) in warehousing 

and dispatching course materials and ensuring availability of course materials when conducting 

registration at regional and study centres in time. It is the service provider for all six faculties for 

warehousing and dispatching course materials for the registered students. The volume of the CDU 

encompassed with 576 sub racks, volume of one sub rack is 1.5 m3 each to store course materials 

properly.  
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Objectives:  
 
➢ Collect all course materials from press of OUSL immediate just after completing of 

printing.  
➢ Dispatch course materials to 09 Regional Centres and 18 Study centres.  
➢ Functions: The Central Dispatch Unit is responsible for the following: 

 
• Warehousing of every printed course material.  
• Couriering course materials to registered students through contracted courier 

service.      
• Issuing course materials to the students whenever needed. 
• Dispatching course materials to Island wide regional and study centre via CGR, OUSL 

lorry and contracted courier service.     
• Receive any course materials return from regional and study centres. 
• Provide each copy of new course materials to main Library. 

 

Facilities/ infrastructure/ resources:  
- 45x20 m2 capacity building for warehousing of course materials with good environment 

condition.    

- Twelve staff attached to CDU to accomplish the mentioned objectives.  

- 576 sub racks, volume of one sub rack is 1.5 m3.  

- It is adjoined to the OUSL press. 

- Three permanent staff (Management Assistants - 03) 

- Nine contract staff (Project Assistants - 03 & Operation Assistants - 06)  
 

6.6 Centre for National Online Distance Education Service (CNODES) 

 

CNODES was established as a part of Distance Education Modernization Project (DEMP) in the 

year 2013 under the Ministry of Higher Education. This was handed over to the Open University 

in March 2015. Our vision is to be a leading facilitator and provider of on-line distance education 

in Sri-Lanka.  

With that vision, CNODES in the OUSL has the facilities to support to on-line education in 

following ways. 

•  Facilities to develop new online materials or transform the conventional course materials 

into online mode, material hosting and maintenance. 

•  Facilities to communicate with the masses at a distance using the state of art technology 

for e-Learning in a manner that is demanded by the organizations and other users.  

•  To organize, develop and conduct the various online learner assessment and evaluation 

criteria on market oriented setting. 

• To arrange and conduct the training sessions or workshops on online distance education 

methodologies and tools used today. 

During the year 2021, CNODES developed several proposals for outside organizations in related 

to on-line content development, hosting and maintenance and also to conduct online 

examinations., providing venues for conduct the final examinations in outside organaisations. 

Thus, it was taken steps to give more publicity for C-NODES services using electronic media.  
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6.7 International Relations Unit (IRU) 
 

The International Relations Unit (IRU) was established in October of 2013. It operates under the 
OUSL By-law Number 9 of 2016, made by the Council of the Open University of Sri Lanka under 
Section 135 of the University Act No. 16 of 1978 as amended to be read with Section 19 of the 
Open University of Sri Lanka Ordinance No. 01 of 1990 as amended.   
 
The IRU functions under the direct purview of the Vice-Chancellor and is managed by a Director. 
Its administrative and financial activities are governed by a Board of Management. The Director 
of IRU shall be an academic appointed by the Council of the OUSL on the recommendation of the 
Vice-Chancellor.  
 
The IRU provides expert advice and guidance to the university on the development of 
international relations strategies and the establishment of formal relationships and partnerships 
with universities and other entities around the world. 
 
The following are the objectives of the IRU:  

(a) Make strategies and country-specific recommendations to Institutes, Faculties, Senate and 
Council of the OUSL. 

(b) Facilitates the development and review of the OUSL’s formal bilateral and multilateral 
Agreements and Memoranda of Understanding (hereinafter referred to as MOU) with 
overseas entities. 

(c) Coordinate and promote international collaborative research and academic programmes 
for staff and students of the OUSL. 

(d) Secure opportunities for OUSL staff to develop as internationally recognized researchers 
and teachers. 

(e) Assist OUSL staff to contribute for the development of Sri Lanka by engaging in 
international projects and other activities.  

(f) Provide opportunities for OUSL staff and students to collaborate, disseminate and 
contribute globally.  

(g) Facilitate OUSL graduates to explore overseas career advancements. 
(h) Provide necessary assistance to overseas students, teachers and other visitors during 

their stay at OUSL.  
(i) Promote OUSL programs overseas and forge partnerships. 
(j) Coordinate relations with key international government and non-government agencies, 

diplomatic missions in Sri Lanka and Sri Lankan missions overseas. 
 

In achieving the above objectives, the IRU actively engaged in many activities during last seven 
years from 2013 to 2021. The following is the brief summary of the activities.   
 
 

1. Facilitating the bilateral and multilateral partnerships  

MOU signed by the OUSL 

S 
No 

Name of 
the 
Institute 

Country Signed 
Year 

Brief description of the MoU 

01 Okayama 
University  

Japan 2021 The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding 
is to promote bilateral relations and cooperation 
between the two institutions for cultural enrichment, 
scientific progress, and the consolidation of 
friendship between the two universities. 
 

Validity Period – 5 years 
 



65 
 

02 Korean 
National 
Open 
University 

Republic 
of Korea 

2021 The purpose of this MoU is recognizing the mutual 
interests in the fields of capacity building, research, 
development, education, training, transfer of skills 
and dissemination of knowledge on long term non-
commercial basis. 
 
Validity period – 5 years 
 

03 University 
of Essex 

UK 2021 The purpose of this MoU is to enable Essex and OUSL 
to pursue the Objectives by undertaking the Tasks, 
such as, the admission of suitably qualified students 
from OUSL to relevant degree courses at Essex, 
collaboration on research project of mutual interest, 
the mobility of students and/or members of academic 
staff as agreed between the Parties and as 
appropriate to the circumstances of each Party. 
 
Validity Period- 3 years 
 

 

MOUs and agreements with pending approvals   

S 
No 

Name of the 
Institute 

Country Status Brief description of the MoU 

01 Bharathidasan 
University, 
Tiruchirappalli 

India  Cabinet papers 
drafted. 
Pending 
approval of the 
cabinet. 

The purpose of this Memorandum 
of Understanding is to promote 
international agreement, scholarly 
collaboration, cultural interaction, 
and friendship by supporting 
educational, professional and 
cultural activities among faculty 
and students of the two institutions 
Validity Period - 5 years 

02 Kwantlen 
Polytechnic 
University 

Canada  Approval 
process at 
Foreign 
Ministry 

The objective of this MOU is to 
outline the understandings on 
which OUSL and KPU envision the 
development and execution of 
collaborative activities. 
Validity Period -3 years 

03 OERu New 
Zealand 

Approval 
process at 
Foreign 
Ministry 

Purpose The OERu international 
network recognizes the value of 
non-financial contributions from 
institutions that share our aim of 
widening access to educational 
opportunity for learners who face 
financial barriers to study or for 
whom conventional higher 
education is out of reach.        
Validity Period -3 years 

04 Shanghai Open 
University 

China Approval 
process at 
Foreign 
Ministry 

Scope of Collaboration 
Specific areas of cooperation 
between the two institutions, 
subject to the availability of funds 
and the approval of SOU and OUSL,   
Validity Period -5 years 
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05 Women in Science 
for the Developing 
World (OWSD) 
Early Career 
Women Scientists 
Program under 
UNESCO 

France Approval 
process at AG 
comments 
received 

Research Grant 
Considering the necessity of 
supporting women scientists from 
developing countries, the 
Administering Institution and 
UNESCO have agreed to facilitate 
the implementation of OWSD Early 
Career Fellowship (EC) programme.  
Validity Period- 5 years 

06 International 
Foundation for 
Science 

Sweden Approval 
process at 
Foreign 
Ministry 

Research Grant 
Project: 
Transition from flooded rice to dry 
rice cultivation: Impacts of altered 
flooding regime on yield, water 
balance and gas exchange of paddy 
fields in Sri Lanka 
 
Validity Period- 1 year 

 
Renewal of existing MOUs and agreements  

• University College of Leuven & Limburg, Belgium – at the approval stage in Attorney 
General’s Department 

• International Rice Research Institute, Philippine – Cabinet approval received – to be 
signed between the two parties  
 

2. Providing opportunities for OUSL staff for collaborative research and academic 
programmes   

A. Development of guidelines for international collaborations   
 Guideline for split-site PhD programme 
 Guideline for Visiting fellows and visiting scholars  
 Guideline for development of ‘overseas ready’ Programme 

 AAOU Inter – University Staff Exchange fellowship 2021 
 

Create awareness in OUSL staff and students with opportunities to collaborate, 

disseminate and contribute globally  

e-newsletters for the OUSL; Two e-newsletters initiated to disseminate information regarding 

the academic opportunities in overseas and events with overseas visitors to the OUSL.  They are 

named as ‘Opportunities and Prospects’ and ‘Events and Visitors’ and circulated fortnightly.  

IRU activities in the agenda of all Faculty boards: Activities of the IRU are reported in all 

Faculties as an agenda item as per the decision of the 26th BOM in 2020. This enables to create 

awareness on opportunities and events among the staff and obtain reflective feedback for further 

development of IRU.  

 Associated Overseas 
University 

Country  Name of the AAOU 
Scholar 

Duration in 
OUSL  

01 Indira Gandhi National 
Open University (IGNOU) 

India 
 

Dr. Saumya, 
 

1 month 

02 Bangladesh Open 
University 

Bangladesh Mr.  Md. Fakhrul 
Islam Patwary 

1 month 
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Webinar Series 
 

Webinar Topic Presenter Affiliated Institute  
Turning the next chapter, enrolling to 
overseas university for higher studies 
– part-1  
Date: 23/02/2021 

Ms. Sandarshi Gunawardena,  Fulbright commission 

Mr. Nadeesha Palliyaguru DAAD 

Ms. Ishani Goonsaekara OUSL Alumni 

Turning the next chapter: enrolling 
into overseas universities for higher 
studies – part. 2: UK Scholarships 
Programmes 
Date: 14/09/2021 
 

Ms. Ayuni Munasighe The British High Commission 

Ms.Nishika Hassim The British Council 

Facilitating the International Conference held at OUSL  

Name of the Workshop/ Conference  Delegate Affiliated Institution 
34th Asian Association of Open University 

annual conference  

Foreign and Local 

participants 

Asian Association of Open 
Universities 

 

3. Promote OUSL programs overseas and forge partnerships  

Update information for overseas students: Web page of the IRU is updated with information for 

overseas students. A FAQ developed to provide guidance for the overseas students who look 

forward to applying for. 

‘Overseas ready’ programmes: IRU developed a Guideline for the programme and it was approved 

by the Council. Meetings were held with the Department of Zoology, Department of Phycology & 

Counselling and Department of Nursing to discuss about developing programmes for overseas 

students according to these guidelines. Department of Zoology is currently developing a Diploma in 

Natural resources and Ecotourism which will be developed to offer this course in 2023. 

4. Facilitate OUSL graduates to explore overseas career advancement 

Program on OUSL Alumni in overseas academic institutes: This program was developed by the 
IRU to maintain link between alumni and institution. A Survey questionnaire conducted in the 
google-form for OUSL Alumni to collect their information and record their perception on the 
OUSL etc. Conducted virtual interviews with 6 selected OUSL alumni out of 34 contacted and a 
report prepared. Appointment of overseas alumni ambassadors is underway.   

5. Coordinate relations with key international government and non-government 

agencies, diplomatic missions in Sri Lanka and Sri Lankan missions overseas.  

Meeting with Diplomatic missions: The His Excellency Omar Abdul Razzak, the high 

commissioner of Maldives in Sri Lanka and his third Secretary visited the OUSL premises on 09th 

September 202. The meeting and the communication following it discussed about willingness to 

build partnerships with OUSL. Maldives is opening new island for Higher Education purposes and 

OUSL can be one of their partners. 

 Institutionalization of COL-L3F project: A joint project proposal submitted on e-extension 

solution with the Department of Export Agriculture (DEA) was successful and COL-approved 

funding for the first phase of the project. OUSL signed the agreements on 23 December 2021. The 

project, titled as Lifelong learning for farmers project in Export agriculture in Sri Lanka by the 

OUSL and the DEA, aims at building a sustainable model based on which the DEA will be able to 

enhance their reach to farm families to enhance the income, to improve the quality and quantity 

of the export crops to achieve operational excellence and to safeguard the environment. OUSL will 

pay a key role in supporting DEA in building the sustainable model of L3F.    
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6. Fostering partnerships with foreign universities and entities  

Overseas Research Students facilitated by IRU - 2021 

S. 
No 

Country Student  Research Topic  Affiliated Institution 

01 Belgium Mr. Dries 
Leopold Peeters 

Organizational 
Sustainability of House of 
Light Children’s home- a 
follow up research 

University College of 
Leuven and Limburg 
(UCLL) 

02 Belgium  Ms. Emma 
Hermine S. 
Leonard 

Which factors do play a role 
in the incidence of different 
types of infections in the 
Morawaka General 
Hospital? 

University College of 
Leuven and Limburg 
(UCLL) 

03 Belgium  Ms. Emma Marie 
R. Taragola 

A Study on how to inspire 
and motivate children from 
a young age (5 – 10 years) 
to stay in school by utilizing 
learning through play in 
OpenE Mannar, Sri Lanka 

University College of 
Leuven and Limburg 
(UCLL) 

04 Belgium Ms. Lien 
Stalpaert 

Mapping Gender Equality in 
Kandy 

University College of 
Leuven and Limburg 
(UCLL) 

05 Belgium Ms. Jutta Van 
Looveren 

The Role of Media within 
the Women Development 
Centre 

University College of 
Leuven and Limburg 
(UCLL) 

06 Belgium Ms. Stephanie 
Maria G. Hupert 

Creating Inclusive Learning 
Environments 

University College of 
Leuven and Limburg 
(UCLL) 

07 Belgium Ms. Aina Rosselló 
Van Assche 

Economic empowerment of 
women in Kandy 

University College of 
Leuven and Limburg 
(UCLL) 

08 Belgium Ms. Aline Jeroen 
Theresia Jozef 
Elisa Boniface 
Beckers 

Women and youth 
empowerment in Negombo 
(NAFSO) 

University College of 
Leuven and Limburg 
(UCLL) 

09 Belgium Ms. Faline 
Isabelle Geert de 
Bronett 

Special education for 
children with ASD 

University College of 
Leuven and Limburg 
(UCLL) 

10 Belgium Ms. Hanne 
Maryse Mark 
Meersman 

Health education University College of 
Leuven and Limburg 
(UCLL) 

11 Belgium Ms. Nina De 
Backer 

Women’s rights and 
domestic violence 

University College of 
Leuven and Limburg 
(UCLL) 

  

Popular Lectures organized (All these lectures could be viewed at the OUSL website): 2021 

S. 
No 

Distinguished Lecture Topic Presenter University 
 

01 Leaner support services Dr. Saumya Indira Gandhi National Open 
University (IGNOU) 

02 Quest for Functional Strategies in 
online teaching: Policy Approach 

Mr. MD. Fakhrul Islam 
Patwary  

Bangladesh Open University 
(BOU) 
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Registration of 5th batch of Overseas Research Students from UCLL and meeting with OUSL 

supervisors 

 

The His Excellency Omar Abdul Razzak, the high commissioner of Maldives in Sri Lanka visit to 

the OUSL premises 

 

34th Asian Association of Open University annual conference 
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Public Lecture by Dr. Saumya on “Leaner support services” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Public lecture by Mr. MD. Fakhrul Islam Patwary on “Quest for Functional Strategies in online 

teaching: Policy Approach” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fellows of AAOU Inter – University Staff Exchange fellowship 2021 
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6.8 Industry Liaison Centre (ILC) 
 
 

(1) IP Protection 

The ILC has been coordinating the protection of university Intellectual Property by 
assisting the researchers to file patent applications and design patents.  

(i) A patent application for Automated, self controlled ornamental orchid pot which 
was developed under the guidance of Prof. Darshini Weerahewa was filed with the 
National Intellectual Property Office.  

(ii)   A Paper quilling machine for paper crafting was developed and will be marketed 
through astartup.  ILC, has invented a new and useful invention by Mohammed 
Nisam Mohammed Nafees bearing NIC number 199619301568 and the university 
has submitted an application for a national patent.   

                   

       The title of Invention   : A fully automated Device for Quilling. 

       The patent                     : Patent Application number : 21532 

       Country of Patent           : Sri Lanka 

       Date                                                : 06th August 2021. 
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(2) Commercialisation of innovative food products 

Reserach carried out by some staff members of the The Department of Agriculture and 
Plantation Engineering has produced  several innovative food products. The ILC is taking 
steps to further develop these products and create startups using OUSL students to take 
these products to the market.  

(a) Development process of Fruit leather 

Several discussion were held with the team led by Dr. Nimsha Weerakkody that 
developed fruit leather using local fruits were held to discuss how to promote the product 
with commercial vendors.  
Varna Ltd Ratmalana was visited to identify suitable packing materials for the Fruit 
Leather product developed under the guidance of Dr. Nimsha Weerakkody.  
 

(3) DigiEduHack’2021 

 
Digi EduHack ’21, an Education Hackathon, organized jointly by European Commission, 
European Institute of Innovation & Technology (EIT) and Aalto University of Finland, 
with the Open University of Sri Lanka (OUSL) being a host for the event in Sri Lanka. The 
event promoted students in national universities to develop solution to problems 
associated with distance education.  
 

(4) Testing of Vertical Garden Kit- on going project 

The Vertical Garden Kit is a semi-automated low foot-print home kit for growing certain 
types of vegetables and legumes. to commercialization   research carried out by Prof. 
Darshani Weerahewa from the Botany Department. The project aims to build a 
commercialized prototype Vertical Garden kit which is an efficient and effective product 
to do gardening within a limited space. It maintains perfect environmental conditions 
required for the plant by controlling the factors required like light intensity, pH, Humidity. 

Currently this project is at the stage of pot testing of leafy vegetables and finalizing a 
lighting circuit. 

 
     
 

6.9 Centre for Educational Technology and Media (CETMe) 

 

The Educational Technology (ET) division {now Centre for Educational Technology and Media 

(CETMe)}, is one of the vital divisions in the Open University of Sri Lanka (OUSL) that enables the 

university to function as an ODL university. The self-instructional material is the main teaching 

component, unlike traditional face-to-face lectures in a conventional university.  Thus, the centre 

plays a pivotal role in designing, developing and maintaining the quality standards of self-

instructional material provided to learners thereby maintaining the quality standards of all OUSL 

study programmes. The centre is also accountable for formulating quality assurance guidelines 

and standards for the OUSL study material (print, audio-visual and online) and monitoring of all 

study material including online courses. Furthermore, it is also responsible for developing the 

capacity of the academics and facilitating them to develop high quality learning resources for the 

diverse learners who are scattered across the country. It currently serves all six Faculties in 

developing study material and online courses.  
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History 

Considering the importance of ET in an ODL university, the audio-visual unit was established at 

the inception of the OUSL in 1980 and transformed into an Educational Technology Division in 

1988 as an academic division under the OUSL Ordinance 1, 1987 (Figure 1). Later, in 1993, new 

State of the Art studio complex was built with financial assistance from the Japan International 

Cooperation Agency (JICA) and was opened on the 16th December 1993 (Figure 2). It is equipped 

with a television studio, dubbing and audio studios and post-production units to produce audio-

visual study material (Figure 3a and 3b). 

  

Figure 1: Mr Lal Gunawardena; first AV 
Technical Officer working in the Audio-
visual unit at the Management, Science 
and Technology (MST) building 
 

Figure 2: Establishment of the Studio 
complex with the assistance from JICA 
in 1993 

  
Figure 3a: Control room  Figure 3b: Main studio of the State of the 

Art studio complex 
The studio complex was further enhanced and transformed to a fully-fledged digital hi- definition 

television studio under the Capacity Enhancement (OUSL-CE) Project of the Distance Education 

Modernisation Project (DEMP – 2003-2009) – Figure 4a and b.  

 

 

 

 
 

Figure 4a: Control Room 
of the Studio Complex in 
1993  

Figure 4b: Control Room after digitisation of equipment 
with the assistance from OUSL-CE Project 

 

The establishment of the research cell in the division in 1994 paved way for recognising the 
importance of ODL research as an ODL university. This initiation was further strengthened with 
the capacity building workshops conducted by the Overseas Development Assistance (ODA), now 
Department for International Development (DfID) project (1996–1998) and with the recruitment 
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of two academic members to the division in 1996. The culture to conduct ODL research was 
gradually recognized and penetrated to the OUSL community.  

The online learning was first introduced to the OUSL in 2003 with the conduct of capacity 
building workshop conducted by the Commonwealth Educational Media Centre for Asia (CEMCA) 
and was streamlined during the DEM project and assigned the ET division in administering, 
reviewing and uploading of all online courses of the OUSL in 2007.  

Subsequently, the ET Division was restructured to a Centre for Educational Technology and 
Media (CETMe) with major structural changes in 2011 to accommodate new technological 
developments with two separate units; Academic and Research unit, and the Production unit.  

The Academic and Research Unit is responsible for;  

▪ formulating quality assurance guidelines, mechanisms and quality standards for OUSL 

course material (print, audio-visual and online) 

▪ conducting Continuous Professional Development (CPD) programmes for the OUSL 

academic staff in writing self-instructional material, producing audio-visual resources, 

designing and developing online courses and producing OUSL Open Educational 

Resources (OER) – Figure 5a-d. 

▪ facilitating and assisting the academic staff in developing self-instructional study material 

(print, audio-visual and online) 

▪ administering, reviewing and uploading of all online courses of the university 

▪ copyediting of all OUSL course material  

▪ ensuring quality standards of all OUSL course material and 

▪ conducting and facilitating research related to Open and Distance Learning (ODL) and 

Educational Technology. 

  
Figure 5a and 5b - PD Programmes conducted for the OUSL academics by CETMe (Ms. Geetha 
Kulasekara - left) and for the SAARC countries (Prof. Gayathri Jayatilleke - right)  
 

 

 

 

Figure 5c - PD Programme conducted for the 
participants of the SAARC countries in 2013 

Figure 5d - First overseas PD Programme - 
Maldives National University in 2014 

The Production Unit (Media House) of the CETMe is responsible for producing audio visual 
study material, undertaking audio visual coverages of all important events of the university 
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including annual convocations and award ceremonies. The Visual Art section of the CETMe is 
responsible for designing graphics and animations for both print and electronic media. They also 
design props for video productions. The Production Unit has an audio-visual library with a 
collection of diverse video footages collected over a period of forty years.  

Keeping with the view of “Open Knowledge Movement”, the OUSL has taken the initiative to 
promote creation and integration of Open Educational Resources (OER) since 2014. 
Transformation of the existing printed course material/learning resources into OUSL OER is 
carried out by the CETMe and enabled no-cost access to these OUSL resources to the global 
community via the OUSL web - www.ou.ac.lk (Figure 6).  

 

Figure 6: Access pathway to OUSL Open Educational Resources through the OUSL web 

The CETMe has also kept pace with developments in the educational technology and media 
landscapes. In 2018, the Centre has taken the initiative to house audio-visual resources in two 
digital repositories;  

▪ “Open Cast” especially dedicated to OUSL learners where they can access OUSL audio-
visual resources through their respective online courses and    

▪ dedicated “OpenUtube” which is an open access repository enabling the global community 
to access curated OUSL resources.  

The CETMe offers short courses on course writing, online course design and development, online 
mentoring and tutoring and film and television production.  

CETMe Contributions for the year 2021 amidst COVID pandemic 

The Centre has contributed immensely to the conduct of the two major events hosted by the OUSL 
this year; 34th Annual Asian Association of Open Universities (AAOU) conference which was 
hosted by the OUSL after 30 years and the Open University Research Sessions (OURS) conference. 
Having gone through this uncertain period with repeated alterations, both these conferences had 
to switch from onsite to virtual. The CETMe supported both these events to the fullest 
accommodating all the requests related to banners, backdrops, invitation cards, layout of 
magazine, cover pages for conference proceedings, animations, videos etc., amidst numerous 
challenges of working remotely.  Some of the examples are illustrated in Figure 7a-e. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 7a: Backdrop designed by the CETMe  
Illustrationist; Ms. N. Alahendra 

Figure 7b: Backdrop designed by the CETMe 

Illustrationist; Mr. S. Daladawatta 
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Figure 7c: Designing of banners and invitation card and producing videos by the CETMe 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 7d: Compering by CETMe lecturer; Ms Mayanthi Jayakody 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 
7e: Photography by CETMe technical officer; Mr J. Jayaweera 
 

The CETMe facilitated one of the Asian Association Open Universities (AAOU) research fellows; 

Mr. Fakhrul Islam Patwary from Bangladesh University (BOU) under the inter-staff exchange 

fellowship from 15th November -15th December 2021. Ms. G. Kulasekera; senior lecturer of the 

CETMe was the OUSL research collaborator.  His talk on “Quest for functionals strategies in online 

teaching: Policy Approach” was recorded at the CETMe studios along with the other AAOU fellow; 

Dr Saumya from Indira Gandhi National Open University (IGNOU) and uploaded to the OpenUtube 

(Figure 8).  

 

Figure 8: Mr. Fakhrul Islam Patwary; AAOU research fellow 
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Achievements   

Over the past four decades, the CETMe has won many international, national and institutional 
awards in the areas of research (5 international and 4 institutional awards), video productions 
(10 international, 3 national and 2 institutional awards) and one institutional award for best 
multimedia production.   

This year too, the CETMe has won one institutional award for research at the annual Open 
University Research Sessions (OURS 2021) conducted by the OUSL.  In addition, two staff 
members; Ms. Dinithi Uthpala Ranasinghe (lecturer) and Mr. Samith Daladawatta (newly 
appointed illustrationist) had won national awards. Ms Ranasinghe won the Best Poetry Criticism 
for the year 2020 at the 4th Santhawa Award Ceremony held on 30th April 2021 (Figure 9a). This 
event was organized by the Santhawa Publishers to promote literary criticism practices among 
readers and it is the only award offered for Sinhala poetry criticism at the national level.  

Mr. Daladawatta won the 3rd place and a merit award in the Vistosa ’20 photography competition 
organized by photographic Art Society of Ranabima Royal College (Figure 9b & c).  

 

 
Figure 9a Ms. Dinithi Uthpala Ranasinghe 
with her award 

Figure 9b Mr. Samith Daladawatta with his 
awards 

 
 

Merit Award 
Figure 9c – Award winning photographs by Mr S. Daladawatta 

New Appointments in 2021 

Strengthening the human resources in the Centre was accomplished this year, fulfilling a dire 

need that existed for more than seven years which hampered the smooth functioning of the 

Centre drastically. Two illustrationists were appointed in February 2021 and eight audio visual 

technical officers were appointed in December 2021.      

Future direction 

Based on its solid work and achievements in the past, and with capable new recruited staff at 

present, the CETMe will continue to provide quality services and direct the entire OUSL 

community towards the branding of OUSL through maintaining the high quality standards of its 

study programmes thereby enable the OUSL to reach its vision of “Education for all through life-

long learning”.    
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6.10  Consultancy & External Resources Centre -CERC 
 

The Centre for External Resources & Consultancy (CERC) is a division established by the Open 

University of Sri Lanka (OUSL) to facilitate and enhance the collaboration between the University 

and the Sri Lankan community. Also, through the CERC, the university can utilize its human and 

physical resources, when available, to the betterment of the country. The CERC is managed by a 

Board of Management comprising the Vice-Chancellor who is the chairman of the board, director 

and nominated member of both academic and administrative staff with two Council 

representatives. 

The CERC undertakes assignments such as research programmes, short courses, consultancy 

services, extension courses, training and continuing professional development courses. The 

academics of respective academic departments and divisions could undertake such assignments 

without prejudice to the primary commitments to the OUSL. The CERC assignments are 

developed by the academic department after analysing the current trends and needs of the 

society. Also, there are many assignments which are tailor-made to suit the requirement of the 

client who is an external institution. A CERC project can commence once the approval has been 

granted by the university council. The OUSL will offer the required physical and human resources 

to conduct and complete the assignment successfully. 

CERC always welcomes Sri Lankan Community, especially public sector and private sector 

institutions, government authorities, fellow academic institutions, etc., to utilize the extensive 

human and physical resources of the OUSL to achieve their goals, and at the same time CERC 

extends its fullest support and encourage active participation of OUSL staff in CERC assignments.  

In 2021, OUSL has provided Consultancy Services and CPD programmes to many public & private 

organizations including the State Ministry of Rural Roads and Related Infrastructure, Department 

of Immigration and Emigration, Central Environmental Authority, The University of Jaffna, 

Institution of Engineers, Sri Lanka Navy, Ministry of Education and many Pradesheeya Sabha 

Councils. Furthermore,  CERC has more than 35 ongoing short courses which cater for thousands 

of students all over Sri Lanka in the disciplines of Engineering, Natural Sciences, Management, 

Language Studies, Social Sciences, Health Sciences and Education. 
 

6.11  Research Division 

OUSL established the Research Division in February 2014 to serve as a vehicle to spearhead its 

research mandate. This Division is headed by the Director, Research. 

The Division of Research will advance the academic and research mission of the university while 

promoting a culture that exemplifies excellent service, transparency, collaboration and innovation. 

The Division of Research promotes faculty, staff and student success by facilitating collaborative and 

innovative research, scholarship and creative activities. The Division strives to expand research and 

national development, integrate research with instruction and public service, and foster cross 

disciplinary collaboration. 

Following activities/tasks were completed in year 2021 

1. Organized Open University Research Sessions 2021 (OURS 2021) from 16th to 17th September 

2021 on a fully online ZOOM platform. 
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2. Organized a Panel Discussion on Post pandemic higher educational experience and Gender 

(in)equality on 17th September 2021 to conduct parallel with the Technical Sessions of OURS 

2021. 

3. Organized pre-conference lectures (02) and workshops (02) on 13th and 14th September 2021 

 

Workshop 1 – Technology Transfer and Commercialization by Prof. Rangika Halwatura 

 

Workshop 2 – Sampling Methods for Cloud Based Internet for Things (IoT) 

 by Dr Upeka Premaratne and Dr Uthpala Premarathne 

 

Lecture 1 – Interdisciplinary perspective in Educational Research : A path towards    

Innovation by Prof. Manjula Vithanapathirana 

 

Lecture 2 - Effective Online  Teaching Strategies by Prof. T M S S K Yatigammana Ekanayake 

 

4. Organized two Lectures as follows 

 

Lecture 1- How to write an effective abstract by Prof. J. W. Hewage on 05.05.2021 

 

Lecture 2 - How to perform an effective research presentation by Prof. Rohan Weerasooriya on 

12.03.2021 

5. Compiled Research Publications of OUSL staff Database of 2020. 

6. Compiled Research Grants for OUSL staff Database from 2018 – 2020. 

7. OUSL Council approval was obtained for the following 

➢ OUSL Policy for Research Funding. 

➢ Guidelines for Postgraduate thesis submission. 

➢ Material Transfer Agreement. 

➢ Non-Disclosure Agreement. 

8. Advertised the following Research Grants. 

➢ OUSL Competitive Research Grant 

➢ OUSL Innovation Grant 

➢ OUSL Faculty Research Grants 

9. Distributed the allocated fund of Rs. 10 million of Faculty Research Grants 2021 among the 

applicants of selected Research Proposals. 

10. Distributed Rs. 2.8 million for Competitive Research Grants among three (03) OUSL academic 

staff members of selected Research Proposals. 

11. Evaluated five (05) applications received to the Ethics Review Committee for Ethical 

clearance. 

Open Univerity Research Sessions 2021 –(OURS 2021) 
Importance events of the virtual OURS 2021 confernce 
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Topic –‘ Nexus between Covid 19 pandemic and economic crisis: A human resource development 

perspective’ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Keynote speaker - Prof. Nalin de Silva 

Topic – ‘Electrospun nanomaterials for drug 

delivery, tissue engineering and cancer therapy’ 

 

Keynote speaker - Prof Mario López-Gopar 

Topic-‘ Decolonizing language teaching in 

COVID times’ 

 

Chief Guest - Prof. H. D. Karunarathne 
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6.12 Centre for Environmental Studies and Sustainable Development 
(CESSD)   

The Centre for Environmental Studies & Sustainable Development (CESSD) of the Open University 

of Sri Lanka was upgraded to a centre in 2015 which was initially established as an 

Environmental Science Unit (ESU) in 1998 with the primary aim of offering Postgraduate Diploma 

in Environmental Science. Since 2007 CESSD offers a Master of Science Degree Programme in 

Environmental Sciences which is designed and conducted by a team of academics of different 

faculties at the Open University. The M.Sc. in Environmental Science programme has evolved into 

one of the best M.Sc. in Environmental Science programmes offered through Open and Distance 

(ODL) mode by the Sri Lankan university system.  

CESSD consists of a staff of seven members including a director and two permanent academics. 

Further, CEESD is in the process of introducing diploma programmes, short courses, stand-alone 

courses and trainings in the field of environmental sciences. It also engaged in collaborative 

research projects with the University of Tokyo in Japan and University of Sri Jayewardenepura on 

“Microplastics and persistent organic pollutants in river water”. 

In addition to that, the Webinar on "Are Other State Forests in Danger?" organized by CESSD was 

held on 23rd March 2021 focused on discussing the consequences of this drastic measure and the 

current status of 'Other State Forests' within the current context.  

 

The centre plays a 
prominent role in 
converting the Open 
University to a green 
university by 
converting the 
university landscape to 
a green landscape and 
converting the existing 
buildings to green 
buildings. Further, 

CESSD organized OUSL green day programme 2021, as a result of COVID CESSD screened the 
documentary film of "Story of Plastic" on 17th June 2021 and shared Plastic Atlas to raise 
awareness on the issue of plastic among the members of the OUSL community. 

 

The CESSD offers consultancy services in the areas of water and wastewater treatment, industrial 

wastewater treatment, waste and energy management and train the environmental officers and 

other related human resources by providing their expertise knowledge.  
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7.0. Future Plans - 2022 
 
Given below are some of the future programmes that are envisaged to be implemented to further expand 

and improve the services of the Open University of Sri Lanka in meeting the objectives of its mission as the 

premier Open and Distance Learning higher educational institution in Sri Lanka. While proposing these 

projects, aspects of sustainable development are/ would be taken into consideration. 
 

1. The University will continue with its effort to convert the main Campus and the Colombo Regional 

Centre to a Green campus based on the Green Policy of the University have been finalized. Action will 

be taken to implement these plans during the year 2021. Further, June 17, 2021 has been declared as 

the OUSL Green Day. University submitted the application to UI Green Metric ranking in October 

2021.  
 

2. Based on the discussions with the Colombo Municipal Council steps are being taken to introduce a 

sewerage and drainage system for the main campus and the Colombo Regional Centre during the 

present sewerage upgrade work that is being carried out by the Colombo Municipal Council. 
 

3. Number of other projects to upgrade the Main Campus and the Regional and Study Centres are being 

planned and are expected to be completed during the year 2021.  These include  
 

a. Continuing with the construction work of the 5-storied building for the Faculty of Health 

Science 

b. Completion and opening of the new 4-storied building of the Jaffna RC. 

c. Construction of Student study area in Colombo Regional Centre 

d. Temporary Examination Hall for Batticaloa Regional Centre  

e. Temporary Examination Halls for Kalutara, Gampaha, Amparai, Mannar, Kandy, Bandarawala 

Study Centres. 

f. Initiation of construction of new centres in Badulla RC, Ratnapura RC, Trincomallee SC, Mannar 

SC, and Hatton SC 

g.  To develop the Integrated Management Information System, University compiled the Business 

Process encompassing all requirements upon stakeholder consultation.  

h. To enhance the visibility and image of the OUSL, existing building facilities will be refurbished 

at Nawala and Narahenpita entrances.  

i. Five departments of Faculty of Health Sciences submitted self-evaluation reports to the Quality 

Assurance Council of the UGC to ensure the quality assurance process.     
 

4. Increased collaborations with local and international partners in offering joint Study 

Programmes through the ODL mode including the possibility of offering the OUSL programmes 

in other countries. Discussions conducted with the Maldivian High Commissioner to offer OUSL 

programmes in Maldives.    

5. The Ordinance of the OUSL is to be reconstituted to address the challenges that are faced by the 

University with the expansion of its activities and the complex administrative structure, powers, 

duties, and functions of the OUSL.  

6. Restructuring of Regional Educational Services to handle most of the academic, administrative, 

and financial activities at the respective places with the guidance of the main bodies of the 

University. 

7. The first phase of the OMIS to be completed by February 2021. Development of the second 

phase of the new OMIS to begin and completed over a period one year 

8. By the end of 2021, the whole of the Main Campus and all the Regional Centres of the OUSL to be 

provided with WIFI facility.  

9. Expansion and strengthening of the Learner Support Unit of the University to meet all the 

Learner Support needs of the students of the OUSL. In connection with this all 6 faculties 

established learner  support units.   

10. University to host the AAOU 2021 Annual Conference in Sri Lanka from June 1-3, 2021. 
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11. Development of partnerships with the public libraries to enhance library services to OUSL 

students in the towns where Study Centres of the OUSL are situated. 

12. Through Centre for National Online Distance Educational services expand the services provided 

to other educational institutes to delivelr courses online. 

13. Enhance the physical infrastructure for developing sports activities within the University. 

14. Expansion of the activities of the Industry Liaison Centre to meet the targets set by the AHEAD 

project. 

15. Establishment of a separate Online Examination Unit within the Examination Division of the 

University. Development of the necessary policies and guidelines to conduct online 

examinations without problems. 

16. The University website would be revamped to be more user-friendly than the present one. 

17. Expanding the student reach of the university by offering new study programmes. A special 

emphasis will be given to the expansion of the IT degree programme to cater to at least 5,000 

students to meet the goals of the Government of Sri Lanka to expand the IT industry of Sri 

Lanka. 

18. Record Management Policy of the University to be finalized and a more systematic record 

management process to be implemented.  

19. Updated computerized Human Resource Module to be implemented before the end of 2021. 

20. Automated attendance and leave application system for staff to be implemented. 

21. New communication solution to be implemented to the entire university, including the Regional 

and Study Centre.  

22. A more regularized and responsive student response system to be implemented to address the 

various queries raised by the students. 

23. Enhance quality of study programmes to reach national and international quality assurance 

benchmarks. 

24. Upgrade and develop learning resources.  

25. Enhance programme / course delivery and evaluation mechanisms. 

26. Increase opportunities for practical exposure in relevant industries while enhancing 

entrepreneurial qualities of students. 

27. Strengthen the mechanisms to augment research and innovation and improve the quality of 

research publications. 

28. Improve postgraduate research student enrolments with international participation and achieve 

regional and global recognition. 

29. Increase the visibility of university research and innovations. 

30. Increase opportunities for continuous professional development and strengthen opportunities 

for inter-disciplinarily education.  

31. Staff Development Centre broad based its training activities to cover all categories of University 

staff to increase efficiency and productivity.  

32. The OUSL initiate first ever joint Masters degree programme in collaboration with the European 

Union and three other partner universities namely University of Peradeniya, Moratuwa and 

Ruhuna.  

33. In house expertise and labour are utilized to repair and refurbishment of buildings of the 

University.  

34. Increased staff and student welfare facilities. Student Council office relocated in new premises 

and discussions are underway with People’s Bank to introduce credit card facilities for 

employees to settle medical bills at the time of discharging from hospitals.   
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8.0. Finances  
 

8.1 Recurrent Expenditure: 
 

Subject 2020 in LKR 2021 in LKR 

a. Personal emoluments 2,575,717,511 2,506,037,057 

b. Travelling 2,004,100 3,096,861 

c. Supplies 32,994,863 34,963,983 

d. Maintenance 30,530,747 26,846,192 

e. Contractual services 316,718,130 306,090,221 

f. Other 166,291,569 128,766,488 

Total 3,124,256,920 3,005,800,802 

 
 

8.2 Capital Expenditure: 
 

Subject 2020 in LKR 2021 in LKR 

a. 
Acquisition of furniture & other Office 
Equipment 

112,974,522 15,389,830 

b. Acquisition of Machineries 778,913 2,434,759 

c. Acquisition of Building & Structures 79,782,217 194,273,440 

d. 
Other (Library Books, Cloaks and Motor 
Vehicles) 

9,101,434 8,456,159 

  Total 202,637,086 220,554,188 
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8.3  Details of Project Income & Expenditure (Local / Foreign Funded) 
 
 

Name & Details Funding Agency 

Total Cost 

Estimated 

[TCE] Rs.  

 Exp. In 

2019 

 Exp. In 

2020 

 Cumulative 

Exp.  As at 

31.12.2021  

% of 

Physical 

Progress 

Domestic 

Fund (DF) 

(Rs.) 

1 Collaborative Open Educational Resources 
(OER) ICT Skills 

Commonwealth of 
Learning      1,008,467.37                         -                          -            906,070.69  90%   

2 eLearning Course Development- Instructional 
Video Production for Teaching  and Learning    
(C17-054)   

Commonwealth of 
Learning 

     2,773,144.06                         -                          -        1,907,392.74  69%   

3 Design, Development, Implementation and 
Evaluation of a Massive Open Online Course 
for Continuous Professional Development 
(CPD MOOC) for Educators on  "Adoption of 
Open Educational Resources (OER) and Open 
Educational Practices (OEP): A Design-based 
Capacity Development Initiative"      (19-ED-
262) - Phase 02 

Commonwealth of 
Learning 

     3,500,886.78  1,534,764.00                       -        3,500,477.86  100%   

4 E-Library Automation Project Ministry of Provincial 
Councils & Local 
Government 

     1,008,467.37                         -                          -            906,070.69  90%   

5 Offering Short Course on Research 
Methodology for Teacher Educators in 
Collaborative with the Ministry of Education 

Ministry of 
Education 

     1,925,000.00  313,697.00        48,000.00      1,526,297.00  79%   

6 Funds for Centre of Gender Equity UGC         770,000.00  1,900.00                       -     58,908.22   8%   

7 Curriculum Development of Short Term 
Training Package for Trainers of ECD Teacher 
Trainers and ECD Teachers, under the ECD 
Project of the Government of Sri Lanka 

Ministry of Women 
& Child Affairs 

        956,425.00                         -                          -            582,134.00  61% 
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Name & Details Funding Agency 

Total Cost 

Estimated 

[TCE] Rs.  

Exp. In 

2019 

Exp. In 

2020 

 Cumulative 

Exp.  As at 

31.12.2021  

% of 

Physical 

Progress 

Domestic 

Fund (DF) 

(Rs.) 

8 Women Empowerment to Promote Mobile 
Learning among Rural Women Farming 
Community  

Commonwealth of 
Learning      1,423,245.94                         -                          -            821,277.41  58% 

  
9 Upscaling Lifelong Learning for Farmers by 

the Open University of Sri Lanka in 
Collaboration with the Ministry of 
Telecommunication and Digital Infrastructure 
(A/C.No. CR18-299).  

Commonwealth of 
Learning 

     1,207,392.74  553,138.67           731,492.73  61% 

  
10 Adoption of the Commonwealth Digital 

Education Leadership Training in Action (C-
DELTA) Programme by Teacher and Students 
of Higher Secondary School Level in Sri Lanka 
(A/C .No C-19-008) 

Commonwealth of 
Learning 

     5,783,308.56  2,005,060.00     923,394.01      5,626,917.30  97% 

  
11 Imprest for Encourage University Students " 

Engagement in Extracurricular Activities" 
Ministry of Higher 
Education      4,500,000.00                         -                          -        3,766,709.00  84% 

  
12 CONTESSA University of Graz      9,505,375.30       613,818.37         56,000.00      2,314,509.69  24%   
13 COL-Lifelong Learning for Farmers- Phase 1 

(C20-318) 
Commonwealth of 
Learning         406,595.56                         -                          -                             -    0% 

  
14 Preliminary Studies for Constructing Rural 

Pedestrian / Narrow Vehicle Bridges 
State Ministry of 
Rural Roads and 
other Infrastructure 

   18,686,300.00                         -                          -      18,686,300.00  100% 

  
15 Short Course on Irregular  Migration, Human 

Smuggling & HU Trafficking  
Department of 
Immigration & 
Emigration of Sri 
Lanka 

        300,000.00                         -                          -              10,000.00  3% 

  
16 Development of a public e-Library Centre & 

the Nodal Point 
Ministry of Provincial 
Councils & Local 
Government 

     9,949,575.00    2,826,148.50   2,194,785.00      9,949,575.00  100% 
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8.4 Details of Financial Progress (Expenditure): 
 

Subject 
Provision in 2021 

(Rs.) 
Exp. in 2021    

(Rs.) 
Savings/      Excess 

(Rs.) 

a. Recurrent except 
Project  

3,319,900,000 3,455,670,445 (135,770,445.00) 

b. Capital except Project 855,872,000 98,048,009 
 

757,823,991.00 

Total 4,175,772,000 3,553,718,454  

 
❖ Including Depreciation & Impairment of Receivables (Students)  

 
 
 

 

8.5  Details of Financial Progress (Generated Income): 

 

Source of Revenue 
Provision in 

2021(Rs.) 
Collection in 2021 

(Rs.) 
Deficit/ Surplus 

(Rs.) 

a. Undergraduate Studies  779,250,000 727,940,792 51,309,208 

b. Postgraduate Studies 259,750,000 242,646,931 17,103,069 

d. Other  107,700,000 161,634,461 (53,934,461) 

Total 1,146,700,000 1,132,222,184  
 

 
 
 
 

8.6  Financial Performance Analysis – 2021: 

 

Subject Formula 

Exp. Per 

Student   

(Rs.) 

a. Recurrent Expenditure per 

Student 

Recurrent Expenditure /No of students                
76,076.96 

b. Capital Expenditure per 

Student  

Capital Expenditure /No of students  
5,582.24 
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9.0. Final Accounts 
   

9.1  Statement of Financial Position as at 31.12.2021 
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9.2 Statement of Financial Performance for the year ended 31.12.2021 
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9.3  Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st December 2021 
 

 



127 
 

9.4 Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31.12.2021 
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9.5 Notes to the Financial Statements 
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9.6 Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amount 
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9.7 The Classification of Expense by Nature 
   Rs.  Rs. 

Operating Revenue 
 2021  2020 

  
(Audited) 

Recurrent Grant  

         
2,280,000,000   

        
1,920,000,000  

Amortization of Donations  

              
83,562,992   

             
81,752,918  

Amortization of Capital Grant  

              
63,874,828   

             
80,328,867  

Other Income   

         
1,050,096,831   

           
883,885,954  

Other  Funds  

              
66,090,593   

             
33,907,723  

Total Operating Revenue  

         
3,543,625,244   

       
2,999,875,461  

Operating Expenses       

Personal Emoluments   

         
2,506,037,057   

        
2,575,717,511  

Traveling                 3,096,861                  2,004,100  

Supplies and Consumable Used              34,963,983   

             
32,994,863  

Maintenance  

              
26,846,192   

             
30,530,747  

Contractual Services  

            
306,090,221   

           
316,718,130  

Research and Development                  4,885,866                  4,360,141  

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses  

            
403,248,964   

           
417,440,219  

Other Operating Expenses             165,729,287   

           
167,560,604  

Total Operating Expenses  

        
3,450,898,431   

       
3,547,326,316  

Surplus/(Deficit) from Operating Activities               92,726,813   

        
(547,450,854) 

Finance Cost  

              
(4,772,013)  

             
(1,555,230) 

Loss on Sales of Property Plant and Equipment                                   -                                     -    

Total Non Operating Revenue (Expenses)  

              
87,954,799   

        
(549,006,085) 

Net Surplus/(Deficit) before Extra Ordinary 
items                                    -                                    -    

Net surplus/(deficit) for the period  

             
87,954,799   

       
(549,006,085) 
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9.8 Financial Highlights in the Preceding 5 Years 
The Open University of Sri Lanka 

Financial Highlights in the Preceding 5 years 
 

Description 2017 
2018  

(Restated) 
2019                        

(Restated) 2020 2021 
Income      
Government Grant for 
Recurrent Expenditure 1,112,575,000 1,320,000,000 1,600,000,000 1,920,000,000 2,280,000,000 
Capital Grant for Research 15,666,226 9,425,000 9,000,000 - - 
Interest on Investments 108,059,176 113,333,807 93,743,600 40,531,326 22,745,899 
Interest from Loans &  
Advances 2,660,334 3,299,244 3,376,124 3,458,172 3,233,012 
Rent From Properties 3,164,540 3,000,399 1,953,813 2,827,241 958,841 
Sale of  Old Stores 351,087 1,973,022 783,820 4,100  
Miscellaneous  Income 9,122,597 11,176,486 12,540,349 11,914,685 18,344,085 
Registration  Fees 22,312,098 4,256,403 25,354,799 7,560,100 17,679,366 
Income from Students 1,201,227,143 812,508,895 1,214,557,500 739,787,584 951,801,361 
Examination  Fees 4,305,118 1,696,349 4,754,172 4,332,170 1,106,996 
Sale of 
Publications/Applications 26,998,669 27,612,887 14,199,170 50,422,798 24,657,224 
Library Fines 437,290 325,840 280,520 91,770 11,438 
Supplementary  Fees 3,490 3,500 3,500 - 75,000 
Hostel  Fees 2,125,375 1,546,050 1,633,500 504,350 45,450 
Income from short courses 
& other Sources 75,891,900 46,000,262 29,136,288 51,397,032 82,125,354 
Hiring of Vehicles 129,395 245,977 105,674 64,747  
Income from Violation of 
Bonds 4,653,994 5,227,117 8,427,337 22,386,910 9,420,072 
Exchange Rate Difference     17,085 
Amortization of Donations 
& Capital Outlay 117,931,706 117,488,957 121,416,738 81,752,918 83,562,992 
Amortization of Capital 
Grants - Spent 80,944,065 79,925,309 82,823,152 80,328,867 63,874,828 

Total 2,788,559,203 2,559,045,504 3,224,090,058 3,017,364,771 3,559,660,004 
Expenditure      
General Administration & 
Staff Services 395,422,569 460,931,733 459,503,554 415,057,866 428,252,430 
Add:  Depreciation 381,834,830 310,819,599 345,022,489 381,587,113 399,806,872 

 777,257,399 771,751,332 804,526,043 796,644,979 828,059,302 
Disposal of Non Circulation 
& Staff Services     2,891,380 
Impairment of receivable 
(Student) 28,380,797 31,229,282 37,827,384 40,655,161  
Amortization of Intangible 
Assets - 14,294,118 2,382,353 2,382,353 3,442,092 
Impairment of receivable 
(Staff/Students) - - - - 43,729,298 
Exchange Rate Difference - - 11,706   
Academic Services 1,593,463,800 1,792,238,763 2,540,839,811 2,397,981,360 2,254,650,720 
Teaching Resources 97,029,215 120,022,702 158,260,681 146,332,728 137,930,943 
Health Services 4,711,877 5,095,028 5,510,585 6,220,381 6,641,971 
Maintenance of Land & 
Buildings 47,119,843 55,210,179 66,606,729 60,435,254 57,185,474 
Ancillary  Activities 92,073,948 106,647,186 124,669,971 98,229,330 121,139,264 

Total 2,640,036,879 2,896,488,590 3,740,635,263 3,548,881,546 3,455,670,445 
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10.0 Audit Reports 
 

10.1 Auditor General’s Report 
 

Vice- chancellor  

The Open University of Sri Lanka 

Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements and other legal and regulatory 

requirements of the Open University of Sri Lanka for the year ended 31 December 2021 

in terms of section 12 of the National Audit Act No. 19 of 2018. 

1.    Financial Statements  

1.1 Qualified Opinion  

 

The audit of financial statements of the Open University of Sri Lanka for the year ended 31 

December 2021 comprising the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021 

and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in equity, cash flow 

statements, notes to the financial statements for the year then ended and a summary of a 

significant accounting policies, was carried out under my direction in pursuance of 

provisions in Article 154(1) of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri 

Lanka and provisions of the National Audit Act No.19 of 2018. My report will be tabled in 

parliament in terms of the Article 154(6) of the Constitution in due course. 

 

In my opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the section Qualified 

Opinion of my report, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial 

position of the University as at 31 December 2021 and its financial performance and cash 

flows for the year then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting 

Standards.   

 

1.2 Basis for Qualified Opinion  

 

(a) Even though library books amounting to Rs. 194,197,449  has been completely depleted 

due to not annually reviewing the residual value and useful life time of an asset in terms 

of paragraph 65 of Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards 07, it has continuously 

been used.  Accordingly, action has not been taken to revise the estimated error in terms 

of the Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards 03. Further, such assets have not 

been disclosed in terms of the paragraph 92 of standards. 

 

(b) The cost of remaining stock of the course materials as at 31 December 2021 has been 

overstated as Rs. 1,480,000. 

 

(c) Action has not been taken to account the estimated value of Rs. 6,500,000of 02 cars that 

has been received from the Office of the Presidential Secretariat in March 2020.  

 

(d) Due to not accounting the interest income of Rs. 1,322,959 receivable for the year under 

review relevant to 07 fixed deposits, an equivalent amount of the surplus and interest 

income receivable for the year was understated in the financial statements. 
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(e) The difference of Rs. 442,108,770 between the balance of the Student Control Account 

and balance of the unrecognized Student Income Account has been accounted as 

receivable student income without correctly recognizing the receivable student income 

relevant for the year under review. Also, the time analysis relevant to the receivable 

student income and unrecognized student income has not been submitted for audit.  

 

(f) Without preparing source documents such as payment voucher, receipt or journal 

voucher, depreciation and provision for depreciation and assets accounts have been 

mentioned by Computer Accounting System using entries. In order to correct the 

incorrect entries in such entries, Rs. 335,896,468 has been removed from depreciation 

and provision for depreciation accounts by using journal entries at the end of the year. 

Also, a journal entry was not used to correct the Rs. 1,198,818 of overcharged 

withholdings. 

 

(g) Intangible assets of Rs. 4,847,854 as at 31 December 2021 has not been amortized from 

the date of purchase to the year under review.  

 

(h) Even though the construction of the seven-storey building of Jaffna Regional Centre 

amounting to Rs. 186,010,726 has been completed on 15th March 2021, the depreciation 

of Rs. 6,599,599 relevant to the period has not been accounted due to capitalization on 

31st December 2021.  

 

I have conducted the audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Audit Standards. My responsibility 

under the audit standards has been further described in the section of responsibility of the 

auditor regarding the audit of financial statements of this report. I believe that the audit 

evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion. 

 

1.3 Other information included in the Annual Report 2021 of the University. 

Information that are not included in Financial Statements and my Audit Report even 

though included in the Annual Report 2021 of the University which I obtained prior to 

this audit report are defined as other information. The Management has to be 

responsible for this other information. 

I do not cover any other details in my opinion regarding financial statements and do not 

state any kind of assurance or opinion in this regard.  

My responsibility regarding my audit about financial statements is to read the other 

information recognized above and in doing so, consider whether other details are 

quantitatively inconsistent with my knowledge of financial statements, audit or obtained 

otherwise.  

If I conclude that this other information is quantitatively incorrect based on other 

information I obtained prior to the date of this audit report and the work I have done, I 

need to report that fact. I have nothing to report related to this.  

1.4 Responsibility of Management and Administrative Parties on financial statements. 

 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 

statements in accordance with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards and for 

such internal control as the management determines is necessary to enable the 
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preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether 

due to fraud or error.  

 

It is the responsibility of the management to decide the possibility of the institution to 

persist, when preparing financial statements and it is the management’s responsibility 

to disclose the matters related to the accounting and persistence of the institution on the 

basis of going concern except for the management’s wishes to liquidate the institution or 

terminate the operations when there is no alternative.   

Responsibility for the financial reporting process of the institution is borne by the 

administrative parties.   

 

In terms of the Sub- section 16(1) of the National Audit Act No. 19 of 2018, books and 

reports on their income, expenses, assets, liabilities should be maintained properly to be 

able to prepare the annual and temporal financial statements of the institution.  
 

1.5     Auditor’s Responsibility in relation to the auditing of financial statements. 

My objective as a whole is to give a reasonable assurance that the financial statements 

are free from material misstatements whether due to fraud or error and issue the audit 

report which includes my opinion. Even though reasonable assurance is a high level of 

assurance, when auditing in terms of the Sri Lanka Audit Standards, it will not be an 

assurance that it will always disclose the material misstatements. Material 

misstatements may occur due to the individual or collective effect of fraud and error. It 

is expected that materiality may depend on the effect on economic decisions taken by 

the users based on these financial statements. 

        Audit was carried out by me in terms of Sri Lanka Audit Standards with professional 

judgement and professional scepticism. Further,  

• Appropriate audit procedures were planned and implemented from time to time to 

identify and assess the risk of material misstatements in financial statements due to 

fraud or errors in formulating the basis for the stated audit opinion. Effect of a fraud 

is more dominant than the effect of material misstatements due to error and 

collusion, preparation of false documents, intentional omissions, misrepresentations 

or the override of internal controls.  

 

• A perception relevant to the internal control of the institution had been obtained in 

order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 

for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control. 
 

• Reasonableness of accounting estimates and appropriateness of accounting policies 

which have been used and competency of the correlated disclosures done by the 

management had been evaluated.  
 

 

• It had been decided the relevancy of using the basis on the persistence of the 

institution for accounting based on the evidence obtained related to whether there is 

a material irresolution on the persistence of the institution due to circumstances or 

situations. If I concluded that there is material irresolution, attention of my audit 

report should be drawn to the disclosures in the financial statements related in this 

regard and my opinion should be modified if those disclosures are not adequate. 

However, persistence may end based on future circumstances or situations.  
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• The transactions and events underlying the structure and content of the financial 

statements are appropriate and reasonably included and the overall presentation of 

financial statements which includes disclosures were appreciated.  

 
 

Administrative parties will be informed about the important audit findings, deficiencies of 

main internal control and other matters identified in my audit. 

2. Report on other legal and regulatory requirements. 

 

2.1 Special grants related to following requirements have been included in the   

National Audit Act No.19 of 2018.  

 
2.1.1 Except the effect of the facts explained in qualified opinion in my report, as per the 

requirements of the section 12(A) of the National Audit Act No. 19 of 2018, I have 

obtained all the information and explanations required for audit and according to 

the observations of my assessment, financial reports have been properly maintained 

by the institution.  

 

2.1.2 As per the requirement mentioned in section (iii) (d) 6(1) of National Audit Act 

No.19 of 2018, financial statements of the institution correspond with the previous 

year.  

 

2.1.3 As per the requirement mentioned in the section (iv) (d) 6(i) of the National Audit 

Act No.19 of 2018, except the effect of the facts explained under (e) and (f) in 

qualified opinion of my report, recommendations given by me in the previous year 

has been included in the financial statements presented.  

 

2.2 Based on the actions followed and the evidence obtained limit material information, 

nothing had been subjected to my attention enough to state the following.  

 

2.2.1 As per the requirement mentioned in the section 12(d) of the National Audit Act 

No.19 of   2018, that a member of the Council of the University has an affiliation with 

the University, directly or otherwise in connection with any contract outside the 

normal business situation. 

 

2.2.2 As per the requirement mentioned in the section 12(f) of the National Audit Act 

No.19 of 2018, and have not acted in compliance with any applicable written law or 

any other general or special directives issued by the Council of the University other 

than following. 
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      Reference to Laws and Rules                     Description 
             

(a) Financial Regulations of the 
Democratic Socialist Republic of 
Sri Lanka.  

 
 

(i) Financial Regulations 102, 103, 104 
and Public Finance Circular no. 
02/2016 dated 12th February 2016 

  
 
 
 
 

(i) Damaged course materials of Rs. 25,046,765 
from 2018 to 2020 has been write off based 
on the approval of the Council without 
obtaining the approval of the Treasury. Also, 
action has not been taken in terms of 
Financial Regulations in this regard.  

 
(ii) Although the Vice Chancellor had appointed 

two preliminary inquiry committees on 06th 
August 2020 to conduct a preliminary 
inquiry on the changes according to the 
reports of the Board of Survey 2018, the 
work had not been completed by 31st May 
2022.  

(ii)  Financial Regulations 104 (3) and   
(4) 

 Even though the initial reports and final reports 
regarding vehicle accidents should be prepared 
and submitted to the Chief Accounting Officer 
and copies of the reports should also be 
submitted to the Auditor General, University has 
not been taken action regarding vehicle 
accidents accordingly.  
 

(iii)  Financial Regulations 113 (3) (b)  Action has not been taken to obtain the approval 
of the Treasury to write off the student income 
of Rs. 43,729,298 receivable from students 
which registration has not been renewed for 
more than 05 years.   

(iv) Financial Regulations 1645 (b),(d)  
and Financial Regulations 1646 

 2,728litres of fuel had been used more than the 
ration to be balanced in the period from January 
2021 to February 2022 relevant to 12 vehicles of 
the University. Also, 1,850 liters of diesel and 
127 liters of petrol amounted Rs. 232, 687 has 
been used without stating the number of 
kilometers in the Daily Running Charts relevant 
to 05 vehicles. 
 

(v)  Financial Regulations 1647 (b) 
 

 Board of survey has not been conducted 
regarding vehicles and equipment of University 
amounted Rs. 110,736,110. 

(b) Section 7.6 of Chapter V of the 
Establishments Code for the 
Universities and Higher 
Educational Institutions and  

 It has been failed to recover the amount of Rs. 
19,884,652 to be recovered from 11 officers who 
have breached bonds in the period from 1989 to 
2015 from the date of breaching bonds and 
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2.2.3 As per the requirement mentioned in the section 12(g) of the National Audit Act No. 19 

of 2018, that the work has not been complied with the authority, duty and tasks of the 

University.  

 

2.2.4 As per the requirement mentioned in the section 12(f) of the National Audit Act No. 19 

of 2018, resources of the University has not been procured and used economically, 

efficiently and productively complied with the relevant rules within the periods.   

 

 

University Grant Commission   amount of Rs. 9,817,731 to be recovered from 
09 officers  from the year 2017 to the audited    
date of 31st December 2021. 
 

(c) Treasury Circular no. 842 dated 
19th December 1978 

 A fixed asset register had not been prepared for 
the property, plant and equipment of Rs. 
14,266,095,834 and intangible assets of 
Rs.16,167,163 included in statement of 
financial position as at 31 December 2021.  
 

(d) Section 3.1 of Chapter XX of the 
Establishments Code for the 
Universities and Higher 
Educational Institutions and 
University Grant Commission 
circular no. 10/2017 dated 10th 
July 2017.  
 

 Salaries and allowances amounting to Rs. 
1,317,557,428 had been paid to 348 Academic 
Staff Members without confirming their arrival 
and departure for the year under review. 

(e) Paragraph 02 of Public Finance 
Circular no. 04/2015 dated 14th 
July 2015 and paragraph 02 of  
Public Finance Circular no. 
06/2019 dated 15th August 2019  

 From the year 2016 to year 2020 without 
calling quotations, a total of Rs. 8,149,311 have 
been paid and actions have been taken to 
continuously cover the insurance from the Sri 
Lanka Insurance Corporation, without taking 
action to annually arrange insurance cover for 
vehicles by competitively quoting as per the 
circular. Further, it has been disclosed in a 
sample audit examination that action has not 
been taken by 21st February 2022 to obtain 
insurance claims by repairing 05 vehicles 
involved in an accident since the year 2018.  
 

(f) Public Finance Circular no. 
01/2014 dated 17 February 2014.  

 Action plan for the year under review had not 
been prepared.  

(g) Section 8.2.2 of Public Enterprises 
Circular no. PED/12 dated 02nd 
June 2003.  

 An amount of Rs. 670,282,783 as of year under 
review at 31st December 2020 and Rs. 
270,350,910 had been invested in fixed 
deposits without obtaining the prior approval 
of the Minister in charge of Finance. 
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2.3 Other Matters.  

 

(a) The maintenance companies were unable to solve the defects of the Management 

Information System (OMIS)end of the year under review, which had been set up as 

05 modules for the activities of 05 divisions of the University. Therefore, even 

though it has been informed to the Audit that the University has focused on 

establishing an information system by the Information Technology Division to be 

more efficient and in line with the requirement of the University existing 

Information System, the new information system has not been established by the 

end of the year 2021.  

 

(b) An amount of Rs. 100,614,207 has been paid as allowances for the year 2021 by 

recruiting 39 academic staff and 179 non-academic staff on contract basis by 

obtaining only the approval of the University Council without obtaining the 

approval of the Department of Management Services.  

 

(c) Since 01 to 05 years 03 cars were parked insecurely within and outside the car park 

of the University without being used.  

 

 

 

W.P.C Wickramaratne 

Auditor General  

 

 

*Signature has been placed in the Sinhala copy 
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10.2 Reply to the Auditor General’s Report 
 

26th of September 2022 

 

Auditor General, 

Auditor General’s Department,  

No.306/72, Polduwa Road,  

Battaramulla. 

 

Sir,  

Auditor General’s Report in terms of section 12 of the National Audit Act.19 of 2018 in 

respect of the Financial Statements and other legal and regulatory requirements of the 

OUSL for the year ended 31st of December 2021.  

 

1.   Financial Statements 

1.1    Qualified Opinion 

1.2    Basis for Qualified Opinion 
 

 

(a) Even though the no. of Library Books have been calculated physically, it could not be 

disclosed in accounts since calculating the value of those books could not be completed 

by the end of year 2021. Calculation of the value of books are currently being done and 

it is expected to complete it within this year and disclose in the financial statements 

2022. 

 

(b) It is acknowledged that a defect has occurred in calculating the material stock stated as 

at 31st December 2021. As the book stock amounting to Rs. 164,420.00 has been over 

calculated as Rs. 1,644,420.00, a sum of Rs.1,480,000.00 has been over accounted. 

Action will be taken to rectify it when preparing financial statements 2022.  

 

(c) As the estimated value relevant to the cars received as donations to the University in 

the year 2020 has not been calculated at the time of receiving the assets, those vehicles 

could not be disclosed in the financial statements 2020. However, the assets have been 

estimated by now and action will be taken to correctly disclose in the preparation of 

financial statements 2022.  

 

(d) It is acknowledged that the receivable interest of 07 fixed deposits relevant to the year 

2021 has not been accounted. Action will be taken to rectify it in the year 2022. 

 

(e) It was unable to obtain a correct time analysis relevant to the student income due to 

the deficiencies existing in the OMIS system. In the future, it is expected to rectify the 

deficiencies through the new system.  

 

(f) It was observed that the assets register of the OMIS system has not been correctly 

updated for several years and it was unable to rectify it late due to the existing 

limitations in that system. Therefore, calculation of depreciation is not correctly done 

by the computer system.  
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Accordingly, calculation of depreciation given by the computer system will be removed 
by journal entries and the correctly calculated annual depreciation value will be 

entered to the computer system by using journal entries.  

 

(g) As the life time of E-books and software amounting to Rs.5,340,344.00 cannot be 

forecasted, action has been taken to disclose those assets as intangible assets with 

indefinite life time. Accordingly, as per SLPSAS 20 such assets were not amortized. In 

the year 2022, the life time of those assets will be re-evaluated and will be accounted 

in the year 2022 accordingly.  

 

(h) In the year 2021, it is acknowledged that the depreciation for the year 2021 of the 

capitalized building of Jaffna Regional Centre has not been calculated correctly. Action 

will be taken to rectify it in the preparation of financial statements in the year 2022.   

 

 

1.3   Other information included in the Annual Report 2021 of the University. 
 

1.4 Responsibility of Management and Administrative Parties on financial 
statements. 

 
1.5 Auditor’s Responsibility in relation to the auditing of financial statements. 

 
2. Report on other legal and regulatory requirements. 

2.2.2 

     Reference to Laws and Rules  
                   

         Observation 

(h) Financial Regulations of the 
Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri 
Lanka.  

 

  

(i) Financial Regulations 102, 103, 104 
and Public Finance Circular no. 
02/2016 dated 12th February 2016 

 (i)   University is printing course materials 

based on the no. of students registered 

annually. This is a normal expenditure of 

the University. However, in certain 

instances the oriented books had to be 

removed due to reasons such as students 

leaving the course during the academic 

year, revision of syllabus. This is a common 

circumstance that could occur in a 

University offering education through 

distance learning.  Accordingly, removal of 

printed books from use cannot be stated as 

a damaged stock. Accordingly, action has 

been taken to account the course materials 

as an expenditure in the relevant year 

based on the approval of the Council.  

 

(ii)The Vice Chancellor appointed two 

preliminary inquiry boards to conduct a 
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preliminary inquiry about the changes that 

took place as per the reports of Board of 

Survey for the year 2018. Out of that, action 

is already being taken in accordance with 

the recommendations related to 

Department of Language Studies and 

Examination Division in the preliminary 

inquiry reports.  

         Further, there are certain defects in the 

preliminary inquiry reports relevant to the 

Information Technology Division and it has 

been requested to the Chairman of the 

inquiry board fore further clarifications.  

Relevant action will be immediately taken 

after receiving it.  

 
(ii)      Financial Regulations 104 (3), (4)  It is agreed to prepare a complete report about 

the accident in the future in terms of financial 
regulations.  
 

(iii)     Financial Regulations 113 (3), (b)  The students who have left the courses which 
means the students who have exceeded 05 
years without course fee renewal form 
renewing the registration will be written off 
against income by the University. Accordingly, 
action has been taken to write off a sum of Rs. 
48,729,298.00 recoverable from the students 
who have left the courses relevant to the year 
2021 based on the approval of the Council.  
 

(iv)      Financial Regulations 1645 (b), 
(c) and Financial Regulations 1646 

 

 

 

 
 

 It is acknowledged.  Action will be taken to do 
the necessary corrections.  
 
Further, as the obtaining of fuel is delayed due 
to the prevailing fuel crisis, a minimal amount 
of work is being done.  

(v)     Financial Regulations 1647 (b) 
 
 
 
 

 It is acknowledged. However, this situation has 
been changed from the year 2022 and during 
the transfer of drivers, the vehicle inventory 
has been checked and the inventory has been 
handed over to the driver assigned to the 
respective vehicle. Also, action will be taken to 
examine the vehicles and inventory annually. 
Action will be taken in the future to appoint a 
committee of Board of Survey in order to 
survey the vehicles and stocks of vehicle 
equipment. 
 

(b) Section 7.6 of the paragraph V of the 
Establishment Code of UGC and 
Higher Educational Institutions 

 P. Samaranayaka, S. Daluwatta, V.G.S 
Ekanayaka, J.A.S.D. Sethunga, H.K.D.A.T.N. 
Annakkage, W.S.T. Fonseka, M.K.MP.C 
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Rajapaksha.  
 
The following decisions have been taken at the 
Leave Committee held on 07.10.2021 about the 
aforesaid officers who have exceeded 10 years 
of breaching bonds and action is being taken 
accordingly.  
 
• A letter signed by the Vice-Chancellor has 

been sent to the Chairman, University Grants 
Commission to obtain the Cabinet approval 
to recover the balance of the Employees’ 
Provident Fund of the relevant officers 
without their consent letter.  
 

• Tracing the current addresses of officers and 
their guarantors. (Accordingly, MS. P. 
Witharana has paid the remaining bond 
value of Rs. 182,301.12) 
 

• Action will be taken to appoint a committee 
to find about defaulted breach of bonds as 
proposed by the University Grants 
Commission.  

 

Mr. U.G Jayasekara – Legal action has been 
taken to recover the bond value. Accordingly, a 
lawsuit has been filed at District Court (Mount 
Lavinia) on 20.04.2014. The decision was given 
on 19.12.2019 advantageously to the 
University. However, he has filed an appeal 
against the decision in the Civil Appellate High 
Court Mount Lavinia and it is scheduled to be 
heard.  
 
Mr. S.U Munasinghe – Release papers of the 
Employees’ Provident Fund have been sent to 
the University Grants Commission on 
22.09.2020. Accordingly, the balance in his 
provident fund is to be recovered and sent to 
the University. As it has been reported that the 
current balance of his provident fund is Rs. 
505,110.66, it is possible to recover the total 
bond value of Rs. 293,680. 
 
Mrs. A.A.C Kanchana – Release papers of the 
Employees’ Provident Fund have been sent to 
the University Grants Commission on 
05.09.2020. Accordingly, the balance in her 
provident fund is to be recovered and sent to 
the University. As it has been reported that the 
current balance of her provident fund is Rs. 
2,897,237.92, it is possible to recover the total 
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bond value of Rs. 2,884,566. 
 
Mr. J.C.D. Preethiviraj - Necessary documents 
have been submitted to the University Grants 
Commission on 23.11.2021 to recover a part of 
of the bond value (Rs.1,612,870) from his 
provident fund.  
 
Legal action has been taken to recover the 
remaining amount. Accordingly, a lawsuit has 
been filed in District Court (Nugegoda) on 
20.05.2021.  
 
In addition, bond values have been recovered 
as follows during the year 2021.  
• B.S.U. Mendis – remaining amount of the 

bond Rs. 100,343.75 
• K.P.R. Jayawardena – Rs. 1,376,000.00 
• Kamala Raveendran – Rs. 270,000.00 
• M.H Naushan – Rs. 2,638,123.00 
• R. Manoshika – Rs. 497,806.99 
• P.D.G Siriwardena – Rs. 300,000.00 
• D.H.S. Jayalath – Rs 42,000.00 
• V. Selvasudarshan – the remaining amount 

of Rs. 980,772.60 has been recovered from 
her provident fund.  

• K.C Weerakoon – Rs. 1,074,080.92 
• T.M. Karunarathna – Rs. 2,016,445.22 
• W.P.C.M. Alahakoon – Rs. 125,000.00 

(total amount- Rs. 9,420,072.48) 

 
(c)   1978.  The fixed assets register requested by the audit 

are stated into schedules related to the financial 
statement accounts.  

(d) Section 3.1 of the Chapter XX of 
the Establishment Code of UGC 
and Higher Educational 
Institutions and UGC Circular no. 
10/2017 dated 10 July 2017 

 Academic staff conduct academic activities 
according to a timetable under the supervision 
of the Head of the Department and Dean in line 
with work norm. Although provisions are made 
in Establishment Code and Public 
Administration Circular, the academic staff do 
not mark arrival and departure. It was found 
out that it is happening not only in this 
university but in every university.   
 

(e) In terms of the paragraph 02 of  
Public Finance Circular no.04/2015 
dated 14th  July 2015 and paragraph 
02 of Public Finance Circular no. 
06/2019 dated 15th August 2019.  

 It is not acknowledged. Insurance facilities have 
been obtained without calling quotations from 
Government owned Insurance Companies from 
the year 2010 to year 2020. Also, it was 
mentioned in Public Finance Circular 
no.04/2015 that quotations should be called 
from Government owned Insurance Companies. 
Therefore, insurance facilities have been 
obtained from Sri Lanka Insurance Cooperation 
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when insuring vehicles of the University. This 
situation was changed by the Public Finance 
Circular no.06/2019 dated 15/08/2019.  
Provisions have been made by this circular to 
select a suitable company by calling quotations 
from registered insurance companies of the 
Insurance Regulatory Commission of Sri Lanka. 
As this Public Finance Circular no. 06/2019 was 
implemented from 19/08/2019, in terms of the 
provisions of this circular, University has called 
quotations from registered insurance 
companies when obtaining insurance services 
and has followed the approved procurement 
process and handed over the contract to 
People’s Insurance PLC with the approval of the 
Procurement Committee. University has been 
taken action in compliance with the circulars.  
 

(i) Public Finance Circular no. 01/2014 
dated 17th February 2014. 

 University has updated Strategic Plan and 
Action Plan annually and the copies of the 
updated plans will be sent to the Treasury and 
the relevant division of the University Grants 
Commission.  
 

(j) Section 8.2.2 of Public Enterprises 
Circular no. PED/12 dated 02nd June 
2003. 

 Since short term investments cannot be delayed 
until receiving the approval of the Treasury, 
letters for requesting approval of the Treasury 
has been sent at the time of investing in the 
fixed deposits based on the instructions of 
Treasury officers.  
 

 

2.3       Other Matters  

   

(a) Establishment of a Information System cannot be easily done within a short period of 

time. University has commenced the establishment of a new information system and its 

activities are still ongoing.   

 

(b) A lot of vacancies occurred in the years 2020,2021 due to retirement, resignation, death 

and transferring to other universities.  

 

Even though newspaper advertisements were published in order to fill the vacancies of 

the university academic staff, as filling of the vacant lecturer posts for the years 2020, 

2021 could not be done on scheduled date due to Covid 19 pandemic, academic staff was 

recruited on contract and temporary basis for maintaining the academic activities 

properly. The relevant recruitments were done after obtaining the approval of the 

Council.  

 

As it has been approved only the filling of other posts except the posts and primary 

grade posts mentioned in University Grants Commission Circular no. 876 by the letter of 

Department of Management Services no. DMS/1528 (s)V-11(5) dated 02.03.2020, 
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recruitments for the posts couldn’t be done.  It has been informed by the letter no. 

HE/AD02/ Miscellaneous dated 20.10.2020 of the Ministry of Education that persons 

will be sent by the Department of Multi-purpose Development Task Force for the 

primary grade posts. Accordingly, details of the vacancies relevant to the salary codes 

have been sent to the department on 21.10.2020. Currently, the department has sent 

only three persons for the posts of electrician assistant, carpenter assistant and security 

officer. 

 

Even though list of names have been requested from the Ministry of Higher Education in 

the years 2020 and 2021 as per circular 576 for the posts of Management Assistant, 

Training Technical Officer, Works Aide, no lists of names were received in this regard.  

However, in addition to the approved staff for maintaining the university activities 

without any interruption, recruitments were done on contract basis after obtaining 

approval of the Council.  

 

(c) Quotations were called from 10 registered contractors on 29.12.2021 for repairing these 

vehicles and action has been taken according to proper procurement process. After that, 

Technical Evaluation Committee recommended about this repairing on 29.03.2022 and 

the Procurement Committee held on 29.03.2022 approved this repairing. Accordingly, 

as per the recommendation of the Technical Evaluation Committee and approval Minor 

Procurement Committee, 61-7217 and 19-8854 were sent for repairing. Action is being 

taken to obtain the approval of Secretary to the Ministry of Education (Chief Accountant 

Officer) as per the supplements of 35 and 38 in the Procurement Manual for the 

quotations submitted for repairing the van 62-4797.  

 

University is obtaining the Insurance as Insurance for Fleet of Vehicles and insurance 

has been obtained for 34 vehicles including these vehicles so that these vehicles can be 

repaired and put into service.  

 

  

Yours faithfully,  

 

   

 

Prof. P.M.C Thilakarathne 

Vice- Chancellor 

 
*Signature has been placed in the Sinhala copy 
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Details of Research, Innovation and Publications Annexures      

A.1. Faculty of Education 

 

Department of Early Childhood & Primary Education 

Full papers - indexed:  

1. Mukunthan, T., & Anantharajah , S. (2021). Reading interests of primary school 
children.    Muallim Journal of Social Sciences and Humanities, 5(2), 102-112. 
https://doi.org/10.33306/mjssh/124 

2. Mukunthan, T. (2021) Primary School Children’s Errors in addition. Asian Journal of 
Multidimensional Research 10 (3), 15-25. https://DOI: 10.5958/2278-4853.2021.00131.2 

3. Mukunthan, T. (2021). Errors made by children in subtraction. ACADEMICIA: An 
International Multidisciplinary Research Journal, 11(3), 407-416. https://DOI: 10.5958/2249-
7137.2021.00623.6 
Mukunthan, T. (2021) Sri Lankan elementary school children's errors in multiplication. 
International Journal of Research in Social Sciences, 11 (4) 77-87. 

4. Mukunthan, T. (2021) Primary School Children’s Errors in Mathematical Division. 
International Journal of Physical and Social Science 11(4). 32-43. 

5. Munasinghe, D.M.W. (2021) Perception of School Community on introducing Activity -Based 
Oral English for Students in Government School system.  Published  ACADEMICIA: An 
International Multidisciplinary Research Journal, ISSN: 2249-7137 Vol. 11, Issue 12, December 2021, 
https://saarj.com  

6. Munasinghe. D.M.W. (2021) The Creativity develops through language for the Preschool 
Child in the 21st Century, International Journal of Research in Social Sciences, 
http://www.ijmra.us 

7. Tharanga, I. S., & Ketheeswaran, K. (2021). ORAL HEALTH EDUCATION IN THE CLASSROOM AND IT’S 
INFLUENCE ON COMPETENCIES AND HEALTH HABITS OF YOUNG ADULTS IN SRI LANKA. Isagoge-Journal of 
Humanities and Social Sciences, 1(7), 107-122. 
 
 

Full papers – non-indexed:  

1. Jesuiya, D.Priyadarshani, H. D. C., (2021). Teacher's Perception on Online Teaching Method      during 

COVID-19: With Reference to School Level Teachers at Faculty of Education, the Open University of Sri 

Lanka. Shanlax International Journal of Education, 9(2), 132-140. 

 

Conference Proceedings (Full Paper): 

1. Dilani. J, Priyadarshani, H. D. C.,  &Maheshika ,L (2021).The Impact of Part-Time Jobs on Student's 

Academic Performances, IRCUWU Uwa  Conference. 

2. De Silva D.V.M., Anuruddhika B.G.H., Rathnayake R.N.P., Alwis K.A.C., Kugamoorthy S., 

Ketheeswaran K., Deepthini D.D.I.,. Chathurika D, Weerakoon W.M.S. (2021).  Difficulties 

Encountered by the Students in Completing the Research Project in Undergraduate Degree 

Programmes, Open University Research Sessions (OURS), 16th & 17th September 2021, OUSL, 

Sri Lanka 

3. Munsinghe, M., Mukunthan, T. (2021). An analysis of the extent to which students use the 

facilities provided by the open university of Sri Lanka. Open University Research Session 

2021(OURS), The Open University of Sri Lanka ,Nawala. 

 

https://doi.org/10.33306/mjssh/124
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
https://saarj.com/
http://www.ijmra.us/
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Department of Secondary & Tertiary Education 

Full papers - indexed:  

1. Karunanayaka, S. P., & Naidu, S. (2021). Impacts of Authentic Assessment on the 
Development of Graduate Attributes. Distance Education, 42(2), 231-252. 
https://doi.org/10.1080/01587919.2021.1920206 

2. Sandanayake, T.C., Karunanayaka, S.P. & Madurapperuma, A.P.(2021). A framework to design 
open educational resources-integrated online courses for undergraduate learning: A design-
based research approach. Education and Information Technologies (2021), 1-20, DOI:  
https://doi.org/10.1007/s10639-020-10393-z 

3. Nawastheen, F. M., & Perera, S. A. S. K. (2021). Students’ Perceptions on Participating in 
Remote Learning Activities in the Time of Covid-19 Pandemic. Studies in Learning and 
Teaching, 2(3). https://doi.org/10.46627/silet.v2i3.81. Retrieved from https://scie-
journal.com/index.php/SiLeT/article/view/81 

4. Nawastheen, F.M. (2021). Concerns-Based Adoption Model in the Successful Curriculum 
Implementation – A Literature Review. Inam International E-Journal of Tamil Studies, 7(28), 
45–57. Retrieved from https://inamtamil.com/index.php/journal/article/view/20 

5. Tennakoon, S., & Nawastheen, F. M. (2021). Teachers’ awareness and participation in the 
school-based teacher development programme in Mathugama Education Zone. International 
Journal of Research and Innovation in Social Science, 05(11), 242–245. 
https://doi.org/10.47772/ijriss.2021.51117 

6. Nawastheen, F.M. (2021). Sri Lankan teachers’ concerns towards implementation of curriculum 
reforms in the competency-based curriculum reforms. Muallim Journal of Social Sciences and 
Humanities, 5(1), 1-18. https://doi.org/10.33306/mjssh/107 

7. Nawastheen, F.M., Gafoordeen, N. & Hifaza,M.F.F  (2021). Classroom Management Practices in 
the Secondary Schools – Teachers‟ Perspectives from Kalutara Educational Zone in Sri Lanka, 
International Journal of Research and Scientific Innovation (IJRSI) VIII (I) 
https://doi.org/10.51244/ijrsi.2021.8116 

8. Careemdeen, J. D., Awang M. M, and Ahmad A. R., Dahalan, S (2021). Instrument Development for 
Socio-Educational Support and Socio-Educational Participation towards Educational Well-Being. 
Journal of Educational and Social Research. Vol 11 No 5, E-ISSN 2240-0524, ISSN 2239-978X. 
(Scopus). 

9.  Careemdeen, J. D., Awang M. M, and Ahmad A. R., (2021) The Influence of Social Pedagogy 
Towards Educational Well-Being in Sri Lanka. The New Educational Review, Vol 65, No 03. ISSN 
1732-6729 (Scopus).  

10. Careemdeen, J. D. and Awang M. M , (2021). The Relationship between Social Capital and Soft 
Skills among University Students. Journal of Education, Society and Behavioural Science ISSN: 
2456-981X, 34(10): 40-46, 2021; Article no.JESBS.74371. (Past name: British Journal of 
Education, Society & Behavioural Science, ISSN: 2278-0998). 

11. Perera, K. D. R. L. J., & Lekamge, G. D. (2021). The Impact of Open and Distance Learning Material 
on Mindfulness Practices of Primary School Teachers. Open Journal of Social Sciences, 9(5), 83-
94. https://doi.org/10.4236/jss.2021.95007 

12. Perera, K. D. R. L. J. (2021). Students’ Perceptions of School Related Conditions Impacting Their 
Motivation and Engagement in Learning. Open Journal of Social Sciences, 9(9), 353-377. 
https://doi.org/10.4236/jss.2021.99025 
 

Conference Proceedings (Full Paper): 

1. Careemdeen, J. D., Awang M. M, and Ahmad A. R., (2021) CONCEPTUALIZING THE SOCIO–
EDUCATIONAL SUPPORT FOR STUDENT LEARNING. Putrajaya-KL International Conference 
on Innovative Technology, Education & Humanities 2021 PICTECH2021. Malaysia, 29th 
MAY 2021. 

2. Mangaleswarasharma, R. & Jung, J.Y.J. (September 2021). Role of Cognitive Intelligence in 
Coping with Examination Stress. Paper presented at the European Conference on Educational 
Research (ECER-2021). Geneva, Switzerland (Virtual) 

https://doi.org/10.1080/01587919.2021.1920206
https://doi.org/10.1007/s10639-020-10393-z
https://scie-journal.com/index.php/SiLeT/article/view/81
https://scie-journal.com/index.php/SiLeT/article/view/81
https://inamtamil.com/index.php/journal/article/view/20
https://doi.org/10.47772/ijriss.2021.51117
https://doi.org/10.33306/mjssh/107
https://doi.org/10.51244/ijrsi.2021.8116
https://doi.org/10.4236/jss.2021.99025
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3. Jayakodi, J.M.R.D., & Perera, S.A.S.K. (2021, November). Informal and Non-formal Education 
for Empowerment of Female Home-makers: A Case Study of a Women Farmers’ Organization 
in the Western Province [Paper presentation]. International Research Symposium 2021 of 
the Faculty of Education, University of Colombo, Sri Lanka. 

4. Perera, K. D. R. L. J. (2021, November 26). Applying thematic analysis to analyse qualitative 
data: a researcher’s experience [Paper presentation]. International Research Symposium, 
Faculty of Education, Colombo, Sri Lanka. 

 

Conference Proceedings (Extended Abstract): 

1. Karunanayaka, S.P. (2021). Redesigning learning environments to enhance creation and 
sharing of Open Educational Resources. [Paper presentation]. Conference of the Celebration 
of the Centenary Year of Humanities and Social Science Education in Sri Lanka (1921-2021) 
21 December 2021 

2. Karunanayaka, S.P., & Naidu, S. (2021). Moving to the Center: Systemic Adoption of Open 
Educational Practices. [Paper presentation]. OERCamp Global 2021 Conference, 9-11 
December 2021 

3. de S. Sirisuriya, S.C.M., Ranathunga, L., Karunanayaka, S.P., & Abdullah, N.A. (2021). 
Pedagogical Effectiveness of Learner Interface of the Course in Web-Based e-Learning. [Paper 
presentation]. 13th International Conference on Information & Communication Technology 
and System (ICTS 2021), 20-21 October 2021 

4. Karunanayaka, S.P., & Naidu, S. (2021). Reengineering open educational practices for 
systemic change. [Paper presentation]. Open Education Global 2021 Conference (OE 
GLOBAL-2021), 27 September- 1 October 2021 

5. Karunanayaka, S.P., Weerakoon, W.M.S., Nawaratne, N.M.R.K., Ramathaas, P., Weerasinghe, 
M.D.B.P. & Wijesekera, H.D. (2021). Promoting digital education practices among teachers and 
students in Sri Lankan secondary schools. [Paper presentation]. ICDE Virtual Global Conference 
2021, 25-29 October 2021 

6. Pande, J., Alka Singh, A. & Karunanayaka, S.P. (2021). Adaptation of open educational 
resources: Exploring perceptions of the teachers at the Open University of Sri Lanka.  
[Paper presentation] 34th Annual Conference of the Asian Association of Open Universities 
(AAOU), 1-3 June 2021, Colombo, Sri Lanka 

7. Peramunugamage, A., Rathnayake, U. & Karunanayaka, S.P. (2021). Design of a framework to 
foster collaborative learning through a Moodle mobile plugin. [Paper presentation]. PhD 
Symposium – EDEN Virtual Annual Conference, hosted by UNED, Madrid, 21-24 June 2021 

8. Rathnayaka R.N.P. & Wannigama, C. (2021, November). Review of literature on the 
importance of different formative assessment strategies for an effective and collaborative 
teaching learning environment. [Paper presentation]. Annual Research Symposium 
University of Colombo, Colombo, Sri Lanka 

9. Perera, K. D. R. L. J. (2021, June 1-3). Factors associated with student disengagement from 
learning: a review of the relevant literature [Paper presentation]. 34th Annual Conference of 
the Asian Association of Open Universities, Colombo, Sri Lanka. 

10. Perera, K. D. R. L. J. (2021, September 16-17). Mixed methods research approach: strengths 
and shortcomings [Paper presentation]. Open University Research Sessions, Nawala, Sri 
Lanka. 

Conference Proceedings (Poster): 

1. Perera, S.A.S.K., Amarasuriya, S.D., & Herath, H.M.J.C. (2021, November). A Qualitative Study on 
the Perceived Impact of Mindfulness Meditation on Teacher Immunity to Workplace Stressors 
[Poster presentation]. Colombo Medical Congress 2021 of the Faculty of Medicine, University of 
Colombo, Sri Lanka. 

2. Perera, S.A.S.K., Amarasuriya, S.D., & Herath, H.M.J.C. (2021, December). Meditation and 
Education: Perceived Impact of Mindfulness Meditation on Teacher Immunity to Workplace 
Stressors [Presentation]. Symposium on Meditation Research, University of Colombo, Sri Lanka. 
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Department of Special Need Education 

 

Full papers - indexed:  

1. Ketheeswaran, K. (2021). Perception of stakeholders on Special Education Unit (SEN) and 
the inclusive education system in schools with SEN in Ampara District, Sri Lanka. Muallim 
Journal of Social Sciences and Humanities, 85-101. 
 

2. Ketheeswaran, K. (2021). Supporting the Special Education Unit System in Promoting 
Inclusive Education. European Journal of Special Education Research, 7(3). 

 
3. Tharanga, I. S., & Ketheeswaran, K. (2021). ORAL HEALTH EDUCATION IN THE CLASSROOM 

AND IT’S INFLUENCE ON COMPETENCIES AND HEALTH HABITS OF YOUNG ADULTS IN SRI 
LANKA. Isagoge-Journal of Humanities and Social Sciences, 1(7), 107-122. 

 

Full papers – non-indexed:  

1. Priyadarshani, H. D. C., & Jesuiya, D. (2021). Teacher's Perception on Online Teaching 
Method      during COVID-19: With Reference to School Level Teachers at Faculty of 
Education, the Open University of Sri Lanka. Shanlax International Journal of 
Education, 9(2), 132-140. 

 

Conference Proceedings (Full Paper): 

1. Priyadarshani, H. D. C., Jesuiya, D. & Maheshika, L (2021). The Impact of Part-Time Jobs on 
Student's Academic Performances, IRCUWU Uwa  Conference.  

Conference Proceedings (Extended Abstract): 

1. De Silva, D. V. M., Anuruddhika, B. G. H., Rathnayake, R. N. P., Alwis, K. A. C., Kugamoorthy, S., 
Ketheeswaran, K., Deepthini, D. D. I. Chathurika, D. and Weerakoon, W. M. S., (2021, 
September 16 – 17), Difficulties Encountered by the Students in Completing the Research 
Project in Undergraduate Degree Programmes, Open University Research Sessions 2021, 
Colombo, Sri Lanka. 

 
2. Ketheeswaran, K. (2021, November 6), Perception of stakeholders on inclusive education 

practices in the government schools in the Batticaloa district [Paper Presentation]. National 
conference on inclusive education. National Institute of Education, Maharagama, Sri Lanka 

 

Educational Leadership and Management 

Conference Proceedings (Full Paper): 

1. Karnanayaka,S.P, Weerakoon,W.M.S, Nawarathana,N.M.R.K, Ramathass,P, Wijesekara,H,D, 

Weerasinghe,M.D.B (2021), Promoting digital education practices among teachers and 

students in Sri Lankan secondary schools:  ICDE Virtual Global Conference Week 2021 - 

ConfTool Pro - BrowseSessions 

 

 

 

https://www.conftool.net/icde-vgcw-2021/index.php?page=browseSessions&form_session=27#paperID113
https://www.conftool.net/icde-vgcw-2021/index.php?page=browseSessions&form_session=27#paperID113
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A.2. Faculty of Engineering Technology 

 

 

Full papers - indexed:  

1. Somarathna, T., Thammitiyagodage, M. G., Ranaweera, K. K. D. S., Premakumara, G. A. S., 
Akbarsha, M. A., Kadalmani, B., & Weerakkody, N. S. (2021). In Vivo and In Vitro Toxicity 
Profiles of Hexane Extract of Alpinia malaccensis Rhizome in Rat and Cell Line Models. 
Journal of Toxicology, 2021, 1–12. https://doi.org/10.1155/2021/9578474 
 
 

Full papers – non-indexed:  

1. Chamara, J. H. D., & De Silva, C. S. (2021). Issues related to weed control faced by paddy 
farmers in Hambantota District of Sri Lanka. VISTAS Journal, 14(1), 35–49. 

 

2. Subhashini, H. P. S., & De Silva, C. S. (2021). Effect of silicon application on growth and yield 
of Tomato (Lycopersicon esculentum Mill.) Var. Rajitha grown under water stress. Journal of 
Dry Zone Agriculture, 7(1), 22–35. 

3. Suseema, K. S., & De Silva, C. S. (2021). Determining response to nitrogen of promising rice 
line (Oryza sativa L.) in the low country wet zone of Sri Lanka. Journal of Dry Zone 
Agriculture, 7(2), 1–20. 

4. Saravanan, S., De Silva, C. S., & Mihunthan, T. (2021). Characterization and seasonal variation 
of intake wells for drinking water at Vadamarachchi Aquifer of Jaffna District in Sri Lanka. 
Journal of Engineering and Technology., 9(1), 15–31. 

5. Fernando T.N., Aruggoda A. G. B., Ariadurai, S.A.  and Disanayaka C. K. (2021). Effects of 
Different Watering Intervals on Growth Performance of Abelmoschus Esculentus Presence 
with Super Absorbent Polymer Layer at the Root Zone with Moist Coir Dust Layers. 
International Journal of Research Studies in Agricultural Sciences (IJRSAS), Volume 7, Issue 
5, 2021, PP 11-17, ISSN No. (Online) 2454–6224, DOI: http://dx.doi.org/10.20431/2454-
6224.0705002 

Conference Proceedings (Extended Abstract): 

1. Attanayake, A. M. S. U. M., Duminda, D. M. S., & De Silva, C. S. (2021). Assessment of soil 
properties and yield under diverse cropping systems in alfisols for Maize (Zea mays L.) crop. 
Book of Abstracts Open University Research Sessions., 7. 

2. Attanayake, A. M. S. U. M., Duminda, D. M. S., & De Silva, C. S. (2021). Assessment of soil 
properties and yield under different input systems in alfisols for Rice (Oryza sativa l.) crop. 
Book of Abstracts Open University Research Sessions., 8. 

3. Ariyasena,  P. D., Devasinghe, D. A. U. D., Disanayake, D. M. D., &  De Silva, C.S. (2021). 
Growth, physiology, and weed abundance in Rice (Oryza sativa L.) under diverse input 
systems in the Dry zone of Sri Lanka. Book of Abstracts Open University Research Sessions., 9. 

4. Perera, E. M. D., De Silva, C. S., & Ratnayake, R. R. (2021). Estimation and mapping soil 
organic carbon in paddy growing soils of Monaragala District, Sri Lanka. Book of Abstracts, 
Open University Research Sessions., 10. 

5. Gururaj, D., Rajeshkanna, S.,  & De Silva, C. S. (2021). Management of Okra mosaic virus and 
it vector: okra leaf hoppers (Empoasca devastans) through plant extracts. Book of Abstracts, 
Open University Research Sessions., 11. 

6. Subhashini, H. P. S., Silva, N. R. N., & De Silva, C. S. (2021). Effect of silicon on nutritional 
quality and yield parameters of Tomato (Solanum lycopersicum) grown under water stress 
condition. Book of Abstracts, Open University Research Sessions., 12. 

7. Subhashini, H. P. S., Silva, N. R. N., & De Silva, C. S. (2021). Effect of silicon on quality 
parameters of tomato (Solanum lycopersicum) in water stress condition. Book of Abstracts, 
Open University Research Sessions., 13. 

https://doi.org/10.1155/2021/9578474
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8. Premarathna, K. D. C., Nadheesha, M. K. F., Udumann, S. S., & De Silva, C. S. (2021). 
Downward movement of exchangeable potassium and magnesium after long term 
application of fertilizer under different placement techniques: A case study at Ranawana 
Coconut Estate, Kurunegala. Book of Abstracts, Open University Research Sessions., 20. 

9. Rathnayaka, I., De Silva, C. S., Maheepala, S., Seneviratne, G., & Liyanage, R.  (2021). 
Nutritional properties and hydrolyzing rates of rice grown with biofilm bio-fertilizer 
(BFBF). Book of Abstracts, Open University Research Sessions., 24. 

10. Kumara, R. P. D. N.,  De Silva, C. S., &  Gunasekara, H. K. L. K. (2021).  Influence of different 
levels of nitrogen fertilizer and irrigation on Radish (Raphanus sativus) under increased 
temperature condition. Book of Abstracts, Open University Research Sessions., 29. 

11. Rasanjali, K. G. A. I.,  De Silva, C. S.,  & Jayakody, L. K. R. R. (2021). Effect of super absorbent 
polymers and different irrigation intervals on growth and yield of Tomato (Lycopersicon 
esculentum mill) under temperature stress condition. Book of Abstracts, Open University 
Research Sessions., 30. 

12. De Silva, C. S., & Ariyananda, T. (2021). Artificial groundwater recharge using rainwater in 
Kilinochchi District in Sri Lanka. Proceedings of the International Conference on Looming 
water crisis and climate change in South Asia: Rainwater Harvesting as an adaptation 
strategy.,  67. 

13. Fernando, E. T. N.,  Weerakkody, N. S.,UASK Edirisinghe, U. A. S. K. (2021). Development of  a 
natural curry cube using pumpking seed powder. OURS the Annual academic conference. The 
Open University of Sri Lanka, Nawala .  

14. Ranawaka, U. L., & De Mel, P. K. J. (2021). Effect of preincubation storage period and flock 
age on hatchability of eggs of Cobb 500 broiler strain.  OURS the Annual academic conference. 
The Open University of Sri Lanka, Nawala. 

15. Ukwatta U. S. W.,  Hewajulige, I. G. N., Ranasinghe, P., & Aruggoda, A. G. B. (2021). Screening 
of selected plant extracts for development of a potential bio-fungicide to control 
Anthracnose disease in mango. 5th Biennial Research Symposium, 10th – 12th November 
2021, Industrial Technology Institute 

Department of Civil Engineering 
 
  Full papers - indexed:  

2. Meegalla, M. A. V. S. G., Saparamadu, P. V. D. P. L., Wijayarathna, I. M. U. I., Pallewatta, and  , P. 
A. K. (2021). Modification of Sequential Law for Fatigue Damage Assessment of Steel 
Structures Based on the Length of Stress/Strain Life Curves, R. Dissanayake et al. (eds.), 
ICSBE 2020, Lecture Notes in Civil Engineering 174, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-16-
4412-2_25. 

3. Ranasinghe, R.S. (2021). Simulation of breaking waves over different seabed configurations 
using phase-resolving wave models. Journal of the National Science Foundation of Sri Lanka, 
49(1), 67-78. DOI: http://doi.org/10.4038/jnsfsr.v49i1.9451 

4. Eriyagama, N., Smakhtin, V., Udamulla, L. 2021. Sustainable surface water storage 
development pathways and acceptable limits for river basins. Water (Switzerland), 13, 645. 
https://doi.org/10.3390/w13050645 
 

Full papers – non-indexed:  

Jayawickrama, P.G.D.S., Jayawardana, D.M.H.H., Samarawickrama, M.N.C. and Fernando, D.I., 2021. 
Safe Foundation Criteria for Low-Rise Building Structures on Drained Coarse-Grained Steep Soil 
Slopes in Sri Lanka. Engineer: Journal of the Institution of Engineers, Sri Lanka, 54(3), pp.99–122.  
DOI: http://doi.org/10.4038/engineer.v54i3.7464. 
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Conference Proceedings (Full Paper): 

1. Viththagan, V., Wimalasiri, R.J., & Karunananda, P.A.K. (September 2021). Condition 
Assessment of the Critical Members of the Steel Railway Bridges to Improve Reliability,  8th 
International symposium on Advances in Civil and Environmental Engineering Practices for 
Sustainable Development (ACEPS).  

2. Samroos, Y.B.M and Udamulla, K.M.L..A. (2021).  Use of crushed concrete aggregate waste in 
stabilization of clayey soils for subbase pavement construction and embankment material. 
8th International Symposium on Advances in Civil and Environmental Engineering Practices 
for Sustainable Development, pp 36- 42, 07th  October, Faculty of Engineering, University of 
Ruhuna, Sri Lanka. 

3. Yathusan, K  and  Udamulla, K.M.L.A. (2021).  The use of compacted tropical clay treated 
with rice husk ash as a suitable hydraulic barrier material in waste containment 
applications  8th International Symposium on Advances in Civil and Environmental 
Engineering Practices for Sustainable Development, pp 43-47, 07th  October, Faculty of 
Engineering, University of Ruhuna, Sri Lanka. 

4. Cadir, B and  Udamulla, L. (2021).  The use of fly ash stabilized sand mixtures as a capping 
material in landfills in Sri Lanka,  8th International Symposium on Advances in Civil and 
Environmental Engineering Practices for Sustainable Development, pp 204-208, 07th  
October, Faculty of Engineering, University of Ruhuna, Sri Lanka 

5. Munaweera, W.S.N and  Udamulla, L. (2021).  The influence of coconut fibres on the 
properties of interlocking concrete paving blocks,  8th International Symposium on Advances 
in Civil and Environmental Engineering Practices for Sustainable Development, pp 209-213, 
07th  October, Faculty of Engineering, University of Ruhuna, Sri Lanka 

6. Tennakoon, C and Udamulla, K.M.L.A, (2021). Geotechnical engineering properties of peat, 
stabilized with a combination of fly ash and waste glass powder. Proceedings of the 12th 
International Conference on Structural Engineering and Construction Management 2021, 
Kandy, Sri Lanka, 17-19 December 2021. 

7. Dolage, D.A.R. and Dasantha O.M.C. (2021). Solutions to Cost Overrun in Foreign Funded 
Road Projects in Sri Lanka, Proceedings of the 12th International Conference on Structural 
Engineering and Construction Management 2021, Kandy, Sri Lanka, 17-19 December 2021.. 

Conference Proceedings (Extended Abstract): 

1. Viththagan, V., Wimalasiri, R.J., & Karunananda, P.A.K. (September 2021). Theoretical 
Framework on the Use of Fracture Mechanics Approach in Fatigue Prediction of Railway 
Bridges, Open University Research Sessions (OURS). 

 

Conference Proceedings (Poster): 

2. Chathuranga R.A.I, Udamulla K.M.L.A, (2021). Use of M-Sand for Manufacturing Concrete 
Paving Blocks for Sri Lankan Roads. 25th International Forestry and Environment 
Symposium, Department of Forestry and Environmental Science, University of Sri 
Jayewardenepura, Sri Lanka. 

3. Priyadarshani R.M.S, Udamulla K.M.L.A, (2021). Stabilisation of Fine Grained Soil Using Fly 
Ash and Lime to Use as Embankment Material. 25th International Forestry and Environment 
Symposium, Department of Forestry and Environmental Science, University of Sri 
Jayewardenepura, Sri Lanka.



159 
 

Department of Electrical & Computer Engineering 
 

Conference Proceedings (Full Paper): 

1. IWMHD Bandara, YS Viduranga, UDNN Rodrigo, DDM Ranasinghe(2021), Architectures used in 
Artificial Cognitive Systems for Embodiment , 5th SLAAI - International Conference on Artificial 
Intelligence (SLAAI-ICAI-2021), held on 6th and 7th December 2021 

2. IWMHD Bandara, B Hettige, DDM Ranasinghe (2021), Three Address Code Based Semantic Processor 
for Sinhala, 14th International Research Conference KDU IRC 2021 

 

Conference Proceedings (Extended Abstract): 
3. eshamany V., Ranasinghe D. D.M, (2021), Digitization of National Identities of citizens using 

Blockchain Technology, 77th Annual sessions of the Sri Lanka Association for the Advancement of 
Science, December 6-11th   

4. Ranasinghe V. A. S. A., Ranasinghe D.D.M., (2021), Non-Verbal Communication Based Emotion 
Detection in Online Interviews, 77th Annual sessions of the Sri Lanka Association for the 
Advancement of Science, December 6-11th  

5. Priyadarshana, S. W. D., & Premaratne, I. A. (2021, September). Hybrid Energy Storage Solution for 
Standalone Photovoltaic Systems. Open University Research Sessions, Colombo, Sri Lanka. 

Conference Proceedings (Abstract): 
1. Ranasinghe, D. D. M., Bandarage, G., Dilsha, R. A. N., Navaratna,  W. C. W., Pasqual , H., Rajendra, 

J.C.N., Ratnayake, H.U.W., (2021, June 1-3). Identification of factors affecting programme 
completion at ousl: a case study on engineering and science streams.  Proceeding of the 34th 
Annual Conference of the Asian Association of Open Universities. 

Department of Mathematics & Philosophy of Engineering 
 
Full papers – non-indexed:  
1. Satheesh, A. , Warushawithana, M.  and Karunasena, G.M.K.B. (2021) Power Aware Ant Colony 

Optimized Routing in Heterogeneous Wireless Sensor Network, International Journal of 
Engineering Research and Applications.Vol 7, pp1-11. 

2. Jayawardana, G.M.C.P. , (2021), ‘Subhikṣa View’ vs ‘Irrigation View’: Repositioning Ancient Sri 
Lankan Waterworks in Historical Perspectives, Journal of Royal Asiatic Society of Sri Lanka, New 
Series, Vol. 65, Part I. 

Conference Proceedings (Full Paper): 
1. Yapa, P. Y. A. G. S,  Garrett, S. J.,  Griffiths, P. T. and Thomas, P. J. ,(2021), Designing Optimal 

Roughness: A theory- led approach to roughness-based drag reduction, Proceedings of the 8th 
annual engineering postgraduate symposium, University of Warwick , UK 

Conference Proceedings (Poster): 
1. Yapa, P. Y. A. G. S,  Garrett, S. J.,  Griffiths, P. T. and Thomas, P. J. ,(2021), Designing Optimal 

Roughness: A theory- led approach to roughness-based drag reduction, Proceedings of the 8th 
annual engineering postgraduate symposium, University of Warwick , UK 

 

Department of Mechanical Engineering 
 

 Full papers - indexed:  
1. Atthanayake, I.U., Senanayake, N. S., Torten,  H. F.,  Abeyweera, R. (2021). Future Direction of Global 

Educational Hackathons- A Critical Evaluation Based on Feedbacks of a Global Hackathon on Digital 
Education - Sri Lanka Perspective, Education 11 (1), 1-10 

2. Dilhani K.A.A., & Wimalasiri, R.J. (2021). Intelligent Virtual Assistant System (IVAS) for Air Traffic 
Controllers. Instrumentation Journal, 8(1), 43-50. 

3. Pathirana T., Gunawardane  P.D.S.H,  Medagedara N.T. (2021). A Deep Neural Network Model for 
Upper Limb Swing Pattern to Control an Active Bionic Leg, Instrumentation Journal, 8(1), 51-60. 

4. Dahanayaka D. T. D. M., Lokuge A. R., Jayakody J.A.D.E. Atthanayake I. U. (2021). Smart Drawing for 
Online Teaching, Instrumentation Journal, 8(2), 56-66 

5. Weerathunga G., Atthanayake I. U., Perera  S.D.R. (2021). Effects of Crosswind on an Automobile 
Under Dynamic Conditions, Instrumentation Journal, 8(2), 14-21. 
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6. Perera A. C. G. (2021). Investigating The Impact of Familiarity and Product Conditions on The Ease of 
Use of a Product, Instrumentation Journal, 8(2), 40-48. 

7. Abhayarathne M.A.I.M. Atthanayake I.U. (2021). Automatic Fabric Defects Inspection Machine,  
Instrumentation Journal, 8(3). 

8. Medagedara N.T. (2021). Study of Experimental Hysteresis Loops under Non-Proportional Loading, 
Engineer – Journal of the Institute of Engineers Sri Lanka, Vol.LIV(3), 27-38. 

9. Dahanayake D. T. D. M., Lokuge A. R.,  Jayakody J.A.D.E., Atthanayake I. U.,  (2021). Smart Drawing for 
Online Teaching, Instrumentation Journal, 8(2) 

10. Weerathunga G., Atthanayake I. U., Rasika Perera S.D., (2021). Effects of Crosswind on an Automobile 
Under Dynamic Conditions, Instrumentation Journal, 8(2) 
 

Department of Mechanical Engineering 
 

 Full papers - indexed:  
1. Atthanayake, I.U., Senanayake, N. S., Torten,  H. F.,  Abeyweera, R. (2021). Future Direction of Global 

Educational Hackathons- A Critical Evaluation Based on Feedbacks of a Global Hackathon on Digital 
Education - Sri Lanka Perspective, Education 11 (1), 1-10 

2. Dilhani K.A.A., & Wimalasiri, R.J. (2021). Intelligent Virtual Assistant System (IVAS) for Air Traffic 
Controllers. Instrumentation Journal, 8(1), 43-50. 

3. Pathirana T., Gunawardane  P.D.S.H,  Medagedara N.T. (2021). A Deep Neural Network Model for 
Upper Limb Swing Pattern to Control an Active Bionic Leg, Instrumentation Journal, 8(1), 51-60. 

4. Dahanayaka D. T. D. M., Lokuge A. R., Jayakody J.A.D.E. Atthanayake I. U. (2021). Smart Drawing for 
Online Teaching, Instrumentation Journal, 8(2), 56-66 

5. Weerathunga G., Atthanayake I. U., Perera  S.D.R. (2021). Effects of Crosswind on an Automobile 
Under Dynamic Conditions, Instrumentation Journal, 8(2), 14-21. 

6. Perera A. C. G. (2021). Investigating The Impact of Familiarity and Product Conditions on The Ease of 
Use of a Product, Instrumentation Journal, 8(2), 40-48. 

7. Abhayarathne M.A.I.M. Atthanayake I.U. (2021). Automatic Fabric Defects Inspection Machine,  
Instrumentation Journal, 8(3). 

8. Medagedara N.T. (2021). Study of Experimental Hysteresis Loops under Non-Proportional Loading, 
Engineer – Journal of the Institute of Engineers Sri Lanka, Vol.LIV(3), 27-38. 

9. Dahanayake D. T. D. M., Lokuge A. R.,  Jayakody J.A.D.E., Atthanayake I. U.,  (2021). Smart Drawing for 
Online Teaching, Instrumentation Journal, 8(2) 

10. Weerathunga G., Atthanayake I. U., Rasika Perera S.D., (2021). Effects of Crosswind on an Automobile 
Under Dynamic Conditions, Instrumentation Journal, 8(2) 

Department of Textile & Apparel Technology  
Full papers - indexed:  

1. Herath, C.N : Bursting Strength of core spun cotton/spandex single jersey and 1x1 rib knitted fabrics, 
fibers and polymers, vol 22(4), 1160-1169 

2. Lqbala W, Jiangb Y, Owais M, Siddiquic R, Ahmedd R, Xonge Q, Afzalf, Gunasekara DSW, Hussainh R. 
(2021) The measurement of dynamic tension fluctuation in a flat knitting machine, International 
Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change. Volume 15, Issue6, 2021, pp 900-911. 

3. Gunasekara DSW, He Y, Liu H, Liu L (2021): Smart wearable, highly sensitive pressure sensor with 
MWCNTs / PPy aerogel composite, Accepted by the Journal of Fibers and Polymers. 

Conference Proceedings (Full Paper): 
1. Ariadurai, SA, ,  STEM Education for Future Sri Lanka, 34th Annual Conference of the Organization of 

Professional Associations, October 2021, Colombo 

Conference Proceedings (Extended Abstract): 
1. Navodya, P.U and Herath, C.N, “Pineapple leaf fibers (PALF) based on Textile composites for cladding 

boards, Open University research sessions 2021, ISSN 2012-9912, P1-5. 
2. Lansakara L.M.D., Perera M.E.R , “Developing a conceptual framework to improve colour success rate 

of bulk dyeing with new colours at Teejay Lanka PLC - A case study, Open University research 
sessions 2021, ISSN 2012-9912, 

3. Munasinghe A.H.S.H, Wijerathne DS (2021): An Analysis of Trend forecasting for Denim Jean practices 
in men’s wear category, Sri Lanka, Abstract published online on 7-12-2021 by the research 
symposium- FGS-UVPA2021, Faculty of Graduate Students, University of Visual and Performing Art, 
pp 29. 
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A.3. Faculty of   Health Sciences 

Department of Basic Sciences 
 

Details of Research, Innovation and Publications        
 

Full papers – non-indexed:  

1. Vivehananthan, K* S. Thevashayinath and I. Abeygunawardena (2021). 
Extraction and Screening of Biofilm producing Bacterial isolates in short term and 
long term Catheters. Advances in Technology, 1 (2), 329-345. ISSN 2773-7098 

 

2. Vivehananthan K* and Heshani Weligodage (2021). Effect of Different Process 
Parameters on the formation of Silver Nanoparticles using Crude and Modified 
Neem (Azadirachta indica) Leaf Extracts. Advances in Technology, 1 (2), 266-276. 
ISSN 2773-7098 

 

3. Vivehananthan, K* and Luphzhy, M.P.D.L (2021). Detection of mecA gene and 
identification of potential methicillin-resistant Staphylococcus aureus in 
hospital wastewater samples. Advances in Technology. 1 (1), 89-100. ISSN 
2773-7098 

 

Conference Proceedings (Extended Abstract): 

1. Arampola, A.M.U.B., Munasinghe, W.G.H.P.K., & Kumari, P.M.S.S. (2021). Analysis of flood frequency 

at lower reach of Kelani river in Sri Lanka. Proceeding of the Open University Research Sessions 

(OURS 2021), Sri Lanka. pp 65. 
 

Department of Medical Laboratory Sciences 
 

Full papers - indexed:  

1. Wimalasiri-Yapa, B. R., Barrero, R. A., Stassen, L., Hafner, L. M., McGraw, E. A., Pyke, A. T., & Frentiu, F. 

D. (2021). Temperature modulates immune gene expression in mosquitoes during arbovirus 

infection. Open biology, 11(1), 200246. 
 

2. Herath, S., Balendran, T., Herath, A., Iddawela, D., & Wickramasinghe, S. (2021). Comparison of 

diagnostic methods and analysis of socio-demographic factors associated with Trichomonas 

vaginalis infection in Sri Lanka. PloS one, 16(10), e0258556. 
 

3. Weeramange, C. E., Liu, Z., Hartel, G., Li, Y., Vasani, S., Langton-Lockton, J., & Punyadeera, C. (2021). 

Salivary High-Risk Human Papillomavirus (HPV) DNA as a Biomarker for HPV-Driven Head and 

Neck Cancers. The Journal of Molecular Diagnostics, 23(10), 1334-1342. 

Full papers – non-indexed:  

1. Sheriff, F. A., Dissanayake, R. K., Wijesundara, C., Bandaranayaka, K. O., & Chathuranga, G. (2021). 

Prevalence, knowledge and selected associated factors of anaemia among non-pregnant females of 

reproductive age in a tea estate community in Hantana, Kandy district, Sri Lanka. American journal 

of blood research, 11(4), 438. 

Conference Proceedings (Poster): 

1. de Silva, K.K.D.S., Jayarathna, N. , Wijeratne, D.T. , Jaythilleke, B.G. (2020). Using electronic course 
material for learning: perceptions of medical laboratory science undergraduates 'Proceedings of the 
34thAnnual Conference of Asian Association of Open Universities (AAOU2020) held from 21-23 
October 2020 at Cinnamon Grand Hotel, Colombo, Sri Lanka. 
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2. De Silva, S.L., Gunarathna, H.D.N.T., Rajakulasooriya, R.S.R.,Thambavita, D. (2021). Assessment of 
knowledge and practices related to technical requirements recommended by ISO 15819:2012 
standards among medical laboratory technology staff in tertiary care hospitals and institutions in 
Western Province, SRI Lanka. Proceedings of the 30th anniversary academic sessions. (pp 58). 

 

3. Dissanayake, R.K., Ranaweera, K.K.P.T., & Priyadarshani, A.M.B. (2021). The effect of bilirubin on 
laboratory investigations on serum creatinine: A comparison study between Jaffe reaction and 
Creatinase enzymatic method with creatinine in phosphate buffered saline solution and serum. 
Proceedings of Clinical and Experimental Health Sciences. (pp. S10). 

 

4. Herath, H.M.S.P., Iddawela, W.M.D.R., & Wickramasinghe, W.D.S.J. (2021). Diagnosis, prevalence and 
risk factors of Trichomonas vaginalis infection in Sri Lanka. Proceedings of 8th Ruhuna International 
Science and Technology Conference. University of Ruhuna. (pp.38). 

 

5. Rathnayake, R.G.L., Hettiaratchi, U.P.K., & Perera, P.P.R. (2021). Association of serum leptin with 
BMI, body fat percentage and Q223R leptin receptor gene polymorphism in an adult female 
population. Proceedings of 3rd Conference of College of Biochemists of Sri Lanka. (pp. 33). 

 

6. Weeramange, C.E.,  Liu, Z., Hartel, G., Li, Y., Vasani, S., Langton-Lockton, J., Kenny, L., Tang, K.D., & 
Punyadeera, C.(2021).  Diagnostic and prognostic utility of salivary high-risk Human Papillomavirus 
detection in Oropharyngeal cancer. Proceedings of Griffith Cancer Research Network Symposium, 
28th October 2021. 

 

7. Weeramange, C.E.,  Liu, Z., Hartel, G., Li, Y., Vasani, S., Langton-Lockton, J., Kenny, L., Tang, K.D., & 
Punyadeera, C.(2021).  Utility of Salivary Human Papillomavirus DNA for HPV driven Oropharyngeal 
Cancer Detection. Proceedings of Saliva Symposium Australia (online) 10th June 2021.  

Department of Nursing 

 

Full papers - indexed:  
1. Lasanthi, K.G.R., Somarahna, R.I.B.D., Ranathunga R.M.S.B., Wickramasinghe, W.G.A.N., De Silva B. S. S. 

& Marikar, F. M. M. T. (2021). Understanding experiences of young adult males with below-knee 
amputation. Philippine Journal of Nursing, 91(1), 30 - 38. 

2. Edussuriya, S.J., Subhashini, S.Y. S., Amarasinghe, K.D.S.,  Kumari, G.S.D.,  Perera, .K. M.O.N. & 
Munidasa, K.G.P.K.  Experiences of Patients on Natural Herbal Treatments for Diabetes Mellitus at 
the Diabetes Clinic in Base Hospital - Matara, Sri Lanka. Journal of Patient Experience. Volume 8 1-5 
DOI: 10.1177/23743735211039313 

Conference Proceedings (Extended Abstract): 

(Oral presentation) 

1. Kumudumalee, R.M.A., Nishanthi, S.V., Lakmali, L.R.B., Thudugala, T.N.K., & Sriyani K.A. (2021). 
Learning challenges experienced by student nurses during clinical placements at operating theatre. 
Proceeding of the Open University Research Sessions (OURS 2021). The Open University of Sri Lanka. 
p.1-4. 

 

2. Sagarika, K. R. L. H., Charini, A. G. D., Rajapakshe, R. P.A., Priyadarshani,K. A. N., Hewabatage, P.N., & 
Priyanthi, W. N. (2021).Patient perception related to normal hospital diet consumption in a selected 
teaching hospital, Sri lanka. International Conference on Nursing. 

Conference Proceedings (Poster): 

1. Athukorala, A.D.M., Hatanarachchi, H.A.W.S., Wijesinghe, W.A.S.M., Wickramasinghe, P.C., 
Karunathilaka, C.D.M.P., & Sriyani, K.A. (2021). Awareness of breast cancer screening measures 
among female school teachers in Giriulla educational zone. Proceedings of the Research Conference in 
Health Sciences 2021, Faculty of Allied Health Sciences, University of Jayawardena, p 106. 

 

2. Upasena, K.D.A.M., Kumara, U.M.S.S., Siriwardhana, K.A.S.M., Gunarathna, M.A.V.S., & Sriyani, K.A, 
(2021). Awareness and self-reported practices regarding leptospirosis among paddy farmers in 



163 
 

Weligepola Medical Officer of Health (MOH) area in Ratnapura district of Sri Lanka. Proceedings of 
the Research Conference in Health Sciences 2021, Faculty of Allied Health Sciences, University of 
Jayawardena, p 193. 

 

3. Weerabahu, R., Dharmasiri, U., Wickramasinghe, M., Sirinilame, S. & Sriyani, K.A. (2021). Nurses’ 
perception towards the use of advanced medical devices in critical care units. Proceedings of the 4th 
Research Symposium of the Faculty of Allied Health Sciences, University of Ruhuna, 26th August 202, 
p.17.   

 

4. Perera, A.N.M., Weerasinghe, K.M.P.S., Kumari,H.P.S., Perera, O.S.M., Kodagoda, A.S.K., & De Silva, 
B.S.S. (2021), ‘Family caregivers’ experiences of people with dementia at the elderly clinic, Colombo 
South Teaching Hospital, Sri Lanka’. Proceedings of Research Conference in Health Sciences, 
31.03.2021, pp 151.  

Conference Proceedings (Oral): 
 

 

1. Senarathna K. M. C. S., Chandrasekara U. G. M. H., Helapalla K. M. S., Jayarathna G. V. A. P., Saumika M. 
A. R., & De Silva B. S. S. (2021). Psychological experiences of informal caregivers of patients with 
dementia. Proceedings of the Research Conference in Health Sciences 2021 - Faculty of Allied Health 
Sciences, University of Sri Jayewardenepura, Sri Lanka. 31st March 2021. P.124. 

  
2. Dilrukshi K.K.J., & De Silva, B. S. S. (2021). Knowledge and Practices of Foot Care among Patients with 

Diabetes Mellitus in the Asian Countries: A Systematic Review. Proceedings of the 4th Research 
Symposium of the Faculty of Allied Health Sciences, University of Ruhuna, Galle, Sri Lanka. August 26, 
2021. ISSN: 2659-2029. 

  
3. Doole1, N. H. T, Shantha, D.M.S., Wijesekara, W. M. D. N. K., Abeywardhana, K. M. T. D, CDMP 

Karunathilaka & De Silva, B. S. S. (2021). An Exploration of Mothers’ Experience of Children with 
Thalassemia Depending on Iron Chelation Therapy in Thalassemia Centre of Provincial General 
Hospital Badulla. 14th International Research Conference of General Sir John Kotelawala Defence 
University, Ratmalana, Sri Lanka. 9th and – 10th of September 2021. P. 21. ISBN 978-624-5574-37-7  

 

4. Wimalasooriya, P.B.A.D.K., Ranathunga, N.A.D.C.K.S., Bandara, W.M.D.B., N. M. Patterson, & De Silva, 
B. S. S. (2021). The psychosocial factors related to post-partum depression among mothers in the 
post-partum period at the De Soyza Maternity Hospital for Women in Sri Lanka. Proceedings of the 
Open University Research Sessions 2021(OURS 2021). 16th and – 17th of September 2021. P. 80. 
ISSN 2012-9912. 

 

5. Wijesekara, G. G. W. C., Sendall, M., McGraw, K., King, N., & Gamage, M. (2021, September 15). A 
digital story to improve healthy eating and physical activity of young people [An audio-visual 
material]. QUT Visualize Your Thesis (VYT) Final, Queensland University of Technology, Australia. 
https://www.qut.edu.au/engage/industry-and-partnerships/work-with-students/research-student-
engagement/graduate-research-student-showcase 

 

6. Wijesekara, G. G. W. C., Sendall, M., McGraw, K., King, N., & Gamage, M. (2021, August 5). A digital 
story to improve healthy eating and physical activity [Oral presentation]. Faculty of Health 2021 
Three Minutes Thesis (3MT) Final, Queensland University of Technology, Australia. 

 

7. Herath, C. J., Nuwansala, H. U. C., Rathnayake, R. G. L., Madushani, G., & Amarasinghe, H. P. K. (2021). 
The validity of the quality assessment tools used at the open university of sri lanka. Proceedings of 
the 34th Annual Conference of the Asian Association of Open Universities (2021), 94. 

 

8. Amarasena, N.C.K., Wickramasinghe, W.A.A.S., Munasinghe, M.A.L.T. Athukorala, T.S.P.P., Senanayake,  
K.I.D.F., & Munidasa, K.G.P.K (2021). Barriers related to delay in seeking medical advice among 
patients with chicken Pox: A hospital-based study. Proceedings of 8th Ruhuna International Science & 
Technology Conference University of Ruhuna, Matara, Sri Lanka.  ISSN: 13918796  

 
9. Kodagoda, A.S.K., Gunarathne, D.M.S.S., Thennakoon, E.M.T.G.D.N., Kumarasinghe, U.A.D.N., 

Komanagooda, K.G.S.L., & Munidasa, K.G.P.K. (2021). Physical, social, psychological experiences of 
teenage mothers at the antenatal clinic in the teaching hospital Peradeniya, Sri Lanka. 4th 
International Conference on the Future of Women. 
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10. Yapa, H. E., Chambers, S., Purtell, L. & Bonner, A. (2021). Exploring the impact of chronic kidney 
disease at various grades along its trajectory. Renal Society of Australasia Annual Conference, 
Melbourne, Australia. June 18, 2021 

 

11. Yapa, H. E., Purtell, L., Chambers, S. & Bonner, A. (2021). Factors influencing health-related quality of 
life in people with chronic kidney disease. Renal Society of Australasia Annual Conference, 
Melbourne, Australia. June 18, 2021 

 

12. G.A. Priyadarshani, T.H.M.A. Dhammika, P.D. Wickramaarachchi, N.D.C.T. Nakandala. & P.W.G.D.P. 
Samarasekara., (2021) Knowledge, attitudes, and compliance towards directly observed treatment 
short course among pulmonary tuberculosis patients attending the chest clinic at the district general 
hospital in Kalutara.  Proceeding of the Open University Research Sessions. The Open University of Sri 
Lanka. p. 83 

 

13. Wijekoon W.M.N.K, Jayathilake, S.N.B.G.C.K., Maldeniya, D.R.R., Dassanayake, C.P.K.D, Kodagoda, 
A.S.K. & De Silva B.S.S., (2021), ‘Maternal experience with congenital surgical problems in neonates 
managed in a pediatric intensive care unit’. Proceedings of 8th International Conference on 
Multidisciplinary Approaches. (On progress). 

Department of Pharmacy 
 

Full papers - indexed:  

1. Gunasekara, W.A.S.K., Ranawaka, R.A.T.S., Chathuranga, G.L.D., Kankanamge, S.U., Balasuriya, 
A.(2021), Importance of following proper inhalation techniques and awareness regarding asthma 
among clinical patients. Journal of complementary and alternative medical research, 15(03), 1-13. 
DOI: 10.9734/JOCAMR/2021/v15i330266 

2. Chathuranga, G.L.D., Manathunga, H.S., Gunasekara, W.A.S.K., Jayasekara, K.B., Sanjeewani, A.(2021), 
Compliance and adherence to drug treatment on patients with chronic kidney disease in high 
prevalence areas of North central province, Sri Lanka. International journal of Community Medicine 
and Public Health, 8(7), 3231-3237.  DOI: 10.18203/2394-6040.ijcmph20212571 

 

3. Wijayawardhana, N., Cooray, D., Jayasuriya, B., Uluwaduge, I., Meedin, F., & Arawwawala, M.(2021), 
Antimicrobial activity of a combination of three natural plant extracts and development of a herbal 
soap. Pharmaceutical Sciences Asia, 48(6), 523-534 DOI:10.29090/psa.2021.06.21.031 

 
4. Wickramasinghe, A.S.D., Kalansuriya, P., & Attanayake, A.P. (2021). Herbal medicines targeting the 

improved β cell functions and β cell regeneration for the management of diabetes mellitus. Evidence-
Based Complementary and Alternative Medicine, https://doi.org/10.1155/2021/2920530 

 
5. Welideniya DT, Jayathilaka AS, Acharige AD, Samanthi KAU, Wanninayake UK, Perera SS, Rajapaksha 

W, Fernando CC, Hewadikaram M, Buddhika J, Gunasekara P, Karunaratne V, Amaratunga GAJ, 
Gunasekera DS. Practical and scalable synthesis of beclomethasone dipropionate. Steroids. 2021 Dec 
3:108948. doi: 10.1016/j.steroids.2021.108948. Epub ahead of print. PMID: 34871605. 

Conference Proceedings (Extended Abstract): 

1. Wickramasinghe, A.S.D., Attanayake, A.P., & Kalansuriya, P. (2021, October). Optimization of high fat 
diet fed streptozotocin induced Wistar rat model for screening antidiabetic agents. International 
Conference on Applied and Pure Sciences, Sri Lanka. 

 

2. Wickramasinghe, A.S.D., Attanayake, A.P.,   Kalansuriya, P. (2021, March). Optimization of 
encapsulation efficiency of Coccinia grandis (L.) Voigt extract encapsulated nanoliposomes. 
Proceedings of 18th Academic Sessions, University of Ruhuna, p. 95. 

 
3. Perera K.P.K, Priyamali P.D.Y.P, Priyangika K.A.I, Mannapperuma U. (2021) Patients’ knowledge and 

adherence to warfarin therapy and its relationship to anticoagulation control at the warfarin clinic of 
the Colombo National Hospital. Proceedings of the Annual Scientific Sessions 2021 of the 
Pharmaceutical Society of Sri Lanka. p. 31. 

 

4. Jayasiri, K.S., Silva, G.N., Vithanarachchi S.M., (2021), October). Plant-extract based synthesis of zinc 
oxide particles and evaluation of their antioxidant effect. Proceedings of the Young scientists 

http://dx.doi.org/10.9734/JOCAMR/2021/v15i330266
http://dx.doi.org/10.18203/2394-6040.ijcmph20212571
https://doi.org/10.1155/2021/2920530
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conference on Multidisciplinary Research  2021 of the National Institute of Fundamental studies, Sri 
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5. L.R Sendanayake, L.R., Amarasiri H.A.D.B.,  Jayasundera A.C.A., Adassooriya N.M., (2021), 
November). Methotrexate-Loaded Halloysite Nanotubes as a Controlled Release Drug Delivery 
Formulation. Proceedings of Peradeniya University International Research Sessions 2021, Sri Lanka  

Conference Proceedings (Poster): 

1. Wickramasinghe, A.S.D., Attanayake, A.P., & Kalansuriya, P. (2021, July). Glucose-lowering activity of 
Coccinia grandis (L.) Voigt leaf extract encapsulated nanoliposomes in Wistar rats induced with 
diabetes mellitus. College of Biochemists of Sri Lanka, 3rd Conference, Sri Lanka.  

 

2. Wickramasinghe, A.S.D., Attanayake, A.P.,   Kalansuriya, P. (2021, March). Effect of water: ethanol 
ratio on extraction yield, total polyphenol content and total flavonoid content of selected sri lankan 
medicinal plants. Proceedings of 18th Academic Sessions, University of Ruhuna, p. 97. 

 

3. Nidangoda, H.A.D.W., Bandara, H.W.M.K.G.S., Premarathne, M.M.A.B., Wijenayake, U.S., Mamunuwa, 
A.M.V.G.N.,Gunarathna, N.K.C., Eriyagama, A.M.S.D. Medication adherence and quality of life among 
patients with psoriasis in two Provinces in Sri Lanka. Proceedings of the Annual Scientific Sessions 
2021 of the Pharmaceutical Society of Sri Lanka. p. 46. 

 

4. Samarakoon, D.D.N.W., Kumara, R.S., Buddhika, R.B.J., Jayasuriya, W.J.A.B.N. Pharmacognostical 
evaluation and antibacterial activity of the flowers of Impatiens balsamina. L (Kudalu). Proceedings of 
the Annual Scientific Sessions 2021 of the Pharmaceutical Society of Sri Lanka. p. 42. 

Department of Psychology & Counselling 
 

Full papers - indexed:  

1. Jayawardena, H.K.H., Gamage, G.P., (2021), Exploring challenges in mental health service provisions 
for school-going adolescents in Sri Lanka, School Psychology International. 

 

2. Gamage, G.P., Herath, H.M.Chulani.J., (2021), Mental health of undergraduate distance learners: a 
cross-sectional study, Asian Association of Open Universities Journal 

 

3. Power, Alison, Michael Palapal Sy, Maggie Hutchings, Tracy Coleman, Alla El-Awaisi, Gatera Fiston 
Kitema, Jean Gallagher, Chulani Herath, Nichola McLarnon, Shobhana Nagraj, Veronica O'Carroll, 
Melissa Owens, Vikki Park, Emma Pope, Lisa-Christin Wetzlmair, P Jane Greaves, Elizabeth S 
Anderson, (2021), Learning in lockdown: exploring the impact of COVID-19 on interprofessional 
education, British Journal of Midwifery.  

Full papers – non-indexed:  
1. De Silva, B.G.R., Hapangama, A., de Silva, R., Williams, S. S., de Zoysa, P. T., Wickremasinghe, 

R.,R.,Kuruppuarachchi, K. L., & Ravindran, A., (2021), Randomized controlled trial evaluating the 
effectiveness of cognitive behavioral group therapy (CBGT) compared to a waitlist control in the 
treatment of university students with social anxiety disorder, Journal of the Postgraduate Institute of 
Medicine, E1511-10. 

 

Conference Proceedings (Extended Abstract): 
1. Gamage, G.P., Herath, H.M.Chulani.J. (2021), Depression, Anxiety and Stress among Undergraduate 

Students in the Open University of Sri Lanka - A Cross Sectional Study, Proceedings of the Annual 
Conference on Asian Association of Open Universities.  

 

2. Herath, Chulani, Nuwansala, H.U.C., Rathnayake, R.G.L.Dinithi de Silva, Gayeshi Madushani, Pabasari 
Amarasinghe,(2021) Validity of the Quality Assessment Tools Used in the Open University of Sri 
Lanka, Proceedings of the Annual Conference on Asian Association of Open Universities. 

 
3. Bulathwatta, B.D.D.T., Appuhamilage, U.M.H., Gamage, G.P., (2021), Local Conceptualizations of 

Chronic Kidney Disease of Unknown Etiology (CKDu): A Psychosocial Analysis of CKDu in 
Perakanatha, Wilgamuwa, Sri Lanka, Proceedings of the Open University Research Sessions 
OURS2021.  
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A.4. Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences 

Department of Language Studies 
 

Full papers - indexed:  
 

1. Chandramohaan, K. (2021) The Upcountry Falklore, South East Asian Clasical Tamil Education. 

18-24 

2. De Silva, R. & Devendra, D. (2021). Undergraduate Researcher Stories: Insights for Mentoring in 

an Open and Distance Learning Context. Journal of Education (bujoe). Sage. 

DOI:10.1177/00220574211032579 

3. De Silva, R. & Devendra, D. (2021). Undergraduate Researcher Stories: Insights for Mentoring in 

an Open and Distance Learning Context. Journal of Education (bujoe). Sage. 

DOI:10.1177/00220574211032579    (indexed) 

4. Pullenayegem, J., De Silva, R., Jayatilake, G. (2021). Contradictions in learner interactions in a 

blended learning writing course: An activity theory analysis. Journal of Learning for 

Development (JL4D),8 (2), 327-345.   (indexed) 
 

Full papers – non-indexed:  

1. Abeysekera, N. K. and Wijesinghe, K. G. S. A. (2021). Programme in English for Legal Studies -

Stakeholders’  Perceptions on the New Normal Experience. VISTAS Journal of Humanities and 

Social Sciences, OUSL Volume 14, Issue II, 2021. 

2. Medawattegedara, L. (2021). Air Mobility, Ten Heads and Universal Authority: Constructing 

Ravana in the Folk Imagination of Sabaragamuwa—a Folkloric Study OUSL Journal 2021: 

Volume II 

3. Medawattegedara, L. (2021). Nai-Polomg Vairaya: Chronic Anger in an Ancient Folktale. Sadesa: 

Volume I 2021 

4. Medawattegedera, V.V. (2021) Popularizing English Language Poetry in Sri Lanka: Some Current 

Practices. Sahityaya Literary Journal 2020-2021 (pp 81-97)  

5. Schubert, A (2021). Qadri Ismail (1961 – 2021): Abiding, Acknowledging, and Accounting for 

Intellectual Debts. Polity, 9 (1&2), 43-50 
 

Conference Proceedings (Full Paper): 

1. Abeysekera, N. K., Satharasinghe, S. A. A. K. and Wijesinghe, K. G. S. A. (2021). Using Zoom 
Technology for Language Teaching in Challenging Situations – The OUSL Experience. The Annual 
Conference of the Asian Association of Open Universities, Sri Lanka. 

2. Medawattegedara, L. (2021). “What do you know of the Sciences?”: Perceptions of Female 
Education Inscribed in a Sample of Ancient Folktales of Ceylon. Centre for Women’s Research 
16th National Convention on Women’s Studies  

3. Medawattegedara V.V., Medawattegedara, L. (2021) “I will show you fear in a handful of dust”— 
The Challenges of Teaching Responses to Literary Texts Using the On-line Mode: Analysis of 
Student Perceptions.   Conference Presentation: 34th Annual Conference of the Asian Association 
of Open Universities 

4. Vinothini,A. (2021) . Paḻamoḻi nāṉūṟu for the Development of Life . International Conference on 
“Tamil Literature”, Department of Tamil, Rathinam College of Arts and Science. 21.09.2021 

5. Vinothini,A. (2021) . The Art of Kuṟavañci. International Conference on “Contribution of 
Literature in Arts”, Department of Tamil,  Shri Shankarlal Shasun Jain College for Women 
T.Nagar. 17.04.2021 
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Conference Proceedings (Extended Abstract): 

1. Abeysekera, N. K., Satharasinghe, S. A. A. K. and Wijesinghe, K. G. S. A. (2021). Using Zoom 
Technology for Language Teaching in Challenging Situations – The OUSL Experience. The Annual 
Conference of the Asian Association of Open Universities, Sri Lanka. 

2. Chandramohaan, K. (2021), Higher Education in Up Country. Care Listed Journal. 280 - 285 
3. De Silva, R. & Devendra, D. (2021).  Exploring the research trajectories of senior academics: a 

qualitative study at the Open University of Sri Lanka. Conference proceedings of the 34th Annual 
Conference of the Asian Association of Open Universities, Nawala, Sri Lanka. 

4. De Silva, R. & Devendra, D. (2021) Exploring the research trajectories of senior academics: A 
qualitative study at the Open University of Sri Lanka. Paper presented at the 34th Annual Conference 
of the Asian Association of Open Universities. June  1-3, 2019, The Open University of Sri Lanka, 
Nawala. 

5. Medawattegedara, L. (2021). Air Mobility, Ten Heads and Universal Authority: Exploratory Study of 
King Ravana in the Folktales of Sabaragamuwa. Conference Presentation: OURS2021 

6. Medawattegedera, V.V. and Medawattegedara, L. (2021) "I will show you fear in handful of dust" - 
Challenges of teaching response to literary texts using the online mode: Student perceptions . Paper 
presented at the Annual Conference of the AAOU ( Colombo, June, 2021) 

7. Nilakarawasam, N., De Silva, Radhika, Alwis, D., De Silva, Ransirini, Dilsha, N., Bulathwatta, T. & 
Athapaththu, B. (2021). Developing a proactive motivational individual student support system at 
OUSL: a preliminary study for identification of influential factors. Presented at the Asian 
Association of Open Universities (AAOU) 2021. 

8. Ranaweera , R.L.A.N., The Politics of sharing and caring: Sri Lankan Women’s groups on Social 
Media; Open University Research sessions (OURS) 2021, September 16-17, 167-168 

9. Schubert, A. (2021). Fragments in the Center. Sir Ponnambalam Arunachalam's 1901 Census of 
Ceylon. Looping Back Bureaucracies? Workshop organized by The Swedish Institute of 
International Affairs and The Radboud Institute for Culture and History, Radboud     University. 
May 2021 

Books / Patents 

1. Edirisinghe, Anuruddhi, Maithree Wickremesinghe, Manikya Kodithuwakku et al. (2021). 
Fatalities: Accidents, Suicide and Femicide of Girls and Women in Sri Lanka. Colombo: United Nations 
Population Fund (UNFPA). 

2. Menike, N. N., (2022). Writing Violence and Buddhism in Sri Lanka: Of Hungry Ghosts and 
Homecomings. Routledge: Abingdon 

Book  Chapter 

1. De Silva, R. (2021). Assessment Literacy and Assessment Practices of Teachers of English in a 

South-Asian Context: Issues and Possible Washback. In Lanteigne, B.,Coombe, C, & Brown, J.D. 

(Eds.). Challenges in Language Testing Around the World. Springer. DOI:10.1007/978-981-33-

4232-3_31 

Department of Legal Studies 

 

Full papers - indexed:  

1. Perera, Ramindu (2021). Beyond the Minimalist Critique: An Assessment of the Right to Education 
in International Human Rights Law. Netherlands Quarterly of Human Rights. 39(4), 268–290. 
https://doi.org/10.1177/09240519211057240 
 

2. Jayarathna, Nisanka, Thilakarathna, K.A.A.N (2021). Theories involved in Recognizing and 
Implementing International Law in Domestic Context. Journal of Law, Policy and Globalization. ISSN 
2224-3240, Vol 109.http://dx.doi.org/10.7176/JLPG/109-09 

3. Anuththara, K.K.G., 2021. Recognising protection of personal data under the Fundamental Rights 
(Constitutional Rights) perspective in Sri Lanka. Sri Lanka Journal of Social Sciences, ISSN 0258-
9710, 44(1), pp.27–32. DOI: http://doi.org/10.4038/sljss.v44i1.7942  
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Full papers – non-indexed:  

1. Thilakarathna, K.A.A.N, Mendis, H.S.D, Jayarathna, Nisanka (January 2021) Where are we now? 
Not where we want to be. The Success and Failure in the Implementation of Convention on 
Biological Diversity in Sri Lanka. International Journal of Research and Innovation in Social Science 
(IJRISS) Vol V, ISSN 2454-6186. www.rsisinternational.org 
 

2. Anuththara, K.K.G., (2021). Upholding personal data protection as a fundamental right compared to 
public health in the coronavirus outbreak in Sri Lanka- Lessons from comparative jurisdictions, 
Volume XII of the Junior Bar Law Journal. 

 

 
3. Thilakarathne, W.G.T.Y (2021), Appraisal of Animal Welfare Movements in Sri Lanka and Neediness 

of Incorporating Higher Standards as an Urgent Requirement, Volume XII of the Junior Bar Law 
Journal. 
 

4. Gamalath, H.N.D. (2021) Public Participation or Public Protest: A Critical Analysis of Public 
Participation in Environmental Assessment in Sri Lanka, Global Scientific Journal, 9 (10) ISSN 2320-
9186 

 
5. Adikari, A.A.C.J. & Wijesinghe W.A.S.S. (2021). Making Intellectual Property a Common Good to 

Combat Global Pandemics and the COVID-19 Technology Access Pool (C-TAP): Responding the 
Challenges Exerted by Big Pharma and Some High-Income Countries. Vidyodaya Journal of 
Management, 7(2), 69-99. https://doi.org/10.31357/vjm.v7iII.5096 

 
6. Hettiarachchi, C.A., Reevee, B. & Wijesinghe, W.A.S.S. (2021). A Comparative Doctrinal Analysis of 

Food Advertisement Laws in Sri Lanka with Selected Jurisdictions. Journal of the College of 
Community Physicians in Sri Lanka, 27(2), 339-349. https://doi.org/10.4038/jccpsl.v27i2.8393 

 
7. Hettiarachchi, C.A. & Wijesinghe W.A.S.S. (2021) Food-Medicine Interface and its Application in 

International Level, Comparative Jurisdictions and Sri Lankan Legal Context. World Nutrition, 12(1), 
103-111. https://doi.org/10.26596/wn.2021121103-111 

 

Conference Proceedings (Full Paper): 

1. Liyana Muhandiram, N. S., & Ariyaratna, B. A.R.R. (2021) Using an Effective Student Feedback 
System to Improve the Quality of Teaching Legal Subjects. 34th Annual Conference of the Asian 
Association of Open Universities. AAOU, The Open University of Sri Lanka. 

 

2. Jeewanthi M.K.G.,(2021).Puzzling out the Issue of Obesity Under the Human Rights Based Approach, 
14th International Research Conference, General Sir John Kotelawala Defence University. 

 

3. Jayarathna, D.M.N.M (2021). Negotiation as an Effective Method to Resolve Conflict: An Analysis 
with Industrial Dispute, Virtual International Conference, National Centre for Advanced Studies 
(NCAS). 

 

4. Jayarathna, D.M.N.M, Alagiyawanna, Priyantha (2021) Right to Health in Human Rights Law and 
Right to Health  in Ancient Sri Lanka : An Overview, University of Sri Jayawardanapura Virtual 
International  Conference (IRCSSH) 

 

5. Mendis, H.S.D, Jayarathna, Nisanka, Thilakarathna, K.A.A.N (2021) Liability under actio legis 
aquiliae for breach of quarantine: A Critical Review with special reference to Sri Lanka. Sri Lanka 
Medico-legal society conference. 

6. Anuththara. K.K.G., 2021, Lessons from ancient practice of using Buddhist teachings for dispute 
resolutions in Sri Lanka to enhance recent trends of alternative dispute resolution methods, - A 
legal analysis, 5th International Conference on the Humanities, University of Kelaniya.  

 

7. Thilakarathne W.G.T.Y , Panditharatne W.N.G, 2021, Necessity of Incorporating a provision of right 
to life into the Constitution of Sri Lanka-A Legal Analysis.  9th International Conference on Social 
Science and Humanities. 

 

http://www.rsisinternational.org/
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8. Panditharatne,W.N.G, Thilakarathne, W.G.T.Y 2021, Analysis of the Effectiveness of Selected 
International Labour Standards in Ensuring Employment Wellbeing in the aftermath of the Covid-
19 Pandemic.  9th International Conference on Social Science and Humanities. 

 

9. Thilakarathne W.G.T.Y, 2021 Demanding higher standards for animal welfare Legislation into 
existing law in Sri Lanka: with special reference to domestic animals in Sri Lanka. SLIIT 
International Conference of Advancement in Science and Humanities, SLIIT Campus. 

 

10. Gamalath, H. N.D. (2021) Contemporary Consequences of the Prevention of Terrorism Act in Sri Lanka 
and its Impact on Human Rights. [Paper Presentation] GARI Multidisciplinary Symposium, ISSN 
2659-2193(Online), ISBN 978-955-7153-00-1 

 

11. Hewamealla, Sandya (2021, October 29), The Right to Property in the Indian Constitution: 
Contemporary Challenges. 04th International Conference on Contemporary issues of Commerce, 
Education, Arts and Information Technology (ICCEAIT 2021) Colombo, Sri Lanka 

 

12. Wijesinghe W.A.S.S., & Adikari A.A.C.J. (2021, December 09-10) Protection of Intellectual Property 
Rights and Advancing Public Health in the Time of the Global Pandemic: The Impact of the Increasing 
Use of Three-Dimensional (3D) Printing of COVID-19 Medical Equipment [Paper Presentation] 18th 
International Conference on Business Management (ICBM) 2021, University of Sri 
Jayewardenepura, Sri Lanka.  

 

Conference Proceedings (Extended Abstract): 

Perera, Ramindu (2021). Between Liberty and Equality: Assessing the Impact of the Proliferation of 
'International Schools' in Sri Lanka from a Right-to-Education Perspective. Proceedings of Peradeniya 
University International Research Sessions 2021, Sri Lanka, Vol. 23, 11th & 12th November 2021 
 
Perera, Ramindu (2021). Revisiting the Relevance of the Lessons Learnt and Reconciliation Commision's 
(LLRC) Approach to Accountability. 1st Annual Conference, Office for National Unity and Reconciliation, 
Sri Lanka. 30th and 31st October 2021.  
Anuththara. K.K.G. (2021). Possibilities of Recognizing Right to Personal Data Protection Next to Right to 
Privacy in Sri Lanka’, 7th International Research Conference for Humanities and Social Sciences, The 
University of Sri Jayewardenepura.  
 
Wijesinghe W.A.S.S. (2021, November 1-12) Public Health and Trademark Debate: A Proposal to Develop a 
Policy Coherence in Sri Lankan IP Law in the Context of Proposed Tobacco Plain Packaging Measures 
[Conference Session] 17th World Intellectual Property Organization (WIPO) & World Trade Organization 
(WTO) Colloquium for Teachers of Intellectual Property, Geneva, Switzerland.  
 

Department of Social Studies 
 

Full papers - indexed:  
 

1. Madhubhashini, G.T. (2021). Traditional forms of communication for agricultural related livelihood in 
rural Sri Lanka. The Journal of Development of Communication. 32(1). 60-67. 
 

2. Madhubhashini, G.T. (2021). The role of Television as an educational medium in empowering rural 
students in Sri Lanka during Covid 19 pandemic. Journal of languages, Communication and 
Humanities. 4(2). 89-100.  

 
3. Madhubhashini, G.T. (2021). Traditional folk communications among indigenous people: Veddhas 

Community in Sri Lanka. The Journal of Development Communication. 32(2). 15-22.  
 
4. Madhubhashini, G.T. (2021). The role of Traditional forms of communication in the context of Covid 

19 in Rural Sri Lanka. Asian Journal of Applied communication. 11(2). 37-52.  
 
5. Madhubhashini, G.T. (2021). The use of traditional forms of communication for honey gathering in 

rural Sri Lanka. International Journal of media and communication Research. 3(1). 1-10.  
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Full papers – non-indexed:  

1. Abeyratne, D. & Morais, N. (2021). Sustainable Reporting: An Analysis of Disclosure Practices of 
Selected Business Organizations in Sri Lanka. Sri Lanka Journal of Management Studies.3(1). 127-150.  

2. Karunadasa, K. L. E., Liyanahetti, D. D. and Fernando, T. D. K. (2021). Using Elearn facilities in 
Education: Reflections of undergraduates. VISTAS Journal of Humanities and Social Sciences. 14(2). 
141-165.  

3. Madhubhashini, G.T. (2021). The role of traditional folk media in empowering rural communities in 
Sri Lanka. VISTAS Journal of Humanities and Social Sciences. 14(1). 50-60. 

4. Madhubhashini, G.T. (2021). The reality of information poverty in Sri Lanka. Madhya Sameeksha. 4. 
80-86.  

5. Madhubhashini, G.T. (2021). Opportunities and challenges faced by mid-career academics in the 
discipline of Humanities and Social Sciences in the context of Open and Distance Learning. VISTAS 
Journal of Humanities and Social Sciences. 14(2). 119-140. 

6. Wickramasinghe, T. A (2021). Status of Reconciliation: A Case Study of Sarvodaya Movement in 
Building Ethnic Harmony Through Humanitarian Diplomacy in Northern Province of Sri Lanka. 
VISTAS Journal of Humanities and Social Sciences. (14(1). 66-83. 

 

Conference Proceedings (Abstract/Extended Abstract): 

1. Angammana, B.H. and Perera, J. A. P. S. (2021, October 21). Conducting day-schools via ZOOM 
during COVID-19 pandemic lockdown: students’ & facilitator’s reflections”. [paper presentation]. 
YSCMR (Young Scientists Conference on Multidisciplinary Research) 2021 Young Scientists’ 
Association, National Institute of Fundamental Studies, Sri Lanka 

2. Chandrabose, A.S. (2021, October 2021) Structural Changes in the Plantation Sector: A    Study on 
the Growth of Small Tea Holdings and Its Impact on Tea Plantation Sector in Sri Lanka, [Paper 
presentation]. Annual South Asia Conference, University of Wisconsin-Madison campus, USA 
conference@southasia.wisc.edu. 

3. Herath,H.M.U.S.(2021,November 12-14). In seeking equal access to learn: Rural 
parents’perspectives and challenges in home based online education in Presence of Covid 19 
pandemic. [paper presentation] NASPAA South Asia Virtual Conference 2021. Organized by 
Network of Schools of Public Policy, Affairs, and Administration (NASPAA) South Asian Institute 
of Policy and Governance (SIPG), North South University JSWSchool of Public Policy (JSW-SPP), 
IIM Ahmedabad. https://www.southasiaconference2021.com/ 

4. Herath,H.M.U.S.(2021,December 1-3). “Search for equal access to learning: Perspectives of rural 
parents on home-based online education in Sri Lanka during the COVID-19 pandemic” .[paper 
presentation].7TH INTERNATIONAL CONFERENCE ON HUMANITIES AND SOCIAL SCIENCES 
FACULTY OF ARTS, UNIVERSITY OF COLOMBO, SRI LANKA.  

5. Kollmann,T., Koswatta, A., Palangkaraya, A. and Webster, B. (2021, December 3-4). The Effects of 
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2. Lakmali, A.A.I., Perera, R.H.A.T., Rathnayake, T.H., Hapugoda, J.C., Fernando, M.A., Makubura, 
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Management Studies, 34th Annual Conference of the Asian Association of Open Universities 2021 
(AAOU 2021). 
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Satisfaction On Online Pre-Submission Progress Presentation: With Special Reference To 
Bachelor Of Management Studies (Bms) Degree Program. International Conference on 
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Scientific Reports, 11:12748. https://doi.org/10.1038/s41598-021-92314-9 

4. Thomas, I. B. K., Gaminda, K. A. P., Jayasinghe, C. D., Abeysinghe, D. T., & Senthilnithy, R. (2021). 
DNAzymes, Novel Therapeutic Agents in Cancer Therapy: A Review of Concepts to Applications. 
Journal of Nucleic Acids, 2021. Article ID 9365081 | https://doi.org/10.1155/2021/9365081 

5. Gaminda, K. A. P., Thomas, I. B. K., Abeysinghe, D. T., Jayasinghe, C. D., & Senthilnithy, R. (2021), 
Deoxyribozymes in detection of Pathogenic bacteria. Biotechnologia acta, T.14. No.5. 

6. Thathsarani, N., Jayasinghe, C. D., Jayawardena, U., & Nilakarawasam, N. (2021). Effect of oral 
administration of the fresh juice of Bamboo (Bambusa vulgaris) young shoots on enumeration of 
bone marrow cells, platelets, splenocyte and phagocytic activity of peritoneal macrophages of rats. 
Phytomedicine Plus, 1(3), 100059. 

7. Punchihewa, N. N. (2021). Factors influencing the distribution of Mysids (Crustacea: Mysidacea) in 
Chilaw Lagoon Sri Lanka. International journal of Ecology of Environmental Sciences, 3(4). 

https://doi.org/10.1186/s13071-021-04900-5
https://doi.org/10.1038/s41598-021-92314-9
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8. Wickramasinghe, D., Weerasinghe, Y., Fernando, S. (2021). Spatial ecology of raptors in an urban 
wetland: A case study from Bolgoda Lake, Sri Lanka. Ukrainian Journal of Ecology 11 (7), 174-178. 

9. Jayawardena, U. A., Wickramasinghe, D. D., & Udagama, P. V. (2021). Cytogenotoxicity evaluation of 
a heavy metal mixture, detected in a polluted urban wetland: Micronucleus and comet induction in 
the Indian green frog (Euphlyctis hexadactylus) erythrocytes and the Allium cepa bioassay. 
Chemosphere, 277, 130278. 

10. Jayathilake, N.J. and Jayewardena, U.A., (2021) Genotoxic potential of aqueous extract: A sea 
cucumber species, Bohadschia vitiensis using genotoxicity model Allium cepa. Advance 
Pharmaceutical Journal. 6 (1). 9-14.  

11. Samarasighe, W.M.P.  Jayawardena, K.H. Ranasinghe, C. Dhanapala, D. U.,. Somaratne, S. Gunaherath. 
G.M.K.B (2021), Preliminary Investigation of Wound Healing Potential of Leaves and Barks of 
Ziziphus oenoplia using the Cell Migration and Chorioallantoic Membrane Assays,  2nd 
Commonwealth Chemistry Posters No1.1.1. 

12. Samarasighe, W.M.P. . Jayawardena K.H,. Ranasinghe, C Somaratne, S. Gunaherath. G.M.K.B. (2021). 
Preliminary investigation of  wound healing potential of the leaves and barks of Ziziphus oenoplia 
(L.) Miller.   ,Proceeding of  the Open  University Research Session, Page 33. 

13. Premarathna A.D, S.K. Wijesekera, Jayasooriya Waduge R.N., Wijesundara R.R.M.K.K., Tuvikene R., 
Harishchandra D.L., Ranahewa T.H., Perera N.A.N.D., Wijewardana V., RajapakseR.P.V.J., In vitro and 
in vivo evaluation of the wound healing properties and safety assessment of two seaweeds 
(Sargassum ilicifolium and Ulva lactuca),Biochemistry and Biophysics Reports,Volume 26,2021, 

 Full papers – non-indexed: 

1. Bandaranayaka, K. O., Dissanayake, U. I. and Rajakaruna, R. S. (2021). Experimental aspects of life 
cycles of two hard tick species, Rhipicephalus (boophilus) microplus and Hyalomma isaaci (Acari: 
Ixodidae), on New Zealand white rabbits. Ceylon Journal of Science. 50(1):47  

2. Kobayashi, H., Aung, H.T., Dahanayaka, G., Jo, H., Sritharapiphat, T.,  Tseng, K. and Vu, T.T.  (2021), 
Forum of Remote Sensing in Asia: Common Research Topics and Challenges for International 
Collaboration and Data Sharing, Journal of Remote Sensing Society of Japan, Volume 41 Issue 2 
Pages 328-343.  

Conference Proceedings (Full Paper): 

1. Jayatilleke, B.G.,  Fernando, T.S.P., Nishshanka,K.M., Nayanajeehwi, S.G. and Ranawaka, G.R. (2021). 
Learners’ perceived impact on virtual learning activities in an undergraduate Human Biology 
course. In Proceedings of 34th Annual Conference of the Asian Association of Open Universities (AAOU 
2021), 1-3 June 2021, The Open University of Sri Lanka, Nawala 

2. Kapukotuwa, R.W.M.G.,  Abesekara, C.L, Weerakoon, K.C.  and Rajakaruna,  R.S. (2021). Distribution 
and Probable Sources of Faecal Indicator Bacteria along Rawan-Oya Tributary of Mahawelli River 
in Kandy District”. In Proceedings of Peradeniya University International Research Sessions, Sri 
Lanka, Vol.23, 11- 12 November 2021.  

3. Nilakarawasam, N., De Silva, K.R.M., Alwis, D.D.D.T., De Silva, R., Dilsha, R.A.N., Bulathwatta, B/D.D.T. 
and Athapattu, B.C.L. (2021). Developing a proactive motivational individual student support 
system at OUSL: A preliminary study for identification of influential factors.  In Proceedings of the 
34th Annual Conference of the Asian Association of Open Universities(AAOU 2021), 1-3 June 2021, 
The Open University of Sri Lanka, Nawla 

Conference Proceedings (Extended Abstract): 

1. Bandaranayaka, K. O., Rajapakse, R. P. V. J. Kularatne, S. A. M. Abeysundara, U. B., Rajapaksha, R. M. 
M. A. and Rajakaruna, R. S. (2021). Double trouble: Detection of rickettsial DNA in a tick removed 
from an otoacariasis patient. Proceedings of 10th Annual conference of the Sri Lankan Society for 
Microbiology (E-Conference) held on 22nd of October 2021 

2. Jayasekara, U. C., Wijesundara, C. and Bandaranayaka, K. O. (2021). Parental Stress, Economic 
Burden and their Associated Factors among Parents of Thalassemia Patients in Kurunegala 
Teaching Hospital, Sri Lanka. Proceedings of 14th International Research Conference of Sir John 
Kotelawala Defense University, 10th – 11th September 2021/ID582 
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3. Ranasinghe, H.A.K., Gunathilaka, P.A.D.H.N., Amarasinghe, L.D. and Rodrigo, W.W.P. (2021). 
Molecular characterization of midgut bacteria in larval and adult stages of Aedes albopictus in 
Gampaha district, Sri Lanka. Proceedings of the 41st annual sessions of Institute of Biology, Sri 
Lanka, 30. 

4. Balatheepan, M., Rodrigo, W.W.P., Jayawardhana, B.J.G. and Dharmadasa, R.M. (2021). Intra-Specific 
Diversity of Piper longum L. through Genetic Approach Using Nuclear ITS. Proceedings of 
Peradeniya University International Research Sessions (iPURSE) 2021, Sri Lanka, Vol. 23, 306. 

5. Jayawardhana, B.J.G., Rodrigo, W.W.P. and Dharmadasa, R.M. (2021). Evaluation of genetic diversity 
of Phyllanthus debilis populations in Sri Lanka using Maturase K (matK) gene region. 5th Biennial 
Research Symposium – 2021, Industrial Technology Institute, Sri Lanka, 15. 

6. Tennakoon,T.K., Somarathna, L., Wijesinghe, M.R., Ranawaka, G.R. & Fernando, T.S.P. (2021). 
Morphometric variation between Rattus species in Sri Lanka and its taxonomic implications. In 
Proceedings of the Annual Session, WILDLANKA Symposium – 2020; held on 6 - 7 April, 2021 (pp 40). 
Department of Wildlife Conservation, Sri Lanka 

7. Kulatunga,V.S., Fernando,L.P., Jayawardena, U.A. & Jayasinghe, C.D. (2021). Awareness of common 
zoonotic diseases among the new BSc degree registrants of the Open University of Sri Lanka in 
2020. Proceeding of the Open University Research Sessions (OURS 2021), 16th-17th September 2021. 

8. Samarakoon, P.S., Jayasinghe, C.D., Jayawardena, U.A. & Nilakarawadam, N. (2021). Glycemic, 
Lipidemic and Immunomodulatory effects of fenugreek (Trigonella foenum graceum) seed 
consumption on male albino wistar rats. Proceeding of the Open University Research Sessions (OURS 
2021), 16th-17th September 2021. 

9. Madushani, K. P. K., Amarasinghe, M. D.,  Ratnayake, R. M. C. S. and Dahanayaka, D.D.G.L. (2021),  An 
ethnobotanical approach to control Typha angustifolia: A case study from Sri Lanka, Proceedings of 
the International Conference on Applied and Pure Sciences (ICAPS 2021-Kelaniya), p 223. 

10. Perera, W.P.T.A.,  Wickramasinghe, D. and Dahanayaka, D.D.G.L. (2021), Satellite Remote Sensing 
Observations of the Changes of Night Lighting in the Hambantota Area,– 14th International 
Research Conference, General Sir John Kotelawala Defense University, p 13. 

11. Alawattegama, R.D.D.W.M.R.S. and Dahanayaka, D.D.G.L.  (2021), Assessing spatial allocation of 
coastal and marine utility areas in the North-Western region of Sri Lanka, Proceedings of the Young 
Scientists Conference on Multidisciplinary Research-2021, Young Scientists Association, National 
Institute of Fundamental Studies, Sri Lanka, P 55. 

12. Dahanayake H.D., Wickramasinghe D., Dahanayaka D.D.G.L. (2021). Cooling effect from wetlands: a 
nature-based solution for disaster resilience?, Proceedings of Big Earth Data for Disaster Risk 
Reduction and Sustainable Development Goals, International Forum on Big Data for Sustainable 
Development Goals (FBAS), China, P.33, 06th of September 2021. 

13. Dahanayake H.D., Wickramasinghe D., Dahanayaka D.D.G.L., (2021). Do wetlands contribute to 
“Cooling Effects''? A Case study from Anawilundawa Ramsar Site, Sri Lanka, International 
Conference on Multidisciplinary Approaches In Science, Faculty of Science, University Of Colombo, 
Sri Lanka, 26th of November 2021. 

14. Jude PJ , Gunathilaka PADHN, Fernando SD, Premaratne PH, Wickremasinghe AR, Udayanga 
NWBAL, Abeyewickreme W (2021). The range of salinity tolerance by Anopheles stephensi in Sri 
Lanka.  Proceedings of the Research Conference in Health Sciences 2021 - FAHS, USJ. Pp.102 

15. Jude PJ , Gunathilaka PADHN, Fernando SD, Premaratne PH, Wickremasinghe AR, Udayanga 
NWBAL, Abeyewickreme W (2021). Larvicidal response of Anopheles stephensi against three 
selected insecticides: A study from Jaffna, Sri Lanka;.  Proceedings of the Research Conference in 
Health Sciences 2021 - FAHS, USJ. pp. 50 

16. Galappaththy, T., Fernanado, T.S.P. , Padmalal, U.K.G.K.  (2021) THE BEHAVIOURAL RESPONSE OF 
THE RED WATTLED LAPWING (Vanellus indicus) IN DIFFERENT HABITATS. Proceedings of the 
Open University Research Sessions (OURS 2021) pp41. 

17. Weerawardhana, M. A. B. S. , Fernando, T. S. P.  and Balasuriya, D. N.  (2021). A SENSOR FOR 
DETECTING ELEPHANTS USING THEIR URINE; A CASE STUDY. In Proceedings of the Annual 
Session, WILDLANKA Symposium-2020; held on 6th and 7th April, 2021 (pp 1) Department of 
Wildlife Conservation, Sri Lanka 

18. Payagala, T.R. , De Silva, M.D.,  Edirisinghe, C.K., Fernando, T.S.P. , Padmalal, U.K.G.K. and Illeperuma, 
G.D.  (2021). DEVELOPING A LOW-COST SEMI-AUTONOMOUS ELECTRIC FENCE MONITORING 
SYSTEM. In Proceedings of the Annual Session, WILDLANKA Symposium-2020; held on 6th and 7th 
April, 2021 (pp 14) Department of Wildlife Conservation, Sri Lanka. 

19. Ranasinghe R.P.T.I., Fernando T.S.P. and Wijesinghe M.R. (2021). EFFECTS OF DIETARY LEAD AND 
CADMIUM ON GROWTH OF THE JAPANESE QUAIL (Coturnix japonica) HATCHLINGS. In 
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Proceedings of the Annual Session, WILDLANKA Symposium-2020; held on 6th and 7th April, 2021 
(pp 19) Department of Wildlife Conservation, Sri Lanka. 

20. Ranasinghe R.P.T.I., Fernando T.S.P. and Wijesinghe M.R (2021). EXPOSURE TO PB AND CD 
INDUCES CHANGES IN THE BLOOD PROFILE OF THE JAPANESE QUAIL (Coturnix japonica) 
HATCHLINGS. In Proceedings of the Annual Session, WILDLANKA Symposium-2020; held on 6th 
and 7th April, 2021 (pp 23) Department of Wildlife Conservation, Sri Lanka. 

21. Kotagama, O. , Fernando, V. A. K. , Yapa, W.B. and Fernando, T. S. P. (2021). HOST PARASITE 
INTERACTIONS OF BATS IN THE WAVULGALGAE CAVE; A CAVE IN WALLAWAYA, SRI LANKA.  In 
Proceedings of the Annual Session, WILDLANKA Symposium-2020; held on 6th and 7th April, 2021 
(pp 29) Department of Wildlife Conservation, Sri Lanka. 

22. Karunananda H.T.A.R, Fernando T.S.P., and Gunawardena M.P. (2021) Birds as a Potential Resource 
in Sustainable Tourism at a Leading Tourist Resort in Sri Lanka, Proceedings of the 25th 
International  Forestry and Environment Symposium (25) pp98. 

Conference Proceedings (Poster): 

1. Bandaranayaka, K. O., Rajapakse, R. P. V. J. Kularatne, S. A. M. Abeysundara, U. B., Rajapaksha, R. M. 
M. A. and Rajakaruna, R. S. (2021). Double trouble: Detection of rickettsial DNA in a tick removed 
from an otoacariasis patient. Proceedings of 10th Annual conference of the Sri Lankan Society for 
Microbiology (E-Conference) held on 22nd of October 2021 

2. De Silva B.D. and Illeperuma R.J. (2021). Evaluation of Effectiveness of “Touch DNA” Evidence in 
Criminal Investigations in Sri Lanka. Proceedings of Peradeniya University International Research 
Sessions 2021, Sri Lanka, Vol. 23, 11th & 12th November 2021 p. 416 

3. Jude PJ , Gunathilaka PADHN, Fernando SD, Premaratne PH, Wickremasinghe AR, Udayanga 
NWBAL, Abeyewickreme W (2021). Differentiation of biological forms of Anopheles stephensi 
(Diptera, Culicidae) recorded in Jaffna District, Sri Lanka, using egg morphology and morphometry. 
Proceedings of the Research Conference in Health Sciences 2021 - FAHS, USJ. pp.103 

4. Jude PJ , Gunathilaka PADHN, Fernando SD, Premaratne PH, Wickremasinghe AR, 
Udayanga NWBAL, Abeyewickreme W (2021). The range of salinity tolerance by Anopheles 
stephensi in Sri Lanka.  Proceedings of the Research Conference in Health Sciences 2021 - FAHS, USJ. 
Pp.102 
 

 

Department of Computer Science 

Conference Proceedings (Extended Abstract): 

1. Proceeding of the Open University Research Sessions (OURS 2021) ISSN 2012-9912© The Open 
University of Sri Lanka 139 DETERMINANTS OF CUSTOMER SATISFACTION IN TOURISM 
INDUSTRY IN SRI LANKA S.N. Karunathilake , M.J.R. Perera https://ours.ou.ac.lk/wp-
content/uploads/2021/11/ID-173_DETERMINANTS-OF-CUSTOMER-SATISFACTION-IN-TOURISM-
INDUSTRY-IN-SRI-LANKA.pdf 

2. Proceeding of the Open University Research Sessions (OURS 2021) ISSN 2012-9912© The Open 
University of Sri Lanka 137 DETERMINANTS OFSUCCESSFUL KNOWLEDGE MANAGEMENT IN 
SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT INDUSTRY IN SRI LANKA S. Priyangika , R. Perera 
https://ours.ou.ac.lk/wp-content/uploads/2021/11/ID-168_DETERMINANTS-OF-SUCCESSFUL-
KNOWLEDGE-MANAGEMENT-IN-SOFTWARE-DEVELOPMENT-INDUSTRY-IN-SRI-LANKA.pdf 

3. Perera, W.A.S.N., Perera, I., Ahangama, S. (2021). Hate Speech Detection on Sinhala Social Media 
Text Using LSTM and FastText. Proceeding of the Open University Research Sessions (OURS 2021), Sri 
Lanka, 16th & 17th September 2021. 

4. Perera, W.A.S.N., Perera, I., Ahangama, S. (2021). Identifying Hate Content with Facebook Posts in 
Sinhala Language Using Emoticons and Reactions-based Text Analysis. SLAAS 77th Annual Sessions - 
2021, Sri Lanka.Research Publication during 2021  : ‘Online student engagement and satisfaction 
during the Covid 19 Pandemic situation’ – Co-author(Champika Megasooriya) Journal – ICOBI 2021 
(Champika Megasooriya 
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Conference Proceedings (Full Paper): 

1. Herath L., Meedeniya, D, Marasingha. M.A.J.C, Weerasinghe. V. Autism Spectrum Disorder Diagnosis 
Support Model Using InceptionV3, International Research Conference On Smart Computing And 
Systems Engineering, (SCSE) 2021, Colombo, Sri Lanka, 2021, pp. 1-7. DOI: 
10.1109/SCSE53661.2021.9568314 

2. Perera, M. J., Megasooriya, G., & Abeysinghe, A. M. (November 26, 2021). Online Student 
Engagement and Satisfaction during the Covid-19 Pandemic Situation. International Conference on 
Business Innovation 2021 (ICOBI 2021) (pp. 121-133). Emerald Publishing 

3. Silva, H.D., Ahangama, S., Perera, S. (2021). Sinhala Text Extraction from YouTube  Thumbnails 
using Convolutional Spiking Neural Networks. From Innovation to Impact 2020, Sri Lanka (accepted 
and the conference held on 08 (Wednesday) December, 2021) 

4. Caldera, H.M.M., Perera, S., Meedin, G.S.N., Perera, I. (2021).  Classification of TrendingVideos in 
YouTube, From Innovation to Impact 2020, Sri Lanka 

(accepted and the conference held on 08 (Wednesday) December, 2021 

 

A.7. Centre for Educational Technology and Media (CETMe) 
 

Full papers - indexed:  

1. Pullenayegem, J., De Silva, R. & Jayatilleke, B G (2021). Contradictions in Learner Interactions in a 
Blended-Learning Writing Course: An Activity Theory Analysis. Journal of Learning for Development; 
JL4D. 8(2),327-345. 

Conference Proceedings (Full Paper): 

1. De Silva, D.; Jayarathna, N., Wijeratne, D. & Jayatilleke, B. G. (2021, June 1-3). Using Electronic Course 
Material for Learning: Perceptions of Medical Laboratory Science Undergraduates. 34th Annual 
Conference of the Asian Association of Open Universities (AAOU), Colombo, Sri Lanka. Conference 
Proceedings Vol II, 523-532. 
https://aaou2020.ou.ac.lk/assets/AAOU2021%20Volume2_Final_Online_Published.pdf 

 
2. Jayakody, M. K. (2021, June 1-3). A Study on the Causes of Common Inaccuracies Found in the Course 

Material of OUSL. 34th Annual Conference of the Asian Association of Open Universities (AAOU), 
Colombo, Sri Lanka. Conference Proceedings Vol II, 331-336.  
https://aaou2020.ou.ac.lk/assets/AAOU2021%20Volume2_Final_Online_Published.pdf 

3. Jayatilleke, B. G.; Fernando, T. S. P.; Nishshanka, K. M.; Nayanajeehwi, S. G, & Ranawaka, G. R. (2021). 
Learners perceived impact on virtual learning activities in an undergraduate human biology course. 34th 
Annual Conference of the Asian Association of Open Universities (AAOU), Colombo, Sri Lanka. 
Conference Proceedings Vol II, 63-74 
https://aaou2020.ou.ac.lk/assets/AAOU2021%20Volume2_Final_Online_Published.pdf 

 
4. Jayatilleke, B. G. & Kulasekara, G. U. (2021, June 1-3). An activity theory analysis of the online course 

delivery at the Open University of Sri Lanka during The COVID outbreak. 34th Annual Conference of the 
Asian Association of Open Universities (AAOU), Colombo, Sri Lanka. Conference Proceedings Vol II, 75-
83 
https://aaou2020.ou.ac.lk/assets/AAOU2021%20Volume2_Final_Online_Published.pdf 

 
5. Ranasinghe, D. U. (2021, June 1-3). A study of the effectiveness of learning Sinhala as 

 a second language online”. 34th Annual Conference of the Asian Association of Open Universities 
(AAOU), Colombo, Sri Lanka. Conference Proceedings Vol II, 359-364 
https://aaou2020.ou.ac.lk/assets/AAOU2021%20Volume2_Final_Online_Published.pdf 

 
6. Tilakawardana, S (2021, June 1-3). Data Monopoly and Social Media Pedagogy: Curious Case of Data 

Capitalism and Platformed Fetishism in Life-Long Learning. 34th Annual Conference of the Asian 
Association of Open Universities (AAOU), Colombo, Sri Lanka. Conference Proceedings Vol II, 114-124. 
https://aaou2020.ou.ac.lk/assets/AAOU2021%20Volume2_Final_Online_Published.pdf 
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Conference Proceedings (Abstract): 
 

1. Jayakody, M. K. (2021, September 16-17). Kolb's Experiential Learning Model Reflected in ODL Success 
Stories: A Case Study on Selected Alumni. The Open University Research Sessions (OURS) 2021, 
Colombo, Sri Lanka. Conference Proceedings, 3. 

 

2. Senadheera, P & Kulasekara, G. U. (2021, January 24-25). Expanding the Frontiers of Learning through 
Disruptive Technology: A case study from the Open University of Sri Lanka. In N. Burcea, L. M. Beardsley-
Hardy, & S. Nasir (Eds.) Book of Abstracts, Unequal World Conference: January 24-25, 2021. (72). 
http://unequal.world/wp-content/uploads/2021/02/Book-of-Abstracts-Unequal-World-2021.pdf 

3. Kulasekara, G. U. & Senadheera, P. (2021, December 8-9). Digital plagiarism in online assessments and 
students’ awareness on plagiarism. Unequal World Online Conference. 8-9 December 2021. 
http://unequal.world 

4. Ranasinghe, D. U. (2021, September 16-17). A behavioral study on the change of learning patterns due to 
the change in the lecture delivery mode. The Open University Research Sessions 2021, 5. 

Conference Proceedings (Paper presentation): 

1. Senadheera, P. & Kulasekara, G. U. (2021, October 25-29). Designing of online formative assessments and 
its impact on students' learning. [Paper Presentation]  International Council for Open and Distance 
Education (ICDE) Virtual Global Conference 2021:  https://www.icde.org/virtual-global-conference-week 

A.8. Library 

Conference Proceedings (Full Paper): 

 

1. Gunasekera, D. (2021). A study on learner perceptions on selected support services in two dual 
mode universities. In. Proceedings of Global Academic Research Institute winter multidisciplinary 
symposium (pp.64), Paper presented at 09th International Conference on Social Science and 
Humanities held at Galle Face Hotel, Colombo, on 29th November 2021, organized by the Global 
Academic Research Institute. 

 
2. Jayaratne, Dasun and Gunasekera, Damayanthi (2021). A study on utilization of library facilities by 

non-academic staff of the Open University of Sri Lanka, presented at Virtual International 
Conference on Library and Information Sciences, held on November 2021. 

 

3. Nanayakkara T.S, K. P. and Kaushamalika P.K.M. (2021). Professional and work base 
knowledge sharing habits among the library staff: a case study of the Open University of Sri 
Lanka (OUSL). Open University Research Session (OURS 2021) (p. 97). Nawala- Nugegoda: 
OUSL. 

 
4. Dilrukshi Kumari B.D.L. and Kaushamalika P.K.M. (2021). A study on the availability and usage 

of reference sources in the Nagoda Nidahas Swanrna Jayanthi. International Conference of 
University Librarians Association of Sri Lanka (ICULA) (pp. 39-44). Colombo: University 
Librarians Association of Sri Lanka. 

 

Conference Proceedings (Extended Abstract): 

 

1. Fernando, S.R. and Weerakoon, W.R.W.M.A.U. (2021). Reading habits and factors affecting reading 
habits of Advanced Level grade students. Book of Abstracts: Open University Research Sessions 2021 
(OURS 2021), p47. 
https://www.ou.ac.lk/home/images/Research/publications/Updated%20OURS%202021%20Con

ference%20Proceedings%20.pdf. 
 
 
 

https://www.ou.ac.lk/home/images/Research/publications/Updated%20OURS%202021%20Conference%20Proceedings%20.pdf
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 Conference Proceedings (Poster): 

 
1. Abeysinghe, H.M.P.P.K. & Angammana, B.H.  (2021. December 21-22). A Study on Available Library 

Services for Differently- Able Users in North Western Province (NWP) Public Libraries, Sri Lanka 
(Conference Poster presentation abstract).  International Symposium of Rajarata University ISymRU 
2021 , Faculty of Technology, Rajarata University of Sri Lanka, Mihintale, P.168. 

2. Priyadarshani. A. A. N. , Angammana. B. H.  & Abeysinghe. H. M. P. P. K. (2021. December 21-22). 
Impact of the Main Family for being Pregnant in Teenage in a Selected Semi Urban Village in Sri 
Lanka (Conference Poster presentation abstract).  International Symposium of Rajarata University 
ISymRU 2021 , Faculty of Technology, Rajarata University of Sri Lanka, Mihintale, p.167. 

 
 
 

Book Chapters: 

 

1. Gunasekera, Damayanthi (2021). The effectiveness of information organization and authority 
control: library professionals experience," In. "Handbook of Research on Knowledge and 
Organization Systems in Library and Information Science", IGI Global Publishing 

A.9. Centre for Environmental Studies and Sustainable 
Development (CESSD) 

Conference Proceedings (Extended Abstract): 

1. Peiris, B.A.D.,  Manage, P.M.,  Mahagamage, M.G.Y.L.,  Jayawardhena, J.K.P.C.,  Weerasekara, 
K.A.W.S.  and Maddumage M.D.S.R.  (2021) Species Diversity and Abundance of 
Phytoplankton and Zooplankton along the Hamilton Canal, Sri Lanka, Eighth International 
Symposium on Water Quality and Health: challenges Ahead. Postgraduate Institute of 
Science (PGIS), University of Peradeniya.p.44.  

2. Gamage, S. G. and Mahagamage, M. G. Y. L. (2021) Selection, usage, and disposal of 
personal care and cosmetic products in Sri Lanka; an environmental and health concern, 
International Conference on Applied and Pure Sciences, 2021 Faculty of Science, 
University of Kelaniya, Sri Lanka. p.126.  

3. Igalavithana, A.D, Mahagamage, M.G.Y.L., Gajanayake, P., Kojima, F., Yu Fukunaga, 
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